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SALORA INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
(CIN: L74899DL1968PLC004962)
Registered Address: D-13/4, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase-Il, New Delhi- 110020

Ph. 011-35008342, E-mail: info@salora.com, Website: www.salora.com

NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 54" Annual General Meeting of Salora International Limited will be held through Video
Conferencing (“VC")/ Other Audio - Visual Means (“OAVM"), on Thursday, 28" September 2023 at 11:00 A.M. to transact
the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

Item No.1 -

TO RECEIVE, CONSIDER AND ADOPT THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR
ENDED 315" MARCH, 2023, INCLUDING AUDITED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 315T MARCH, 2023 AND STATEMENT OF
PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT OF THE COMPANY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°T MARCH, 2023 ALONG WITH THE REPORTS OF
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS THEREON

To conside andift houdt fit, t o pass t hefollowingr esolut ion, OwdihanyResohitioho ut no difi
“RESOLVED THAT t heau dit edfinancial st at eent oft heConpany for t hefinancialy ear en ded Mar ch 3

report of Board of Directors and Auditors thereon, as circulated to the Members, be and are hereby considered and adopted.”
Item No.2 -

TO APPOINT A DIRECTOR IN PLACE OF SMT. NEETU JIWARAJKA (DIN 00025570), WHO RETIRES BY ROTATION AND
BEING ELIGIBLE, OFFERS HERSELF FOR RE-APPOINTMENT

To considea andift houdt fit, t opass t hefollowingr esolut ion, OwdihanyResohitioho ut no difi

“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013, Smt. Neetu Jiwarajka (DIN 00025570), who retires by rotation at this Annual General Meeting, be
and is hereby re-appointed as a Director of the Company.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS
Item No. 3 -
TO RATIFY REMUNERATION PAYABLE TO COST AUDITOR FOR FINANCIAL YEAR ENDING 31t MARCH, 2024

To conside andift houdt fit, t o pass t hefollowingr esolut ion, OwndihanyResohitioho ut no difi

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies

Act , 2013 r edwit ht heConpanie (Cost Reor ds andAudit )Rules, 2014 (includingany st atu

amendment(s) thereto or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), the remuneration payable to M/s. Gurvinder
Chopra & Co., Cost Accountants (Firm Registration No.100260) appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company as

Cost Auditors to conduct t heaudit oft hecost reords oft heConpany for t hefinanci

amounting to Rs. 40,000/- (Rupees Forty Thousand only) excluding all taxes and reimbursement of out of pocket expenses,
ber at ifiedandcon fir med. ”

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Salora International Ltd.

Sd/-
Date  :12% August, 2023 (Anubhav Nigam)
Place :New Delhi Company Secretary

__ecez /4
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NOTES:

1. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA) vide its General Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 5, 2020 read with General
Circular Nos. 14/2020, 17/2020, 02/2021, 2/2022 and 10/2022 dated April 8, 2020, April 13, 2020, January 13,
2021, May 5, 2022 and December 28, 2022 respectively (collectively referred to as ‘MCA Circulars’) and Securities
and Exchange Board of India (‘SEBI') vide its Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 dated May 12,
2020 read with Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 dated January 15, 2021, SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/
CIR/P/2022/62 dated May 13, 2022 and SEBI/HO/CFD/Pod-2/P/CIR/2023/4 dated January 5, 2023 (‘SEBI
Circulars’) have permitted to hold the Annual General Meeting by companies through video conferencing (VC) /
other audio visual means (OAVM), without the physical presence of the Members. Accordingly, in compliance with
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’), Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing Regulations’), MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular, the 54t
AGM of the Company is being conducted through VC/OAVM Facility, which does not require physical presence of
members at a common venue. Hence, Members can attend and participate in the ensuing AGM through VC/OAVM.

2. An Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Act, in respect of ltems as set out above in the Notice for
special business, is annexed hereto. The relevant details, pursuant to Regulations 36(3) of the Listing Regulations
and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, (ICSI’)
in respect of Director seeking re-appointment at this AGM is annexed.

3. I n accor dan cewit ht heSecr @ ar ial St andar d- 2on G e al Mg ing issueaby t hel CSI r ea
Guidance on applicability of Secretarial Standards - 1 and 2 dated April 15, 2020 issued by the ICSI, the proceedings
o ft heAGMs hall bedemedt o beco nduct edat t heRegjs t @ el Officeo ft heConpany i. e B 13/ 4, Okh
Area, Phase- Il, New Delhi — 110 020 which shall be the venue of the AGM. Since the AGM will be held through VC /
0AVM, the Route Map for the venue of the Meeting is not annexed in this Notice.

4. Members attending the AGM through VC / OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under
Section 103 of the Act.

5. Generally, a member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/
her behalf and the proxy need not be a member of the Company. Since this AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA
Circulars through VC / OAVM, physical attendance of members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, appointment
of proxies by the members under section 105 of the Act will not be available for the AGM and hence the Proxy Form
and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice.

6. In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Act, read with the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended by the Companies (Management and Administration) Amendment Rules,
2015 and Regulation 44 of Listing Regulations and MCA Circulars, the Company is providing facility of remote
e-voting to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company
has opted National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the
authorized agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-voting system as well as e-voting
during the AGM will be provided by NSDL.

7. The Members can join the AGM through VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time of the
commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation
at t heAGMt hr o u h VC/ OAVWMw ill bemadeav ailablefor 1000rehe s on fir st comefir st s & v edba
not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors,
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairperson of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc, are allowed to attend the AGM without
retrictiononaccount offir st comfir st sea veabasis. TheMabe s will beablet o vient
Securities Depository Limited's (‘NSDL) e-Voting website at www.evoting.nsdl.com.

8. Body Corporate / Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are entitled to appoint authorized
representatives to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM and participate there at and cast their votes through e-voting. They
are required to send scanned copy (PDF Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested
specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Company at sect@salora.com..

9. In compliance with the aforesaid MCA and SEBI Circulars, the Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report is
being sent through e-mail to those members whose e-mail addresses are registered with the Company/ Depositories.
The Notice and the Annual Report will also be available on the Company’s website www.salora.com, website of
the Stock Exchange i.e. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com, and on the website of NSDL (agency for providing the
Remote e-Voting facility) i.e. www.evoting.nsdl.com.
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.
17.
18.

19.

Members who have still not registered their e-mail IDs are requested to do so at the earliest. Members holding
shares in electronic mode can get their e-mail IDs registered by contacting their respective Depository Participant.
Members holding shares in physical mode are requested to register their e-mail IDs with the Company or the RTA
(M/s Skyline Financial Services Pvt. Ltd.), for receiving the Notice and Annual Report. Requests can be e-mailed
to sect@salora.com or info@skylinerta.com. We urge members to support this environment friendly effort of the
Company and get their e-mail IDs registered.

The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books in respect of Equity Shares of the Company will remain closed
during the period commencing from Friday, September 22, 2023 to Thursday, September 28, 2023 (both days
inclusive) for the purpose of Annual General Meeting.

The Board of Directors has appointed Shri Shivam Rastogi, Partner of SVR & CO., Practicing Company Secretaries,
as a Scrutinizer to scrutinize the remote e-voting process and e-voting at the AGM in a fair and transparent manner.

The voting result declared along with the Scrutinizer's Report will be forwarded to BSE Limited at
www.bseindia.com and shall be simultaneously uploaded on the Company’s website www.salora.com within
stipulated time.

The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained under Section 170 of
the Act, the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which the Directors are interested, maintained under Section
189 of the Act will be made available electronically, for inspection by the Members during the AGM. Members
seeking inspection of the aforementioned documents can send an e-mail to sect@salora.com.

As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Act and SEBI Circular, the facility for making nomination is available
for the Members in respect of the shares held by them. Members who have not yet registered their nomination
are requested to register the same by submitting Form No. SH-13. If a Member desires to opt out or cancel the
earlier nomination and record a fresh nomination, he/she may submit the same in ISR-3 or SH-14 as the case may
be. The said forms can be downloaded from our website at www.salora.com, and website of the Registrar and
Transfer Agent (‘RTA") at www.skylinerta.com. Members are requested to submit the said details to their Depository
Participants in case the shares are held by them in dematerialized form and to the Company’s RTA in case the
shares are held by them in physical form, quoting their folio number.

Members holding shares in physical form, in identical order of names, in more than one folio are requested to send

totheConmany’'s RTA t heda ails of suchfolios t og@ hea wit ht hes har ecea t ificat es alo
documnts for consolidat ingt hdr holdingin onefolio. Reguets for consolidat ior

processed in dematerialized form.

To prevent fraudulent transactions, Members are advised to exercise due diligence and notify the Company of
any change in address or demise of any Member as soon as possible. Members are also advised to not leave
their demat account(s) dormant for long. Periodic statement of holdings should be obtained from the concerned
Bpository Participant andholding shouldbev e ifiedfr onmt inet o t ine

SEBI v ideit s not ificat ion dat edJan u ar y 24, 2022has man dat edt hat allr qquet s for t r al

transmission and transposition requests shall be processed only in dematerialised form. In view of the same and to
dimn at eall r is ks as sociat edwit hphy sical s har es andt o availvarious be it
are advised to dematerialise their holdings.

In case of any change such as name, registered address, e-mail id, mobile no., PAN, bank details such as, name of
the bank and branch details, bank account number, MICR code, IFSC code, nomination, power of attorney, etc., the
members are required to intimate the same:

o FOR SHARES HELD IN ELECTRONIC FORM:

To their respective DP; and
o) FOR SHARES HELD IN PHYSICAL FORM:

To the Company/ RTA (M/s Skyline Financial Services Private Limited) in prescribed Form No. ISR-1 and other
forms pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/ MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2021/655 dated November 3,
2021. Further, the Company has sent letters to the members holding shares in physical form to furnish the
abovementioned details which are not registered in their respective folio no(s).

s o f demat
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20.  SEBI vide its Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2022/8 dated January 25, 2022 has mandated
the listed companies to issue securities in dematerialised form only while processing certain prescribed service
requets. Accor dindy, t hemmbe s ar er quest edt o makes @ vicer qguest by subnmtt in
Form No. ISR-4, the format of which is available on the Company’'s website at www.salora.com and on the website
of RTA at www.skylinerta.com. Members are requested to note that any service request would only be processed
aft @ t hefolio is KCConpliant .

21.  Members will be provided facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL e-voting system. Members
may access by following the steps mentioned herein below for Access to NSDL e-Voting system. After successful
logn, you can s elinko f“WC/ OAWp lacedu nde “Join Mg indnmn u agginst Conpany nam Y
to click on VC/ OAVM link placed under Join Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in Shareholder/
Member login where the EVEN of the Company will be displayed. Please note that the Members who do not have
User ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the same by following
the remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush.

22. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience. Further members will be
required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance during the meeting.

23.  Please note that participants connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via Mobile
Hot spot my expea ienceAudio/ Video los s duet o fluct uat ionint hdr r espetivend wo
to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

24. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may register themselves
as a speaker by sending their request mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, e-mail id,
mobile number at sect@salora.com during the period Friday, September 15, 2023 from 09:00 A.M. to Wednesday,
September 20, 2023 up to 5:00 P.M. The same will be replied by the Company suitably. The Company reserves its
right to restrict the number of speakers depending on the availability of time for the AGM.

25. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their views/ask
questions during the meeting.

26. Members are requested to attend and participate in the ensuing AGM through VC / OAVM and cast their vote either
through remote e-voting facility or through e-voting facility to be provided during the AGM.

27. The remote e-voting period commences from Monday, September 25, 2023 at 9:00 A.M. (IST) till Wednesday,
September 27,2023 at 5:00 P.M. (IST) During this period, Members of the Company holding shares either in physical
form or in demat form, as on the cut-off date i.e. Thursday, September 21, 2023 may cast their vote by remote
e-voting. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution
is cast by the member, the member shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.

28. The facility of e-voting during the AGM will be available to those Members who have not cast their vote by remote
e-voting. Members, who have cast their vote by remote e-voting, may attend the AGM through VC/ OAVM but will
not be entitled to cast their vote once again on resolutions.

29. The voting rights of the Members shall be in proportion to their shares in the paid-up Equity Share capital of the
Company as on the cut-off date.

30.  Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and becomes a Member of the Company after sending of the
Notice and holding shares as of the cut-off date, may obtain the login ID and password by sending a request to
NSDL at evoting@nsdl.co.in. However, if he/she is already registered with NSDL for remote e-voting then he/she
can use his/her existing User ID and password for casting the vote.

31.  Any person holding shares in physical form and non-individual shareholders, who acquires shares of the Company
and becomes member of the Company after the notice is sent through e-mail and holding shares as of the cut-off
date i.e. September 21, 2023, may obtain the login ID and password by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in
or Issuer/ RTA. However, if the member is already registered with NSDL for remote e-voting, then the member
can use its existing user ID and password for casting its vote. If the member forgot its password, member can
reset its password by using “Forgot User Details/Password” or “Physical User Reset Password” option available on
www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on 022 - 48867000 and 022 - 24997000. In case of Individual Shareholders holding
securities in demat mode who acquires shares of the Company and becomes a Member of the Company after
sending of the Notice and holding shares as of the cut-off date i.e. September 21, 2023 may follow steps mentioned
in the Notice of the AGM under “Access to NSDL e-Voting system”.

A\ poeios
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THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING ANNUAL

GENERAL MEETING ARE AS UNDER:-

The remote e-voting period begins on September 25, 2023 at 09:00 A.M. and ends on September 27, 2023 at 05:00 P.M.
The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the
Regst @ of Mmbe s / Ben dicial Own @ s as on t her eo r dda8epfember 2d4,4028f nexiy. cast their vote
electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the
Company as on the cut-off date, being September 21, 2023.

How do | vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below:

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system

A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual
shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with
Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in
their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:

Type of shareholders

Login Method

Individual
Shareholders holding
securities in demat
mode with NSDL.

. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. https://eservices.
nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. On the e-Services home page

. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at https://

click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login"which is available under ‘IDeAS’
section , this will prompt you to enter your existing User ID and Password. After
successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services under Value added
services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to
see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDLand
you will be re-directed to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at https:/

eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/ldeasDirectReg.jsp

. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:

. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL Speede” facility

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once
the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is
av ailableu n de& ‘Shar éholde / Mahe ‘s ect ion. Anev scr en wil
to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold with NSDL),
Pas swor d/ OTPand a Ve ificat ion Codeas shown on t hesd
authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see
e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDLand you
will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote
e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

by scanning the QR code mentioned below for seamless voting experience.

| op en.

r en.

Yo
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Individual 1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their existing
Shareholders holding user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without
securities in demat any further authentication. The users to login Easi /Easiest are requested to visit CDSL
mode with CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & New System Myeasi Tab and

then user your existing my easi username & password.

2. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option for
eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as per the information provided by
company. On clicking the evoting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of
the e-Voting service provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period
or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links
provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers, so that the user can
visit the e-Voting service providers’ website directly.

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at CDSL
website www.cdslindia.comand click on login & New System Myeasi Tab and then
click on registration option.

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat Account
Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com home page.
The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email
as recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be able
to see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able to directly
access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers.

Individual Yu can also logn usingt helogn cr edent ials of your deml account
Shareholders (holding | Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. upon logging in,
securities in demat you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to
mode) login through [NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting
their depository feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be
participants redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting
period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and
Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login
through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDS.

Login type Helpdesk details

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL
helpdesk by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.inor call at 022 -
4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 7000

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL
helpdesk by sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
or contact at toll free no. 1800 22 55 33

B) Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders holding
securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode.

Individual Shareholders holding securities
in demat mode with NSDL

Individual Shareholders holding securities
in demat mode with CDSL

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/
Member’ section.

3. Anev scren willopen. Yu willhavet o mt @ your Usea ID your Passwor d/ OTPan da\
on the screen.

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with
your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and
you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically.

4. Your Us e | Dda ails ar egv en bdo w :
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Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat Your User ID is:

(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical
a) | For Members who hold shares in | 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID
demat account with NSDL. For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is 12****** then your

user ID is IN3QQ***7 2%xxkkk

b) | For Members who hold sharesin | 16 Dgt Ben i ciar y | D
demat account with CDSL.

For excanpleifyour Ben diciar y | Dis 2%kt hgl your u !
1 2**************

¢) | For Members holding shares in | EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with the company

Physical Form. For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 101456 then user ID
is 1014560071 ***

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:
a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login and cast your vote.
b) Ifyouar eusingNSLe Vot ingsystanfor t hefir st tim you willnedt or & r iev et

was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’
and the system will force you to change your password.

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?

() If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial password’ is
communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox.
Open t heemil andopen t heat t achnent i. e a. pdffile Open t he. pdffile Thep as s
. pdffileis your 8digt client IDfor NS account, last 8digt s ofcliemt |IDfor
nunme for s har es hddin phy sical for m The. pdffilecont ains your ‘U & | Dan d)

(i) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those
shareholders whose email ids are not registered.

6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have forgotten your password:

a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account with NSDL or
CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on
www.evoting.nsdl.com.

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at
evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name and your
registered address etc.

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-Voting
system of NSDL.

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box.
Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system.

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system?

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN”" in which you are holding shares
and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status.

2. Select “EVEN" of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period and casting your
vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need to click on “VC/OAVM" link placed under “Join
Meeting”.

Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares for which
you wisht ocast your vot eandclickon “Submt "andals o “Confir Miwhen pr onpt .

'



SALORA INTERNATIONAL LTD. 54" ANNUAL REPORT

5.
6.
7.

Uponconfir mtion, t hemes s ag"Vot ecast succes s fully "will bedis p lay e.

Yu can also t aket hepr intout oft hevot e cast by you by clickingon t heprint opti

Onceyouconfirmyour voteontheresolution, you willnot beallowedt o no dify y o

General Guidelines for shareholders

1.

Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy (PDF/
JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature of the duly
authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to cs.shivamr@gmail.com with a
copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in.Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also
upload their Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by clicking on “Upload Board Resolution /
Authority Letter” displayed under “e-Voting” tab in their login.

It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your
passwordconfidmtial. Logntothee votingwesit ewill bedis abledupon fiv
correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical
User Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.

In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-voting user
manual for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on.: 022 - 4886 7000
an d022- 249970000r sendar ggu et t o NeRobOffy@asdico.in

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for procuring user id and
password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set out in this notice:

1.

In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the share

euns ucc

ca t ificat efr ont an dback), PAN(s dfat t est elscannedcopy ofPANcar d, AAMHAR(s dfat t est

Aadhar Card) by email to sect@salora.com.

In cas es har es ar ehddin devat no de pleasepr ov idelPI B CLI D(16digt Pl D+ CLI Do r
Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card),
AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to sect@salora.com. If you are an Individual shareholders
holding securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e.Login
method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode.

Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.infor procuring user id and password
for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents.

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual
shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with
Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and email ID
correctly in their demat account in order to access e-Voting facility.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE AGM ARE AS UNDER:-

The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above forremote e-voting.

Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the AGM throughVC/OAVM facility and have not casted
their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible
to vote through e-Voting system in the AGM.

Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. However, they will not be
eligible to vote at the AGM.

The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility for e-Voting on the
day of the AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-voting.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER:

1.

Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL e-Voting system.
Members may access by following the steps mentioned above for Access to NSDL e-Voting system. After

16digt ben

successful login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM” placed under “Join meeting” nen u acggin st conpany name Y u

are requested to click on VC/OAVM link placed under Join Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in
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Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please note that the members who do
not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the same
by following the remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush.

2. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience.

3. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance
during the meeting.

4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via
Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore
recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

DECLARATION OF RESULTS ON THE RESOLUTIONS:

The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the completion of the scrutiny of the e-voting (votes cast during the AGM and
votes cast through remote e-voting), not later than 48 hours from the conclusion of the AGM, submit a consolidated
Scrutinizer’s report of the total votes cast in favour and against the resolution(s), invalid votes, if any, and whether
the resolution(s) has/have been carried or not, to the Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing. The result
declared along with the Scrutinizer’'s Report shall be placed on the Company’s website www.salora.com and on the
website of NSDL www.evoting.nsdl.com immediately after the result is declared. The Company shall simultaneously
forward the results to BSE Limited where the shares of the Company are listed.

Please note the following:

o Yur logn idandpasswor dcan beus elby you exclusivdy for e votingonther esolut
in which you are the shareholder.

o} It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep it
confidemtial.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Salora International Ltd.

Sd/-
Date  :12% August, 2023 (Anubhav Nigam)
Place :New Delhi Company Secretary
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), the following explanatory statement sets out all material facts
relating to the Special business mentioned in the Notice:

ITEM NO. 3

The Board of Directors of the Company on recommendation of Audit Committee, approved the appointment of M/s.

Gurvinder Chopra & Co., (Firm Registration No. 100260) Cost Accountants, to conduct of Cost Records of the Company

for financialy ear 2023- 24. Inta ns oft hepr ovisions ofSet ion 148(3)o ft heCo np an ie Act
(ii)oft heConp anie (Audit andAudit or s)Rules, 2014, t her e n & at ion t o bepaidt ot hecos't
the members of the Company. Accordingly, the members are requested to ratify the remuneration to be paid to the Cost

Auditors as set out in the Resolution for the aforesaid services to be rendered by the cost auditor. The Board recommends

passing of the Ordinary Resolution as set out in Item 3 of the Notice.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives, are in any way, concerned or interested
in the said resolution.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Salora International Ltd.

Sd/-
Date  :12% August, 2023 (Anubhav Nigam)
Place :New Delhi Company Secretary

Details of directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at the annual general meeting
in compliance of SS-2 issued by ICSI and information pursuant to regulation 36(3) of the
SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 forming part of

explanatory statement

Name of the Director :  Smt. Neetu Jiwarajka

Date of Birth . September 4, 1960

Age . 62¥ar s

Date of Appointment in the Company ¢ June 30,2016

DIN : 00025570

Qualification : Graduate

Brief Resume / Experience :  Smt. Neetu Jiwarajka have rich experience in Marketing and
business development in life style products.

Remuneration (sought to be paid) . Rs. 7,20,000/- Per Annum

Remuneration (last drawn) ¢ Rs.291,768/-
(Please refer report on corporate governance)

Relationship with other Directors/ MD/ KMPs . Shri Gopal Sitaram Jiwarajka, Chairman & Managing Director,

and Shri Tarun Jiwarajka, Whole Time Director & CFO are
relative of Smt. Neetu Jiwarajka.

Shareholding in the Company as at March 31,2023 : 7,31,410 Equity Shares

Number of Board meetings attended during the : Four (4)

year ended March 31, 2023

Name of other companies in which the appointee : Manori Properties Private Limited, Devi Electronics Private

holds directorship as at March 31, 2023 Limited, PJTJ Technologies Private Limited & Ssamsconn
Technologies Private Limited

Membership / Chairmanship of committees of : NIL

other companies as at March 31, 2023

NN
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STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SCHEDULE V PART Il SECTION - II
I. GENERAL INFORAMTION

1. Nature of Industry + Manufacturing/Distribution/Marketing of Television,
Speakers, Home Theater, Tower Speaker, Smartwatch,
Neckband, Mobile Chargers Washing machine and
Refrigerator etc.

Distribution of IT, Telecom and Audio Products and
Life style Products
2. Date or expected date of Commencement of 29.11.1968
commercial production.
3. In case of new company, expected date of|Not Applicable
commencement of activities as per project approved
by financialinstitutions apperinfgintheprospetus.

4. Financial performance based on given indicators (Rs. in lacs)
i. EBITD . 1(1058.21)
ii. PBT 1 1(1184.47)
iii. PAT : 1(896.94)
5. Foreign investment or collaborations, if any No foreign collaboration or investment

Il INFORAMTION ABOUT THE APPOINTEE: Refer “Details of directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at the
annual general meeting in compliance of SS-2 issued by ICSI and information pursuant to regulation 36(3) of the
SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 forming part of explanatory statement

L. OTHER INFORMATION

(1) |Reasonsoflossor | r in gt hefi n an cial y ear saviaech32023, the Consumer Electronics segment
in adeg u at ep r |[hds tbeen facing a number of challenges, which have led to losses or inadequate
profitstotheConpany.

(2) [Steps taken or The Company is more focusing on product portfolio with the following business strategies:
proposed to e Designing products with modular and repairable components to extend the life of
be taken for devices and reduce electronic waste;
improvement e Integrating voice commands, gesture recognition, and other innovative interfaces

to make devices more user-friendly;
e Increasing the compatibility of devices with the Internet of Things (loT) for
seamless communication and control;
e Improving the durability of devices through better materials and techniques.
(3) |[Expectedincrease |[Theex p ect edin cr eas ein pr oduct ivity andpr ofit s int heColns una El
in productivity is difficult t o quant ify in mas ur ablet @ n8. This is becau § et hes egm
andpr o fit s ilmumber of challenges, as discussed above, and the future of the segment is uncertain.
measurable terms |However by taking necessary factors into consideration, the Consumer Electronics
segent couldinpr oveproductivity andpr ofits in t hecq mn gy er ¢

Iv. DISCLOSURE

The following disclosures shall be mentioned in the Board of Director’s report under | Provided in the Corporate
t heheadin g’Cor por at eGovea nance, ifany, at t achelt o t hefGovemanaés t at emn t

(i)Al demnt s of r emnea at ion packagsuchas salary, benfdfits, bonuse, [st ock
options, pension, etc. of all the directors;

(i)t ails of ixedconmponents andpea for nan celinked incen|t ive alongwit hf he
performance criteria

(iii) Service contracts, notice period, severance fees.

(iv) Stock option details, if any, and whether the same has been issued at the discount
as well as the period over which accrued and over which exercisable.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Salora International Ltd.

Sd/-
Date  :12% August, 2023 (Anubhav Nigam)
Place :New Delhi Company Secretary
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

Dear Members,

Your

Dr ect or 's ar ep leas el t 'DApnuatsRepdrt 64 the business and operations of Salora International Limited

alongwit ht hesunmmar y oft heAu dit edFinancial St at emnt s for tcshefarohaR0@Bal y ear en ded 31

1. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE AND THE STATE OF THE COMPANY’S AFFAIRS
Thefin an cial hichlidgit s ofyour Conpany for t hefinancialy er en dedMar ch31, 2023 ar es u nma
Particulars R in lahh)
FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22
Net Sales /Income from Business Operations 11,572.42 6,963.76
Other Income 56.32 300.72
Increase / (Decrease) in stock (124.31) (632.15)
Total Amount 11,504.43 6,632.33
Total Expenditure (11,796.06) (7,508.07)
Operating Profit/Loss (291.63) (875.74)
Interest (106.37) (290.71)
Depreciation & Amortization (19.89) (43.66)
Profit/Loss from Continuing operation before exceptional item & tax (417.89) (1,210.11)
Exceptional Item (766.58) 3,982.41
Profit before tax (1,184.47) 2,772.30
Provision for taxes - -
Current Tax - -
Deferred Tax 287.53 (367.66)
Profit/Loss after tax (896.94) 2,404.64
Other comprehensive income/loss (7.57) (2.93)
Balance carried to Balance Sheet (904.51) 2,401.71
Note: The figures have been re-grouped / re-classified wherever necessary.
2. REVIEW OF OPERATIONS AND FUTURE PROSPECTS
TheConpany hadopa at edin ahichly conp & it iveandv olat ilemar ke dur in gt hefinancial y &
2023. Rapid changes in consumer preferences and technological advancements have necessitated adjustments in
Conmpany's product offe ing andbusine s strateage, oftenreuiringsigificant ir
During the period under review, the Company has achieved revenue from operation of Rs. 11,572.42 lacs in the
curret financialy er 2022- 23as conp ar edt o Rs. 6, 963. 76lacs in t helast financialy ear .
with operating loss of Rs. 291. 63lacs in t hecur r et financialy ear 2022- 23aginst t heop e at in gl
lacs incur r edur ingt helast financialy er .
TheConmpany r emins comnmt t edt o st r entineit s opeg ationalprocesse toinpr ov edfic
The Company has launched some new products in the market like Neckband, Chargers, Smart-watches etc., by
which the Company expects to scale up its business operations and revenue.
3. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT
The Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review, as stipulated under Regulation 34 of
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, forms part of this Annual Report.
4. SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES
The eis no subsidiar y, associat econpany andjoint vent ur edur ingt hefinancialy ar
5. DIVIDEND
TheBo ar do fDr ect or s has not r econman dedany dividemdon t heequity s har es for t heFin an
31, 2023 considering the loss incurred.
6. TRANSFER TO RESERVES

During the year under review, no amount was transferred to the General Reserves of the Company.

A\ poei
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7. SHARE CAPITAL

During the year under review, there was no change in Authorized Share Capital of the Company, amounting to
Rs. 20,00,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty Crore only) divided into 2,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each and also no
change in Paid-up share capital of the Company, amounting to Rs. 8,80,73,000/- (Rupees Eight Crore Eighty Lacs
Seventy Three Thousand only) divided into 88,07,300 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each

8. UTILIZATION OF FUNDS
During the year under review, the Company has not raised any funds through any mode.
9. DEMATERIALIZATION OF SHARES

As on 31st March, 2023, there were approximately 87,12,013 Equity Shares dematerialized through depositories
viz. National Securities Depository Limited and Central Depository Services (India) Limited, which represents about
98.92% of the total listed capital of the Company.

10.  DISCLOSURE RELATING TO EQUITY SHARES WITH DIFFERENTIAL RIGHTS

TheConmpany has not issueaeany eguity shar es wit hdiffe eet ialridt s dur ingt heFin a
review and hence no information as per provisions of Rule 4(4) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture)
Rules, 2014 is furnished

11.  DISCLOSURE RELATING TO SWEAT EQUITY SHARES

The Company has not issued any sweat equity shares during the year under review and hence no information as per
provisions of Rule 8(13) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014 is furnished.

12.  LISTING FEES
Thelis t in gfess p ay ablefor t heF. Y 2023- 24has bem p aidt o BSELimt edwit hin du edat e
13.  VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy establishing vigil mechanism for Directors and Employees to

report their concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s Code

of Conduct. The mechanism provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of effected Director(s) and

Employee(s). In exceptional or appropriate cases, Directors and Employees have direct access to the Chairman

oft heAudit Comt t e It is affir rmdt hat no pe sonnd oft heConpany has ben deieda
Committee.

14. REGISTRAR AND SHARE TRANSFER AGENT

The Share Transfer and related activities are being carried out by M/s Skyline Financial Services Private Limited,
Registrar and Share Transfer Agent from the following address:-

M/s Skyline Financial Services Private Limited,
D-153/A, 1%t Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase I, New Delhi — 110020
15. INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND (IEPF)

As on March 31, 2023, there was no unclaimed dividend which are required to be transferred to Investor Education
and Protection Fund.

16. HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT

Our professionals are our most important assets. We are committed to hiring and retaining the best talent
being among the industry’s leading employers. For this, we focus on promoting a collaborative, transparent and
participative organization culture, and rewarding merit and sustain high performance. Our human resources
management focuses on allowing our employees to develop their skills, grow in their career and navigate their next.

17.  APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE (IBC)

As on the date of the Report no application is pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 and the
Conpany didnot fileany applicat ion undeg IBCdur ingt heFinancial Yaar 2022- 23. Fur t h
made any one-time settlement.

18. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

During the year under review, there has been no change in the nature of the business of the Company.

_ ecene /4 '
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19.

20.

21.

22.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

The ehav eben n o mat @ ial chan gs an dco nmit mnt s affect in gt hefinancialposition oft heCor
occur r edbed wen t heen do ft hefinancialy ear oft heConpany t o whicht hefinancial st at emn
of this report.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD & KMP

As on date of this report, the Company’s Board comprises of six (6) directors, out of which three directors are

Independent and Non-Executive and remaining three are Executive Directors including one woman director. The

composition of the Board is in conformity with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and relevant Regulations

of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015. None of the Key Managerial Personnel

(KMP)o ft heConpany is holdin go ficein any ot he Conpany as aKeg Mnag ial P& sonnd. Non
/ KM oft heConpany is disqualiffedundeg any provision oft heConpanie Act, 2013and
SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. During the year under review, there was no

change in the Board of Directors (“Board”) or in key managerial personnel of the Company. The Company has received

declarations from all Independent Directors of the Company that they meet the criteria of independence as prescribed

under subsection (6) of Section 149 of the Act and under Regulation 16 and 25 of SEBI Listing Regulations and there

has been no change in the circumstances affecting their status as independent director of the Company.

TheCompany recognizes andetr aces t heinpor t anceofadive seboar din it s success. Yol
that a truly diverse board will leverage differences in thought, perspective, knowledge, skill, regional and industry

experience, cultural and geographical background, age, ethnicity, race and gender, which will help it, retain its

competitive advantage.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
Your Dretor’'s st at et hat :

i) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended 315t March, 2023, the applicable accounting
standards have been followed and there are no material departures from the same;

ii) the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 31s* Mar ch, 2023andoft hepr ofit oft heConpany for t hey ear en dedo n t hat

iii) t heDr ect or s hav et aken pr opea ands ufficient car efor t hemaint en an ceo f adeg u at eac
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

iv) the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a “going concern basis”;

v) t heDr ect or s hav elaiddown int e nalfinancialcontr ols t o befollowedby t heCo np al
financialcontr ols ar eadegu at ean dar eo p & at in gedfect ivdy;and

vi) the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

DISCLOSURE ON MEETINGS OF THE BOARD AND ITS COMMITTEES/BOARD EVALUATION
BOARD MEETINGS

The ewea ed4(four )meg ing oft heBoar dofDr ect or s oft heConpany hdddur in gt hefinanc
detailed note on the Meetings of the Board is provided in the Corporate Governance Report. The maximum interval
between any two meetings did not exceed 120 days as prescribed in the Companies Act, 2013.

MEETINGS OF COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

As on March 31, 2023, the Board had 3 (Three) Committees viz: Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, Stakeholder Relationship Committee. A detailed note on the the Meetings of committees of the Board
is provided in the Corporate Governance Report that forms part of this Annual Report.

BOARD EVALUATION

Nomination and Remuneration Committee has laid down the criteria for evaluation of performance of the Board,
its committees and the directors. In compliance with Sections 134, 178 of, and Para ll, V and VIII of Schedule IV to,
the Act and Regulation 17 of Para A of Part D of Schedule Il to SEBI Regulations 2015, the Board of Directors, as
per the process recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, has evaluated the effectiveness
of the Board, its Committees and Directors. The evaluation process invited graded responses to a structured
questionnaire, which was largely in line with the SEBI Guidance Note on Board Evaluation, for each aspect of the
evaluation. All the results were satisfactory.

A\ Pl



MA ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23

N " Technology for Happiness

FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAMME FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Company has formulated a programme for Familiarization of Independent Directors with regard to their roles,
rights, responsibilities in the Company, nature of the industry in which the Company operates etc.

During the year under review, the Independent Directors met on February 10, 2023 inter alia, to:
i) Review the performance of Non-Independent Directors, and the Board of Directors as a whole;

ii) Review the performance of the Chairman of the Company, taking into account the views of the Executive and
Non-Executive Directors.

iii) Asses thequality, contet andt imdines s offfowofinfor mt ion be wen t heCo
the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform its duties.

All the Independent Directors were present at the said meeting. The observations made by the Independent Directors
have been adopted and put into force.

23. COMPANY’S VARIOUS POLICIES AND CODE OF CONDUCT

In accordance with the provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
and the Companies Act, 2013 the Company has formulated and implemented the following policies:

i) Nomination & Remuneration Policy

ii) Related Party Transaction Policy

iii) Whistle Blower Policy and Vigil Mechanism

iv) Policy for Determining Material Subsidiary

V) Policy for Board Diversity

vi) Terms and Conditions of appointment of Non-executive & Independent Directors
vii)  Familiarization Programme for Independent Directors

viii)  Policy on preservation of Books of Accounts

ix) Composition of Committees

X) Code of Conduct for the Board of Directors, KMPs and employees of the Company;
xi) Code of Conduct and Procedures for fair disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information
xii)  Anti Sexual Harassment Policy for protection of women workers at work place.

All the Policies are available on Company’s website i.e. www.salora.com. The policies are reviewed periodically by
the Board and updated based on need and requirements.

24. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Maintaining high standards of Corporate Governance has been fundamental to the business of the Company. As
per Regulation 34 read with Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, a separate section on corporate governance practices followed by the Company forms an integral part of this

Annual Report is annexed to this report as Annexure VI.

Ther equis it eca t ificat efromM s. SVWR&Co., PracticingConpany Ser & ar ies ca t ify
conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated under relevant Regulations of SEBI (Listing Obligations &
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, is annexed as Annexure VIII with the report on Corporate Governance.

ACeg t ificat eo ft heCEOan dCFOo ft heConmpany int @ - alia, confir mngt hecorr et ness of
cashflow st at eent s, adeguacy ofint e nalcontrolmasur e andr e@or tingofnmtt a
annexed to this report as Annexure VII.

25.  AUDITORS & THEIR REPORTS:
Statutory Auditors:

The Members at their 53 Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company held on 28" September, 2022 had

appointed M/s. R. Gopal & Associates, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No.000846C), as Statutory

Audit or s oft heConmpany t o holdo fficefor seondt @ moffiveconseutiveydar s i. e f
AGM till the conclusion of 58" Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in 2027.

TheAu dit or s Rpor t on financialst at emnt s offinancialy ear 2022- 23for ns part oft 't
ben no qualificat ion, re @ vation, adve ser ear kor disclaime@ gv en by t heAudit or s
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26.

27.

28.

29.

Theo bs @ vat ions/ comemt s madeby t heSt at ut or y Audit or s in t hdr Audit Rgpor t for
sdfex planat or y andt hea €or edo not call for any fur t he clar ificat ion/ comat s .

Internal Auditors:

On recommendation of Audit Committee, Board of Directors of the Company has appointed M/s. SCV & Co. LLP,
Char t @ edlAccount ant s as int @ nalaudit or s oft heConpany t o conduct int & n al au di
Internal Audit Report is submitted to the Audit Committee of the Board periodically.

Secretarial Auditor:

On recommendation of Audit Committee, Board of Directors of the Company had appointed M/s. SVR & Co.,

Practicing Company Secretaries (Membership No.F10704 CP No.14600) as Secretarial Auditors to conduct the

ser & ar ial audit oft heConpany for t hefi n &@iMairah,2@88 as paedpBdvision of Section 204 of

the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules framed thereunder. The Secretarial Audit Report in Form MR-3 is given

as AMnneure Il andforns part oft his Rport. TheSer & ar ial Audit Rpor t doe n
reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer.

Theobs @ vat ions/ coment s if any nadeby t heSecr @ ar ial Audit or s in t hdr Rpor t for
ar esdfex planat ory andt he gdor edo not callfor any fur t he clar ificat ion/ comant s

Annual Secretarial Compliance Report:

Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 24A of the SEBI Listing Regulations read with SEBI Circulars issued in

t his r ear d, t heConpany has unde t aken an au dit for t hefinancialy er 2022- 23for all af
per SEBI Regulations and Circulars/guidelines issued thereunder. The Annual Secretarial Compliance Report duly

signed by M/s. SVR & Co., Practicing Company Secretaries (Membership No.F10704 CP No.14600) was submitted

to the Stock Exchange (BSE) within stipulated time as per SEBI Listing Regulations.

Cost Auditors:

M/s. Gurvinder Chopra & Co. Cost Accountants carried out the cost audit for applicable business during the

year. The Board of Directors of the Company have appointed M/s. Gurvinder Chopra, Cost Accountants as Cost

Audit or s for financialy er 2023- 24at it s net inghddon My 25 2023at ar em neg at ion a:
Ther em na at ion is subjet t ot her at ification oft henmbe s in t @ n8 of Sect ion 148
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014. As required under Section 148(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 read

with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Amendment Rules, 2014, Company have audited its cost accounting

records audited by a Cost Auditor.

The Company has maintained required cost accounts and records as prescribed under Section 148(1) of the
Conpanie Act , 2013an dt heCost audit reort for t heF. Y 2021- 22was filedwit ht heMn is

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

Thelnt @ nal FinancialContr ols wit hr g encet o financialst at emnt s as des igh edan dinp |
are adequate. During the year under review, no material or serious observation has been received from the Statutory
Audit or s andt helnt @ nal Audit or s oft heConmpany on t hein dficiency or inadejuacy o f

PARTICULARS OF LOANS GIVEN, INVESTMENTS MADE, GUARANTEE GIVEN AND SECURITIES PROVIDED

The Company has not given any loan to any person or other Body Corporate or given any guarantee or provided any security
in connection with a loan to any other person or body corporate pursuant to Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS AND ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The ewea eno mat @ ially sigunificant r dat edlpar t y t r ansact ions ent @ edbd wen t heCo np ar
andt hdr r datives, ecet for t hosediscloselin t hefinancial st at eent s. Al t he
transactions ent @ edby t heConpany wit ht her dat edpar t ies dur in gt hefinancial y er
of business and on an arm’s length basis and whenever required the Company has obtained necessary approval as

per the related transaction policy of the Company.

Accordingly, particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in Section 188(1) along with

t hejust ification for et @ ingint o suchacontract or arrangmnt in For mAOC- 2do e
The Company formulated the policy on ‘Materiality of Related Party’ transactions and on dealing with Related Party
Transactions’, and the same is available at www.salora.com under Investor information section. The details of

related party disclosures form part of the notes to the Financial Statements provided in the Annual Report.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1), 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 as amended are annexed hereto marked as “Annexure - V" and forms part of this report.
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30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

TheConmpany confir n8 conpliancewit ht heap plicabler guir emnt s of Secr & ar ial St an dar ds
DEPOSITS

During the year under review, the Company has neither accepted any deposits nor there were any amounts

out st andingat t hebggnningo ft hey ear whichwe eclas sifiedas “Bposit s”int a ns ofSet i

Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2014 and hence, the requirement for furnishing
of details of deposits which are not in compliance with the Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable.

DISCLOSURE OF ORDERS PASSED BY REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNAL

No sigrificant andnat @ ialor de s hav eben pas seby any Reulat or or Court or Tribur
on the going concern status and the Company’s operations in future.

CREDIT RATING
During the year under review, The Company has not obtained credit rating.
COMPANY'’S POLICY ON PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING

In Terms of the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, the Company framed (a) Code of Internal
Procedures and Conduct for Regulating, Monitoring and Reporting of Trading by Insiders and (b) Code of Fair
Disclosure (c) Code of Practice & Procedure for fair disclosure of unpublished price sensitive information. The
Company'’s Code, inter alia, prohibits dealing in the shares of the Company by an insider, while in possession of
unpublished price sensitive information in relation to the Company and also during certain prohibited periods.

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE

Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal)
Act, 2013 have been provided in the Report on Corporate Governance.

ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO

The Information on conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and out go, which is
required to be given pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 8
of Companies (Account) Rules, 2014 is annexed hereto marked as “Annexure - I” and forms part of this report.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Information regarding Research & Development as required under Sub-section (3)(m) of Section of the Companies Act,
2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is furnished in Annexure- | annexed and forms part of this report.

ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to Section 92(3) read with section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, copies of the Annual Returns
of the Company prepared in accordance with Section 92(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, shall be made accessible at the website of the Company
iehttps://conany. salora conm wp-contet/uploads/ 2023/ 09/ Annual- R& ur n-
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received from its valued shareholders.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Salora International Ltd.

Sd/-

(Gopal Sitaram Jiwarajka)

Date :12.08.2023 Chairman & Managing Director
Place: New Delhi DIN: 00024325
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A.

CONSERVATION OF ENGERY

Annexure - |
STATEMENT CONTAINING PARTICULARS PURSUANT TO SECTION 134(3)(m) OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 8 OF THE COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014

The steps taken or impact on
conservation of energy

: The Company has taken the necessary steps like Enforcing power-
savingpolicies, adopt ingEne g - Efficient Appl
Remote Work Policies for employees for conservation of energy

The steps taken by the company for
utilizing alternate sources of energy

N.A.

The capital investment on energy
conservation equipments

N.A.

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, ADOPTION AND INNOVATION

The efforts made towards technology
absorption

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT (R&D)
LED TV:

a) Ca t ifiedAndr oidTV s iz e32", 43", 50"an d65"ar eu n

b) Developed new high range LED TV with size 55" Web0S. The LED TV
are equipped with state of the art technology like HDR, (High Dynamic
Range) Ultra high resolution, 4K enhance, colour gamut etc.

c) Developed new 32" Smart TV with voice search based on “River0OS”.
The LED TV is equipped with latest android version 9.0. Google play
store, Mira cast etc.

SPEAKER / AUDIO SYSTEMS / HEARABLE:

a) Introduced 2.0 Ch Tower Audio system with Bluetooth connectivity &
wireless microphone

b) Introduced 26" single tower speaker with Bluetooth connectivity, FM
and USB with wired mic support

¢) Introduced 24" twin tower with Bluetooth connectivity, FM and USB
with Wired & Wireless mic support

d) Introduced 32" twin tower with Bluetooth connectivity, FM and USB
with Wired & Wireless mic support

e Soundbar size28 wit hfour (@)front firingsnp
connectivity, USB with Wired mic support is under development.

f) Neckband with Bluetooth connectivity, fast charging support and
dual pairing connectivity has been launched

WEARABLE:

a) Launched Smartwatch with 1.9 "HD curved display and Al intelligent
voice assistant with 500 plus watchfaces, Bluetooth calling and
wireless charging;

b) Launched Smartwatch with 1.5” HD IPS display and Al intelligent
voice assistant with 250 plus watchfaces, Bluetooth calling and
wireless charging;

¢) Launched Smartwatch with 2.1” edge to edge UHD curved display
and Al intelligent voice assistant with 200 plus watchfaces, Bluetooth

calling and wireless charging;

an ces and

deg dev d0 |

aka s wit
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MOBILE ACCESSORIES

a) Smart Chargers 3.4A Dual Output 18W fast Charger with Type C
Cable

b) QC 3.0 plus PD 18W Quick Charger which supports high silicon fast
charging protocol and QC 3.0 class A.

The ben it s deg ive like p
improvement, cost reduction, product
development or import substitution

a) d@omtinuously improving products based on customer feedback and
market trends has lead to higher customer satisfaction.

b) Lower costs have allowed the Company to offer products at more
competitive prices, attracting price-sensitive consumers.

c)Introducingne products havedve sifid
portfolio, reducing dependency on a single product.

d) Domestic production supports local industries,
employment, and contributes to the national economy.

generates

In case of imported technology
(imported during the last three years
reckoned from the beginning of the
financialy er )

i. the details of technology imported
ii. the year of import

iii. whether the technology been fully
absorbed

iv. if not fully absorbed, areas where
absorption has not taken place,
and the reasons thereof

N.A.

The expenditure incurred on research
& development:

a)
b)

Capital

Recurring

(Rs. in lacs)

FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22

0.23 6.35

Total

0.23 6.35

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

inffows dur in gt hey ear
out @ dur in gt hey er

The foreign exchange earned in terms of actual
andt hefo

: Foreign Exchange mainly used during the year under review

Total foreign exchange used and earned: (Rs. in lacs)
a) Foreign Exchange used FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22
b) Foreign Exchange earned 6.08 364.92
Total 6.08 364.92

Date :12.08.2023
Place: New Delhi

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Salora International Ltd.

Sd/-

(Gopal Sitaram Jiwarajka)

Chairman & Managing Director

DIN: 00024325

conpany

dfo rexiclpao et o fr aw mat @ ials / finishadg ods fr o1
inteans of dctaowhtdes forfbosimess purpose and market penetration.
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Annexure - Il

FORM MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2023

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

SALORA INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

(CIN: L74899DL1968PLC004962)

D-13/4 OKHLA INDUSTRIAL AREA,

PHASE-II, NEW DELHI, 110020

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to
good corporate practices by SALORA INTERNATIONAL LIMITED (hereinafter called the company). Secretarial Audit was
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts / statutory compliances
and expressing our opinion thereon.

Auditor’s Responsibility:

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the compliance of the applicable laws and maintenance of records based on
audit. We have conducted the audit in accordance with the applicable Auditing Standards issued by The Institute of The
Company Secretaries of India. The auditing standards require that the Auditor shall comply with statutory and regulatory
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about compliance with applicable laws and
maintenance of records.

et ot heinheg ent limt at ions ofaudit includingint @ nal, financialandop e at ingcontr o
some material misstatement or material non-compliances may not be detected, even though the audit is properly planned
and performed in accordance with the standards.

Unmodified Opinion:

Bas edon our vea ificat ion oft heSALORAI NTERNATI ONAL LI M TEDbo o ks, papea s, mnut ebooks, f
andot he reor ds mint ainelby t heconpany andals o t heinfor mat ion pr ovidedby t heCo np an
authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the company has,

dur ingt heaudit pea iodcov e ingt hefinancial y ear endedon 31. 03. 2023, conpliedwit ht hes't
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in

the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

Wehav eex anmin edt heboo ks, papea s, mnut ebooks, forns andr & ur ns filedandot hea r ecor ds
for t hefinancialy ear en ddon 31. 03. 2023accor dingt ot hepr ovisions of:

i. The Companies Act, 2013(the Act) and the rules made there under;
. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under;
iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of Foreign
Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; - There are no such transaction
was hdddur in gt hefinancial y ear hen cet hes aidAct , Rules andReu lat ions wa enot appli
during the audit period.

V. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992
(‘SEBI Act'): -

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations,
2011;

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2018; (Not applicable on the company during the audit period)

A\ poeiz
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d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008,and The
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021;
(Not applicable on the company during the audit period)

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; Not applicable, as the Company is
not engaged in the activities relating to the Registrar to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents.

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 and The Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021; (Not applicable on the company
during the audit period)

9) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018;(Not applicable on
the company during the audit period)

h) TheSecu r it ies an d Ex chan ggBo ar do f | n dia (Shar eBas edEnp loy eeBen it s )Req |

at ions,

Secur it ies an d Ex chan gBo ar dof I ndia(Shar eBas edEnp loy eeBen it s andSweat equit y

2021. (Not applicable on the company during the audit period)
We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

i. Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India

ii. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
and amendments made thereunder in respect of listing of securities with BSE Limited;

We further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the company and on the examination of the

rdesant documnt s andr ecor ds in pur suancet ha eof, ont est - checkbasis t heconp any has «

to the extent applicable to the Company:

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines
and Standards, etc. made there under for all the above-mentioned laws to the extent possible, except the followings:

A. Observations under the Companies Act, 2013: NA

B. Observations under The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015

Compliance Requirement
Sl (Regulations/ circulars/

No. guidelines including specific Deviations Comments based on Management Reply
clause)

1. | Regulation 33 of SEBI (Listing Late Submission of Though the Company had submitted the

Obligations and Disclosure Standalone Cash Flow |financialr esult s for t hep e

Requirements) Regulations, 2015. | Statement for the year | March 2022 in pdf format in due course
Submission of Financial Results ended 315t March, 2022 | but due to some inadvertent error the
within 60 days from the end of the Standalone Cash Flow was skipped to be
ar uploaded by the Company in pdf format.
However, the Company uploaded the same
when it came to notice to rectify the error
and intimated BSE Ltd. vide letter dated
May 31, 2022.

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive
Directors and Independent Directors. The Changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the
period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act and listing regulations.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent

iode ded 3

at least se en day s in advance andasy st emxists for sekingandobt ainingfur t he infor m

agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

oz /g
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All the decisions were carried unanimously as evident from the minutes of the meeting of the board and other committees
recorded and duly signed by the chairman, there were no dissenting member’s view during the audit period and therefore
dissenting member’s views are not required to be captured and recorded as part of the minutes of the Board.

It has bem obs @ vedt hat Conpany is usually filingfor ns wit hlat efess, howe a t heman agnen t
t hat t heg willconply wit ht henor ns providedint heConpanie Act , 2013an dwill fi leall t hefor

speifiedin t heAct .

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and
operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

Date :04.09.2023 FOR SVR & Co.
Place :Noida Company Secretaries

CS Shivam Rastogi

M.NO: F10704

CP. NO: 14600

PRC No.: 1470/2021

UDIN: FO10704E000937025

Note(s):
i. This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral part of
this report.

ii. We conducted the secretarial audit by examining the Secretarial Records including Minutes, Documents, Registers

andot he reords @ c., providedby way of dect r onicnmo deby t heConpany andcouldr
orignalr eor ds. Theman agment has confir nedt hat t her ecor ds s ubmt t edt o us ar et r ue

iii. This Report is limited to the Statutory Compliances on laws / regulations / guidelines listed in our report which have
ben conp liedby t heConpany up t ot hedat eoft his Rport pea t ainingt o Fin an cial Yar

iv. The Draft Report was given to the Company on 12" August 2023, subsequently UDIN was generated and signed
report issued on 04" September, 2023.

NN
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Annexure A
To,
The Members,
SALORA INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
(CIN: L74899DL1968PLC004962)
D-13/4 OKHLA INDUSTRIAL AREA,
PHASE-II, NEW DELHI, 110020

Our Secretarial Audit Report of even date is to be read along with this letter.
Management Responsibility

1. Maintenance of Secretarial records is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these Secretarial records based on our audit.

Auditors Responsibility

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about
t hecorretnes oft heccont ent s oft heSecr & ar ialr ecor ds. Thev @ ificat ions we edon
corr et fact s ar er dlect edin s er & ar ialr ecor ds. Wbdies et hat t hepr oces s e andpr ac
a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. Whavenot vea ifiedt hecorretnes s andappropriat ene s of financial r ecor ds an d B
company.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of Laws, Rules and
Regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the Provisions of Corporate and other applicable Laws, Rules, Regulations, standards is the
responsibility oft heMainagnmnt . Our e amnat ion was |limt edt o t hev & ificat ion ofpr

Disclaimer

6. TheSecr @ ar ial Audit Repor t is ndt he an assur anceas t ot hefut ur eviability oft heCc

or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

FOR SVR & Co.
Company Secretaries

CS Shivam Rastogi

M.NO: F10704
CP. NO: 14600
Date : 04.09.2023 PRC No.: 1470/2021
Place : Noida UDIN: FO10704E000937025
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Annexure - Il

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

(Pursuant to regulation 34(3) and Schedule V para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To,

The Members of

Salora International Limited

Regl. Office B 13/ 4,

Okhla Industrial Area

Phase Il, New Delhi- 110020

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of Salora

Int @ nat ional Linmt e, hav in gCl N.L74899L.1968PLC004962 an dhav in gr ejst a elo fficeat D 13/ 4, Okhl
Phase II, New Delhi- 110020, India (herein after referred to as the Company), produced before us by the Company for the
purposeofissuingt his Ca t ificat ¢ in accor dan cewit hReg lat ion 34(3)r eedwit ht heSchedu le
of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations 2015.

Inour opinionandt ot hebest ofour infor mt ion andaccor dingt ot hev e ificat ions (incl
(DIN) status at portal (www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to us by the Company and
its office s andconsidea ingr daxat ions g ant edby t heMnistry ofCor por at eAffair s anc
Of India warranted due to spread of Covid-19 Pandemic, we certify that none of the directors as stated below on the
boar dofSalor alnt @ nat ional Limt el hav eben deébar r edor disqualifiedfr ombedngappoint edo
ofconpanie by t heSEBI / Mnistry ofCor por at eAffair s or any suchstatutorty aut hor

March 2023.
Sl. No. Name of Director DIN Date of Appointment
1 Gopal Sitaram Jiwarajka 00024325 28-08-1987
2. Neetu Jiwarajka 00025570 30-06-2016
3. Tarun Jiwarajka 00386240 10-11-2011
4 Karna Singh Mehta 00128166 12-11-2016
5 Sanjeev Kaul Duggal 00004977 28-10-2005
6 ParamarthaSaikia 07145770 07-10-2019

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the management

oft heCompany. Our res ponsibility istoeapress opinionontheebasedon our ve ifi
assuranceas t o t hefut ur eviability oft heConpany nor t hedficiency or dfect ivenes s wit
conducted the affairs of the Company.

FOR SVR & Co.
Company Secretaries

CS Shivam Rastogi

M.NO: F10704
CP.NO: 14600
Date : 05.09.2023 PRC No.: 1470/2021
Place : Noida UDIN: FO10704E000944758
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Annexure - IV

Form AOC-1
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129
read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement Containing Salient Features of the Financial Statement of Subsidiaries / Associate Companies / Joint Ventures
Part “A”: Subsidiaries
(Information in respect of subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs.)
Company doesn’t have any subsidiary company during the reporting period.

SL [PARTICULARS DETAILS

1. Name of the subsidiary No subsidiary

2. |Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from the holding company’s | 31t March, 2023
reporting period
3. Repor tingecurr edmcy an dEx chan gr at eas on t helast dat eo ft her| MavAmplicable an cial y er i
case of foreign subsidiaries
Share capital -

Reserves & surplus -

Total Liabilities -

Investments -

4
5
6. |Total assets -
7
8
9

Turnover -

10. |Pr ofit bdor et ax at ion -

11. | Provision for taxation -

12. |Profit aft @ t ax at ion -

13. |Proposed Dividend -

14. | % of shareholding B

Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures —
Company doesn’t have any Associate or Joint Venture Company during the reporting period.

For and on behalf of the Board of
Salora International Limited

Regd. Office:
D - 13/4, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase — I, Sd/- Sd/-
New Delhi — 110 020 Gopal Sitaram Jiwarajka Tarun Jiwarajka
CIN L74899DL1968PLC004962 Chairman & Managing Director Whole Time Director & CFO
sect@salora.com DIN:00024325 DIN:00386240
Sd/-
Date :12.08.2023 Anubhav Nigam
Place :New Delhi Company Secretary
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Annexure -V

MS PART OF DIRECTORS' REPORT)

Disclosure in Directors’ Report Pursuant To Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 Read With Companies (Appoint-

ment and Remuneration Of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014
SR.
NO. REQUIREMENTS DISCLOSURE
1. |The ratio of the remuneration of each|Name of the Director Ratio
director to the median remuneration of Shri Gopal Sitaram Jiwarajka, Managing Director 32.31%
the employees of the company for the - m - - -
financialy er . Smt. Neetu Jiwarajka, Executive Director 1.9%
Shri Tarun Jiwarajka, Whole Time Director & CFO 7.18%
1) Forthe purpose, sitting Fees paid to the independent
directors have not been considered as remuneration.
2) Figures have been rounded off wherever necessary
2. |The percentage increase in remuneration | Shri Gopal Sitaram Jiwarajka- Managing Director N.A.
ofechDr et or, Chid Finan ¢ihTQTEEH Jiwarajka, Executive Director N.A.
andConpany Ser & ary in t fhefrreareral— - -
year. Shri Tarun Jiwarajka, Whole Time Director & CFO N.A.
Shri Anubhav Nigam, Company Secretary N.A.
3. |The percentage increase in the median | *Nil
remuneration of employees in the|*Due to decrease in number of employees in comparison to previous
financialy er FY t heincr eas ein mdian r em n @ at ion can’'t beas ¢a t ain .
4. | The number of permanent employees on | There were 39 employees as on March 31, 2023.
the rolls of company
5. |Average percentile increase already |There is no average increase recorded in remuneration for Employees
made in the salaries of employees other | other than Managerial Personnel during the period under review.
than the managerial personnel in the last | Further, average managerial remuneration was showing an increment
financial year andit s co np pduetooresigwattomand appointment of new Key Managerial Personnel.
the percentile increase in the managerial | This revision is in line with factors outlined in Remuneration Policy
rewmnegation and just ifiqaf fte Corhpray.edther than this, there are no any other exceptional
and point out if there are any exceptional | circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration.
circumstances for increase in the
managerial remuneration.
6. |Affir mt ion t hat t he r ew nd tatisohw ey affir nedt hat t her em n @ at ion is as p|e t heRem
as per the remuneration policy of the|Policy of the Company.
Company.
General Note:
1. Profit oft heConpany is calculat edas pa Sect ion 1980 ft heCo np anies Act , 2013
2. Managerial Personnel includes Chairman and Managing Director, Whole Time Director, Executive Director and Key

Managerial Personnel.
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Annexure - VI

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Report ofCor por at eGov e nancefor t heffiMarcieiz038 mterensadefiBdgulation 34(3) read with Section
“C” of Schedule V to SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Listing Regulations, 2015).

COMPANY'’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

This Corporate Governance report states compliance of the requirement of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and SEBI
(Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, (‘'Listing Regulations’), the Articles of Association of
the Company and in accordance with the best practices in Corporate Governance.

Corporate Governance is about commitment to values and ethical business conduct. The Company believes in adopting

best practices in the area of corporate governance and follows the principles of full transparency and accountability by
providinginfor mt ion on various issue concea ningt hebusine s andfinancial pea foi
Company’s activities are carried out in accordance with good corporate practices and Company is constantly striving
tobatea t hemandadopt t hebest pr act ices. It is fir nhy bdies edt hat godg v & n an cep r act
conduct of the affairs of the Company and help the Company to achieve its goal of maximizing value for all its stakeholders.

The Company will continue to focus on resources, strengths and strategies to achieve its vision.

The Company emphasizes on the need of complete transparency and accountability in all its dealing to protect shareholder’s
int g ests. Thepvea nancefr amewor kencour ags t hedficient ut ilization ofr esour ces andac
The Board considers itself as the custodian of trust and acknowledges its responsibilities towards stakeholders.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is entrusted with an ultimate responsibility of the management, directions and performance of the Company.

As it s primr y roleis fiduciary nat ure t heBoar dpr ovides leade s hip, st r at eggcg idan ce
the company’s management while discharging its responsibilities, thus ensuring that the management adheres to ethics,
transparency and disclosures.

The Company’s Board comprises people of eminence and repute who bring the required skills, competence and expertise
that allow them to make effective contribution to the Board and its committees.

The Board takes care of the business and stakeholders’ interest. The Non-executive & independent directors are well
qgualififedandex pea iencadpea sons fromgneg alcor por at eman agmant . TheBo ar d Mnbe s t akean
Board and committee meetings and provide valuable guidance to the management on various aspects of business.

Non Executive & Independent directors play a critical role in balancing in functioning of the Board by providing independent
judgments on various issues raised in the Board Meetings like formulation of business strategies, monitoring of performances etc.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company’s Board is constituted in compliance with the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, SEBI (Listing
Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing Regulations’) and Articles of Association of the
Company and in accordance with the best practices of Corporate Governance. As on date, Company has six (6) directors,
out of which three directors are Independent and Non-Executive and three are Executive Directors including one woman
dir ect or . Al dir ect or s havedivea sexpea iemceandbackg oundfulfillingt hest at ut or y as w

CATEGORY OF DIRECTORS, ATTENDANCE ATTHE BOARD MEETINGS, ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING AND SHAREHOLDING
OF EACH DIRECTOR:

No. of Board Meetings Attendance at the No. of Equity

Name of Director DIN Category held & attended during last AGM held on | Shares held in the

the financial year September 28, 2022 Company
Shri Gopal 00024325 Promoter & 4 out of 4 es 23,39,011
Sitaram Jiwarajka Executive (26.56%)
Shri Tarun 00386240 Promoter & 4 out of 4 Yes 3,72,741
Jiwarajka Executive (4.23%)
Smt. Neetu 00025570 Promoter & 4 out of 4 s 731,410
Jiwarajka Executive (8.30%)
Shri Sanjeev Kaul | 00004977 | Independent & 2 out of 4 Yes Nil
Duggal Non Executive
Shri Karna Singh |00128166| Independent & 4 out of 4 s Nil
Mehta Non Executive
Shri  Parmaratha|07145770| Independent & 4 out of 4 No Nil
Saikia Non Executive

'
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Shri Gopal Sitaram Jiwarajka, currently holds position of the Chairman & Managing Director of the Company. Shri Tarun
Jiwarajka, holds the position of Whole Time Director and CFO of the Company. At the ensuing Annual General Meeting Smt.
Neetu Jiwarajka, director is liable to retire by rotation and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Shri Gopal Sitaram Jiwarajka, is Chairman & Managing Director of the Company. He possesses rich experience

acr os s t hefidds ofnmanufact ur ing mar kd ingandconsuna ods. Hehas sea vahis dut
in PHD Chamber of Commerce and Industry, New Delhi. He is having in depth knowledge of Indian market conditions

for business of consumer electronics, telecom and IT products. Under his leadership, the company has focused on
strategcpartneaships, product dive sificat ion andnar k¢ expansion.

. Shri Tarun Jiwarajka, is Whole Time Director & CFO of the Company. He is commerce graduate and possesses rich
experience in Marketing, Finance, Production and Administration and has extensively traveled all over the globe. He
possesses rich experience in TV and electronic industry and possesses in depth knowledge of Indian conditions in
respect of this industry.

Smt. Neetu Jiwarajka, is Executive Director of the Company. She has got an enormous experience and exposure.

Shehas contr ibut elhe ex pea iencein t heffddofBusine s Bvdopmnt. Shelooks aft @ p
business in Life Style product business of the Company. On humanitarian and social grounds too, she is a personality

to adore for generations to come.

NON-EXECUTIVE & INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Shri Sanjeev Kaul Duggal, is Independent & Non Executive Director of the Company. Shri Sanjeev Kaul Duggal,
is winner of Udyog Rattan Award of Institute of Economic Studies and “Creating Corporate Advantage in Global
Economy” of Delhi School of Economics. He is the founder & CEO of Centum Learning Limited, an Indian Multinational
Training & Skills Company with operations in over 19 countries.

Shri Karna Singh Mehta, is also Independent & Non Executive Director of the Company. He is a Chartered Accountant
by profession and spearing head of M/s. S.S. Kothari Mehta & Co., Chartered Accountants. He has specialization
in Corporate Financial Planning & Corporate Restructuring, Project Financing, Business Valuation, etc. In the recent
past he headed important position, like director of SEBI, National Stock Exchange, President of PHD Chamber of
Commerce and Industry, Delhi.

Shri Paramartha Saikia, is also Independent & Non Executive Director of the Company. Shri Paramartha Saikia

holds Master degree in Economics from University of Delhi and has more than 25 years experience in the world

ofmar kd ingandbr anddes doprmant . Hes & v edas Chid Ex ecut iv eOffice (CEO)o fJ. Walt @ Tho |
Malaysia. He also served as CEO of IRIS India and CEO of Publicis India and on the management board of McCann

Erickson, Grey and EURO RSCG.

THE DETAILS OF EACH MEMBER OF THE BOARD ALONG WITH THE NUMBER OF DIRECTORSHIP(S) / COMMITTEE
MEMBERSHIP(S) / CHAIRMANSHIP(S), IN OTHER COMPANIES ARE PROVIDED HEREIN BELOW:

. .. Number of mandatory
Numgg e:fclz%ec;g;':glp N | committee Memberships in

P other Public companies

Name of Director Category Chairman of Board Chairman Committee
the Board Member of the Member
Committee

Shri Gopal Sitaram Jiwarajka |Executive & Promoter - 3 - -
Shri Tarun Jiwarajka Executive & Promoter - 3 - -
Smt. Neetu Jiwarajka Executive & Promoter - 4 - -
Shri Sanjeev Kaul Duggal Non Executive & Independent - 4 - -
Shri Karna Singh Mehta Non Executive & Independent - - - -
Shri Paramartha Saikia Non Executive & Independent - 6 1 3

Noneoft hedir ect or s ont heConpany’'s Boar dho ldo fficeas dir ect or in nor et han 10t e1 )Co nmi
no r et han 5(fiv acr os s allt helist edconp anies in whichhe s heis aDr ect or . Neces s ar y dis clo s t
positions in other public companies as on 315t March, 2023 have been made by all the Directors. All Independent Directors

have given declarations that they meet the criteria of Independence as laid down in Section 149(6) & (7) of the Companies

Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1)(b) of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,2015.

A\ poei
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DISCLOSURE OF RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN DIRECTORS INTER-SE

Shri Gopal Sitaram Jiwarajka, Chairman & Managing Director, Smt. Neetu Jiwarajka, Executive Director and Shri Tarun
Jiwarajka, Whole Time Director & CFO, are relative of each other and are promoters & Directors of the Company. Except
these, none of the directors are related to each other.

MATRIX OF CORE SKILLS / EXPERTISE / COMPETENCIES OF THE BOARD

TheBo ar dhas ident ifi edt hefollowingcor eskills / expa tise/ conpe encies wit hr a encet o it

ingnapr

fan et &

n, andfi

a for mn

1. Knowledge of company’s business
2. Strategic, futuristic and growth oriented vision
3. Operational, Finance, Marketing, Brand and business development competencies
4. Human Resource, Administration and decision making
5. Corporate Governance
S. NAME OF
NO. DIRECTOR EXPERTISE IN SPECIFIC FUNCTIONAL AREA
1. | Shri Gopal Ex p er dedleade s hip ex pea iencefor asigrificant ent @ prise r e ulf
Sitaram Jiwarajka | of organizations, processes, strategic planning and risk management. Strengths in developing
talent, planning succession, and driving change and long-term growth.
2. | Shri Tarun Experience in developing strategies to grow sales and build brand awareness & equity and
Jiwarajka enhance enterprise reputation.
3. | Smt. Neetu A deep understanding of consumer preferences, trends and market dynamics related to
Jiwarajka products that cater to individuals’ lifestyles, tastes and preferences to enhance various aspects
of a person’s life, from fashion and beauty to home decor and leisure activities.
4. | Shri Sanjeev Kaul |Service on company board to develop insights about maintaining board and management
Duggal accountability, protecting shareholder interests and observing appropriate governance
practices.
5. | ShriKarna Singh |[Leade s hip ofafinancialfir mor nman agment o ft hefinancefunct ion
Mehta in proficiemcy in conplex financial managmant , capit al allocat io
procese, or xpeaiemcein activdy supea visingapr incipalfipancialoff
office , controlle, publicaccount ant, audit or or pa son f
6. |Shri Paramartha |A wide range of skills and knowledge required to effectively promote products, services, or
Saikia brands to target audiences and understanding consumer behavior, crafting compelling
messages, utilizing various channels and adapting strategies based on market trends.

The Company has placed the details of familiarization program imparted to Independent Directors on the its website i.e.
www.salora.com.

BOARD PROCEDURE

The Board agenda comprises of relevant information on various matters related to the working of the Company, especially
those that require deliberation at the Board level. The Company provides the information as set out in Regulation 17 read
with Part “A” of Schedule Il of the Listing Regulations to the Board and the Board Committees to the extent it is applicable
and relevant. Such information is submitted either as part of the Agenda papers in advance of the respective meetings or by
way of presentations and discussions during the Meetings. To enable the Board to discharge its responsibilities effectively,
the Chairman, Whole Time Director, Independent Directors review the overall Company’s performance. In addition to the
legal matters compulsorily required to be dealt, the Board also reviews:

a)
b)
c)
d)
e)
f)
)

__ecen /g

Strategy and business plans

Approvalofunaudit edfinancialr sult s quart ely / audit edfinancialr esults annu

Listing regulations, attending to shareholders’ grievances, etc.

Annual operating and capital expenditure budgets and any updates

Investment of Company’s funds, if any

Compliance with statutory / regulatory requirements and review of major legal issues

Any other matter which is serious in nature or requires the attention of the Board.

C
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BOARD MEETINGS

TheBo ar dneg at r ey lar int @ vals t o discuss anddecideint @ - aliaon busine s str at gges/ p
performance of the Company. The Board meetings are pre-scheduled and a tentative annual calendar of the Board meeting
is circulated to the Directors well in advance to facilitate them to plan their schedules accordingly.

The notice and detailed agenda along with relevant notes and other material information are sent to each director and in
exceptional cases tabled at the meeting with approval of the Board. This ensures timely and informed decisions by the
Board. The Board reviews the performance of the Company vis-a-vis the budgets / targets.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

D r in gt hefin an cial y ear seviamh32023 four (4) meetings of Board of Directors were held i.e. on 30" May, 2022,
12% August, 2022, 14" November, 2022 and 10™ February, 2023. The intervening gap between the meetings was within the
period prescribed under Section 173 of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations.

SEPARATE MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

During the year under review, the Independent Directors met separately on February 10, 2023 inter alia to discuss
i) Evaluation of performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board of Directors as a whole;

i) Evaluation of performance of chairman of the Company taking into account the views of Executive and Non
Executive Directors;

iii) Evaluation oft hequality, contents andt imdineofffowofinfor mt ion bea wen t henan
is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform its duties and other related matters.

CERTIFICATE FROM COMPANY SECRETARY IN PRACTICE

TheConp any has r ecév edacea t ificat eunde Clau s el0()o fPar t C, Schedu leVfr omW s. SVR&Co . , |
Secr @ ar y (Mabe s hip No. F10704CP No . 14600)co n fir min gt hat noneo ft hedir ect or s on t heBo ar
ben debar r edor disqualifiedfr o mbedngcont inuingas direct or s oft heConpany by Mnistry
other statutory authority. The same forms part of this report.

DISCLOSURES / POLICIES/CODE OF CONDUCT

The Company is in compliance with the requirements of regulatory authorities on capital markets and compliances under
the Regulations and Laws applicable on the Company in a timely manner and all the mandatory requirements of SEBI
(Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015.

The Company has put Mandatory Policies and Code of Conducts on its website to provide better means to the
existence of corporate governance in its operations. Following policies/guidelines are available on Company’s website
www.salora.com

1) Code of Conduct for the Board of Directors, KMPs and employees of the Company;
2) Code of Conduct and Procedures for fair disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information
3) Nomination & Remuneration Policy

4) Related Party Transaction Policy

5) Whistle Blower Policy and Vigil Mechanism

6) Policy for Determining Material Subsidiary

7) Policy for Board Diversity

8) Terms and Conditions of appointment of Non-executive & Independent Directors
9) Familiarisation Programme for Independent Directors

10)  Policy on preservation of Books of Accounts

11)  Composition of Committees

12)  Anti Sexual Harassment Policy for protection of women workers at work place.

BOARD COMMITTEES

TheBo ar do fDr ect or s has const it ut edlBoar dCommit t es t o deal wit hs p ecificar eas an dact iv it ies
and require a closure review. The Board Committees are formed with the approval of the Board and they function under their

respective charters. These Committees play an important role in overall management of the day to day affairs and Governance

of the Company. The Board Committees meet at regular intervals and take necessary steps to perform duties as entrusted by

the Board. The Minutes of the Committee Meetings are placed before the Board at every Board Meeting for noting.
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The Board has constituted following committees viz. Audit Committee, Nomination & Remuneration Committee and
Stakeholder Relationship Committee in compliance of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder read with SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015. The details of the committees are as follows:

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The terms of reference of the Audit as stated below is in the line with what is mandated in Regulation 18 of the SEBI Listing
Regulations and Section 177 of the Act:

1. Ovea sidht oft heConpany'’s financialr eor tingpr oces s andt hedisclosur eofit s finan
t hefinancialinfor mat ion is corr et , sufficient an dcr dible

2. Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of company’s auditors;

3. Rev iewin gwit ht heman agment , t heannual financial st at eent s andaudit or s'r @ort t he

to Board for approval;

4, Rev iewin gwit ht heman agment , t hequar t @ ly financialst at eent s bfor esubms sion t o
5. Review and monitor the auditors’ independence and performance and effectiveness of audit process;
6. Apbprovalor any subseuet nodificat ion oft her dat edparty transactions;
7. Evaluat ion ofint @ nalfinancialcontr olandr iskmnagmet oft heConpany;
8. Reviewing with the management performance of Statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the internal control
systems;
9. Dscussions wit hint @ nalauditor s ofany sigrificant finding andfollowup t he e

10.  Discussion with statutory auditors before audit commences about the nature and scope of audit as well as post
audit discussion to ascertain the area of concern;

11. To review functioning of the Whistle Blower Mechanism;

122 Mpprovalofappointmnt of CFO(. e wholet inedir ect or or any ot he pea son hed
ascag t ainingqualificat ion, e p & ien cean dbackg o un d;

13. Reviewt heMan agment Ds cussion andAnaly sis offinancialcondition andr esults ofop:¢
14. Reviewt heSt at eent ofsigrificant r dat edlparty transactions;
15.  Review the Internal Audit Report relating to internal control weaknesses

COMPOSITION OF COMMITTEE

As on March 31, 2023, the Audit Committee comprises of four (4) members, out of which three (3) are Independent &
Non Executive Directors namely Shri Karna Singh Mehta as Chairman, Shri Sanjeev Kaul Duggal and Shri Paramartha
Saikia and one Executive Director namely Shri Tarun Jiwarajka as member. Shri Karna Singh Mehta, Chairman of the Audit
Committee was present at the last Annual General Meeting held on 28" September, 2022 meeting the statutory compliance
requirement.

ur in gt hefin an cial y ear s‘dvlateh32023 four (4) meetings of Audit Committee were held i.e. on 30t May, 2022, 12"
August, 2022, 14" November, 2022 and 10™ February, 2023.

The Attendance of each member of the Audit Committee is as follows:

S. No. |Name Designation | Attendance at Committee meeting during the financial year 2022-23
1. Shri Karna Singh Mehta | Chairman 4 out of 4
2. Shri Sanjeev Kaul Duggal | Member 2 out of 4
3. Shri Paramartha Saikia | Member 4 out of 4
4. Shri Tarun Jiwarajka Member 4 out of 4

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The broad terms of reference of Nomination and Remuneration Committee as stated below is in compliance with Section
178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of the Listing Regulations, 2015.

1. To Idnt ify pa sons who ar equalifiedt o beco nedir ect or s andwho may beappoint ein
accordance with criteria laid down and recommend to the Board of Directors their appointment and removal and
shall specify the manner for effective valuation of performance of Board & its committees;

2. To for mulat et hecr it @ iafor dd @ mningqualificat ions, positiveattribut e andi
recommend the Board of Directors a policy relating to remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and
other employees;

oz /g '
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To lay down / formulate the evaluation criteria for performance evaluation of independent directors and the Board;
4. To devise a policy on Board diversity;

To recommend the Board whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the
basis of the report of performance evaluation of independent directors;

To recommend to the Board all remuneration in whatever form payable to senior management;

7. For every appointment of an independent director, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall evaluate the
balance of skills, knowledge and experience on the Board and on the basis of such evaluation, prepare a description
of the role and capabilities required of an independent director. The person to be recommended to the Board for
appoint mnt as an indep endent dir ect or s hall hav et hecap abilit ies ident ifiedin s uchdes cr

8. To unde t akes pecificdut ies as may bepr e cr ibedby t heBo ar dfr omt inet o t ine

COMPOSITION OF COMMITTEE

As on March 31, 2023, the Committee consists of four (4) members out of which three members are Independent and Non
Executives Directors namely Shri Sanjeev Kaul Duggal, as Chairman, Shri Karna Singh Mehta and Shri Paramartha Saikia
and one Executive Director Shri Gopal Sitaram Jiwarajka, as members of the Committee.

iringt hefinancial y ear 2022- 23t heNo nin at ion &Rew n & at io ri" Mayngd22 Ereshttendardee of
each member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is as follows:

S. No. [ Name Designation | Attendance at Committee meeting during the financial year 2022-23
1. Shri Sanjeev Kaul Duggal Chairman 1 out of 1
2. Shri Karna Singh Mehta Member 1 out of 1
3. Shri Paramartha Saikia Member 1 out of 1
4. Shri Gopal Sitaram Jiwarajka | Member 1 out of 1

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION POLICY & CRITERIA FOR PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

The Board on recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee has framed a Nomination & Remuneration
Policy providing (a) selection, appointment and removal (b) Remuneration (c) Evaluation of performance and (d) Board
diversity. The Company has already put the said policy on its website: www.salora.com

CRITERIA AND QUALIFICATIONS

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for selection of a member on the Board or KMP of the Company. The
No nin at ion andRew n & at ion Co nmit t eefollows deéinecr it @ iafor ident ifying screning r
candidate for appointment as a Director or KMP. The criteria for appointment include:

i. Composition of the Board, which is commensurate with the size of the Company, its portfolio, geographical spread
and its status as a listing Company;
ii. Diversity on the Board or in the Company;

iii. Size of the Board with optimal balance of skills, experience and balance of Executive and Non-Executive Directors
consistent with the requirements of law;

iv. Professionalqualifications, expea tiseande pea iemcein speificar emofr dev ancet ot
V. Balance of skills and expertise in view of the objectives and activities of the Company;
vi. Avoidanceofany presext or potentialconflict ofint g et ;
vii. Availability of time and other commitments for proper performance of duties;
viii.  Personal characteristics being in line with the company’s values, such as integrity, honesty, transparency, pioneering
mindset.

APPOINTMENT / TERM / TENURE

The directors of the Company are appointed / re-appointed by the Board on recommendations of Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and approval of the Members at the General Meetings. In accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company, provisions of the Act and the term of the appointment, the directors are liable to retire by
rotation at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) each year and, if eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. The Executive
Directors on the Board have been appointed as per the provisions of the Act and in accordance with the terms of their
contract of employment / contract of service with the Company. None of the Independent Director(s) of the Company
resigned before expiry of his tenure. With regard to the appointment and the tenure of Executive Directors, the policy
adopted by the Board is as follows:

A\ poeis
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The Company appoints or re-appoints any person as its Executive Chairman, Managing Director or Executive Director for a
te mot excedingfiveyar s at atime Nore appoint mnt s hall benadeear lie t han o n ey ear bdo

As regards the appointment and tenure of Independent Directors, following policy is adopted by the Board:

. The Company has adopted the provisions with respect to appointment and tenure of Independent Directors which
are consistent with the Act and Listing Regulations;

Thelndgp endent Dr ect or s can s veamximumoft wot e ns offiveyaers ech;

The Company does not have any upper age limit of retirement of Independent Directors from the Board and their
appointment and tenure will be governed by the provisions of the Act and the Listing Regulations. The Company
shall ensure that the appointment of any Non-Executive Director who has attained the age of 75 years is approved
by the Members of the Company by way of a Special Resolution.

REMOVAL

Nomination & Remuneration Committee have right to recommend removal of any Director, KMP or Senior Managerial

Pe sonndt ot heBoar dfor any disqualificat ion nnt ionelint heConpanie Act, 20130r un
rules and regulations made thereunder, with the reasons recorded in writing, subject to the provisions and compliance of

the said act, rules and regulations.

STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The broad terms of reference of Stakeholder Relationship Committee is in compliance with Section 178 of the Companies
Act , 2013an dRegi lat ion 200 f SEBI List in gReg lat ion sar 20T (S déBodusiln IRI 1 ).

The Committee looks into various aspects of interest of shareholders including redressal of shareholders complaints and
grievances, transposition/transmission of shares, issue of duplicate shares, recording re-materialization/dematerialization
of shares and all other related matters.

The term of reference the committee shall inter-alia include the following:

1. Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the listed entity including complaints related to transfer/
transmssionofshares, non-redpt ofannualreort, issueofnev/ duplicat ecea
2. Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders.

Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the listed entity in respect of various services being
rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.

4. Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the listed entity for ensuring timely receipt of annual reports/
statutory notices by the shareholders of the Company.

COMPOSITION OF COMMITTEE

As on March 31, 2023, the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee is comprises of Shri Karna Singh Mehta, as Chairman
and Shri Sanjeev Kaul Duggal (Independent Directors) and Shri Tarun Jiwarajka (Executive Director) as member of the
Committee.

r in gt hefi n an cial y er sdlateh32023 the Committee met four timesi.e. on 30" May, 2022, 12" August, 2022, 14
November, 2022 and 10% February, 2023. The member’s attendance at the Stakeholder Relationship Committee Meetings
dur ingt hefinancialy er 2022- 23is as follows:

S. No. [Name Designation | Attendance at Committee meeting during the financial year 2022-23
1. Shri Karna Singh Mehta | Chairman 4 out of 4
2. Shri Sanjeev Kaul Duggal | Member 2 outof 4
3. Shri Tarun Jiwarajka Member 4 out of 4

DETAILS OF FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMME FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Whenever any person joins the Board of the Company as an Independent Director, an induction programme is arranged
for him / her wherein he / she is familiarized with the activities of the Company, their roles, rights and responsibilities in
the Company, the code of conduct to be adhered, nature of the industry in which the Company operates, business model
of the Company, meeting with the senior management team members, etc. The details of familiarization programme for
Directors are available on the company’s website i.e. www.salora.com.

_ ecee /4 '
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CRITERIA OF MAKING PAYMENTS TO NON EXECUTIVE & INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Non Executive & Independent Directors are paid sitting fees for each of the meeting attended by them i.e. Board
Meeting(s) and Audit Committee Meeting(s). The Company has laid down the criteria for making payments to the Non-
Executive Directors. The details of such criteria are available in the Remuneration Policy disseminated on the company’s
website i.e. www.salora.com.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Shri Gopal Sitaram Jiwarajka, Shri Tarun Jiwarajka and Smt. Neetu Jiwarajka, are executive directors of the Company. The
appointment and remuneration of Executive Directors is governed by the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and resolutions passed by the Board of Directors and approved by the Shareholders of the Company at the
Annual General Meeting & that of the Central Government and such other authorities as may be necessary. Details of
remuneration paid to executive directors are given below and the same is also provided in the Annual Return (MGT-7) Link
to access the same is provided in the Annual Report.

Name of MD/WTD/ED/Manager
S. . . Shri Gopal . Total
No. Particulars of Remuneration Sitaram S!\rl Tarun Sn_1t. Ngetu Amount
Jiwarajka Jiwarajka | Jiwarajka
(MD) (WTD) (ED)
1 |Gross Salary
(a) |Salary as per provisions contained in Sec.17(1) of the 6,63,929| 23,86,680 291,768 33,42,377
Income Tax Act, 1961
(b) |Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income Tax Act, - - - -
1961
() [Profits inliasw ofsalary u/ s 17(3)I n cq neTax Act|, 1961 - - -
Stock Option - - - -
3 | Sweat Equity - - - -
4 | Commission - - - -
*as %0 f Pr o fi t -
*others, specify B
5 | Others, please specify - - - -
Total (A) 6,63,929| 23,86,680| 2,91,768| 33,42,377
Ceiling as per the Act (Pursuant to the Section Il Part Il of|1,20,00,000| 24,00,000 7,20,000(1,51,20,000
Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 and with the consent
of Shareholders through Special Resolution)

DETAILS OF SITTING FEES TO INDEPENDENT & NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Thede ails oft hesit t ingfes paidt o Non Exeut ive&lndpendant Dr ect or s dur ingt hefinancia

Board Audit Nomination & Remuneration | Stakeholder’s Relationship | Total Sitting
Name of the Director Meeting | Committee Meeting Committee Meeting Committee Meeting Fee
(Rs.) (Rs.) (Rs.) (Rs.) (Rs.)
Shri Karna Singh Mehta 40,000 40,000 - - 80,000
Shri Sanjeev Kaul Duggal | 20,000 20,000 40,000
Shri Paramartha Saikia 40,000 40,000 80,000

There are no signs of pecuniary relationships or transactions between Non-Executive Directors’ vis-a-vis the Company
except paymnt ofsittingfes for t hemes ing at t en dedby t hendu r in gtMaech2@R3cial y ear

VIGIL MECHANISM & WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

TheConpany has et ablis hadnees sary Vigl Mchanis m/ Wist leBlowea Policy, as ddineunde ¢
Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 22 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and

rules made thereunder as amended from time to time for its directors and employees to report the genuine concerns about

unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud and violation of Company's Code of Conduct or Ethics Policy.

en ded 31

The Company has provided a dedicated e-mail address: ks.mehta@sskmin.comfor r e or t ingsuchconcea n. It is
that no personnel have been denied to access the Chairman of the Audit Committee. The Policy is available on the

Company’s website at following link: http://salora.com/pdf/whistleblower_policy_salora.pdf
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CODE OF CONDUCT

The Company has adopted Code of Business Conduct & Ethics (“the Code”) which is applicable to the Board of Directors

and all employees of the Company. The Board of Directors and the members of senior management team of the Company

ar er gguir edt o affir mconp lian ceo ft his Codeon an annu al basis. Adelar at ion s igr edby t heMan
Ex ecut iv eOffice oft heConmpany t ot his €fect is placedin t his annualr e@eor t. TheCoder guir
to act honestly, fairly, ethically and with integrity, conduct themselves in professional, courteous and respectful manner.

The Code of Conducts of the Company is available on the company’s website at www.salora.com

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

Location and time, where last three AGMs held -

Venue Financial Year Scheduled Date & Time
Registered office of the Company: "
Address: D-13/4, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase - II, New Delhi — 110 020 2019-20 30 September, 2020

Mode : Video Conferencing (“VC")/ Other Audio- Visual Means (“OAVM”) AUTT.00 AM.

Registered office of the Company:
Address: D-13/4, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase — Il, New Delhi — 110 020 2020-21
Mode : Video Conferencing (“VC")/ Other Audio- Visual Means (“OAVM")
Registered office of the Company:

Address: D-13/4, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase — Il, New Delhi — 110 020 2021-22
Mode : Video Conferencing (“VC")/ Other Audio- Visual Means (“OAVM")

The details of special resolutions passed in AGM in the last 3 years are as follows:

29" September, 2021
At 11.00 A.M.

28" September, 2022
At 11.00 AM.

AGM No. |Brief description of the Resolutions passed

1. Appointment of Shri Paramartha Saikia, as Non Executive & Independent Director;
51 AGM [2. Appointment of Shri Tarun Jiwarajka, as Whole Time Director;
3. Rat ificat ion ofCost Auditor s'reunga at ion
52" AGM |1. Appointment of Shri Karna Singh Mehta, as Non Executive & Independent Director;
2. Appointment of Smt. Neetu Jiwarajka, as Executive Director;
3. Rat ificat ion ofCost Auditors'reung at ion
53¢AGM [1. Appointmnt ofStatutory Auditor s oft heConpany for conseutivetea mof
2. Appointment of Shri Gopal Sitaram Jiwarajka, as Managing Director;
3. Rat ificat ion ofCost Audit or s'rewuneg at ion

E-Voting/Poll: E-Voting/Poll facility provided at Annual General Meeting of the Company was compliance of provisions of
Section 108 of the Act read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended
from time to time, and Regulation 44 of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

OTHER DISCLOSURES

i. The Chair man & Man agn gDr ect or an d Chid Fin an cial Office of t heConpany hav ece t ifi e abo
stateents, inteaenalcontrolandaccountingpolicies & c. for t hefinancialy ear 2022-
17(8) read with Part B of Schedule Il of the Listing Regulations;

iii. Dsclosur es on mat @ ially siguificant r dat elparty transaction t hat my havepot en
Company at large:

All t her dat edparty transactions ent @ e, dur ingt heFYen ded o n Mar ch 31, 2023, wea e
Mat @ iality of Rdat elPar t y Tr ans act ions anddealingwit hRdat ed Par t ies”. Thea ear en o
rdat dparty transactions oft heConpany whichhavepot entialconflict wit ht heint
The particulars of transactions between the Company and its related parties as per the “IND AS” mentioned in notes
tothefinancialst at emnt s.

iii. Detail of non-compliance by the Company, penalties and strictures imposed on the Company by Stock Exchange or
SEBI or any statutory authority on any matter related to capital markets, during the last three years:

There has been no Instances of non-compliance by the Company on any matter related to capital markets, during the last
three years and hence, no penalties or strictures was imposed by Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any Statutory Authority.

iv. Details of compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of non mandatory requirements of this clause.
The Company has fully complied with the mandatory requirements of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015:

__ eceze /g '
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vi.

vii.

viii.

Xi.

Xii.

The Company has complied with the mandatory requirement of the listing regulations. Further, the Company has
also put its best endeavour to comply with non-mandatory requirement(s).

Disclosure in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal)
Act, 2013:

SL No. PARTICULARS NO.
1. Numbe ofconplaint s fileddur in gt hefinancial y er NIL
2. Nunmbe ofconplaint s disposeofdur ingt hefinancialy er NIL
3 Nunmbe ofconplaint s pendingas on endo ft hefinancialy ear NIL

Web link where policy on dealing with related party transactions is disclosed on the website of the Company
www.salora.com.

The Policy on dealing with Related Party Transactions is available on the website of the Company and the
web-link for the same is www.salora.com.

The Management discussion and Analysis Report form part of this Annual Report.

To maintain high level of legal, ethical, and moral standard and to provide gateway for employees to raise concern, if

any, in a reasonable and effective manner about serious malpractice, abuse, or wrongdoing within the organization,

t heConp any has Wiist leBlowea Policy an dhas et ablis hedv igl mechan is ms y st eman dweaffir n
year under review, no personnel have been denied access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. The mechanism

has been communicated to all concern and posted on the Company’s website www.salora.com.

Ca t ificat eon Cor por at eGovea nancePur suant t o ScheduleVoft heSEBI LOR, t hecea t
Company Secretary on Corporate Governance will be annexed hereinafter.

There has been no instance of non-compliance of any requirement of Corporate Governance report as
prescribed under SEBI LODR.

Disclosure with respect to demat suspense account/unclaimed suspense account: The details of shares already
transferred into IEPF Account are provided on the website of the Company at www.salora.com.

CREDIT RATING

During the year under review, the Company has not taken credit rating from any Credit Rating Agencies.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

All information relating to the Company and its performance, including quarterly results, annual report and any other
information prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 are available on the company’s website www.salora.com

A designated email id sect@salora.com exclusively for the shareholders / investors to lodge their complaints /
grievances and information about the said email id has been posted on the Company’s website.

To process Investor Complaints in a centralized web-based Complaints redress system through SEBI SCORES.

All t hemat @ ial infor mt ion includin gdelar at ion of quar t @ ly / half yearly andann
prescribed formats promptly report to Stock Exchange (BSE Limited), where equity shares of the Company are
listed.

Theex t r act oft hefinancialr esult s ar ecommunicat edwit hin pr escr ibedt indine by way
“Financial Express (English) and Jansatta (Hindi) having wide circulation, after the results are approved at the Board
Meeting.

GENERAL INFORMATION FOR SHAREHOLDER

Registered/Corporate SALORA INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Office&Co r r es p o n [d@IN:d.74899DL1968PLC004962)

Address Address: D-13/4, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase-Il, New Delhi- 110020
Ph. 011-35008342,

E-mail: info@salora.com,

Website: www.salora.com

AGM Date, time and St ebe , 28, 2023 at 11:00 AM(I ST)t hr o u hVC/ OAVWMat t heRejs t | ed Officeo f-
Venue Company (Deemed Venue)
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5 o lidat io

on o f Shar

c. | Financial year | 1¢t April to 31¢t March every year

d. |For t heFin an cial \dax) 1st Quarterly Results — before 14" August, 2023
2023-2024, tentative b) 2" Quarterly Results — before 14t November, 2023
schedule to declare the |c) 3 Quarterly Results — before 14" February, 2024
financialr esult s|d) 4™ Quarter / Annual Results — before 30" May, 2024

e. | Date of Book Closure September 22, 2023 to September 28, 2023 (Both days inclusive)

f. | Cut-off Date September 21, 2023

g. [CIN L7489DL1968PLC004962

h. | Listing Details BSE Ltd.

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Fort, Mumbai — 400 001
Scrip Code: 500370
ISIN: INE924A01013
*The Company has paid listing fees in full within the due date For the FY 2023-24.
i. | Registrar and Share M/s. Skyline Financial Services Pvt. Ltd.
Transfer Agents Registrars and Transfer Agents
Unit: Salora International Limited
D-153-A, 1t Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase -1, New Delhi-110020
Tel. No. 011- 40450193-196
Website: www.skylinerta.com
Email: admin@skylinerta.com
j. | Investor Grievances The Stakeholder Relationship Committee constituted by the Board of Directors, look
Redressal System into the grievances of shareholders. Queries/complaints received from shareholders
are promptly attended by the Company Secretary of the Company through Company’s
Registrar and Share Transfer Agent M/s. Skyline Financial Services Pvt. Ltd.

k. [ Share Transfer System The Company has appointed M/s. Skyline Financial Services Pvt. Ltd. as its Registrar
and Share Transfer Agent (RTA). The share transfer work in both physical as well as
electronic mode has been carried on by the RTA. The authority relating to share transfer
has been delegated to RTA. The Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee of the Company
t akenot eoft heTr ansfa, Tr ans ms sion, Remat, Split &Con
etc. periodically. The RTA ensures the approval of share transfer / transmission / splitting
and consolidation of valid request with in stipulated time from their receipt and also
processing of valid Demat request. In terms of Regulation 40 of the SEBI LODR, as
amended, no transfer of shares in physical mode is permitted.

|. | Dematerialization of The shares of the Company are in compulsory demat segment and available for trading

shares in the depository systems of both National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and
Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL). 87,12,013 equity shares of the
Company representing 98.92% of the Company’s listed capital are held in electronic form
as on 31st March, 2023.
m. | Reconciliation of Share |Aq u alifi edPr act icingConp any Secr & ary car r iedout Recon ciliat
Capital Audit reconcile the total admitted equity capital with National Security Depository Ltd. (NSDL) and
Central Depository Services (India) Ltd. (CDSL) and the total issued and listed equity capital.
TheReco n ciliat ion o f Shar eCap it al Audit Repor t is filedby t heConpany on q
STOCK MARKET PRICE DATA - BSE LTD.
BSE (SHARE PRICE IN RUPEES)
MONTH NO.OF SHARES HIGH PRICE LOW PRICE
Apr-22 20,160 53.05 41.50
May-22 33,548 48.45 40.10
Jun-22 36,458 46.85 31.95
Jul-22 28,429 43.55 33.35
Aug-22 22,484 43.10 38.00
Sep-22 74,107 46.00 36.05
Oct-22 18,726 41.75 33.75
Nov-22 124,143 38.90 32.10
Dec-22 36,973 38.25 33.00
Jan-23 106,103 42.00 32.60
Feb-23 46,676 39.90 33.55
Mar-23 329,850 36.00 29.55
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SHAREHOLDING PATTERN AS ON 31 MARCH, 2023

SL Category of Shareholders No. of Folios No. Shares held Percentage
1) |Individuals (up to 2.0 lakhs) 3,436 954,256 10.83%
2) |Individuals (above 2.0 lakhs) 12 469,004 5.33%
3) |Bodies Corporate 67 1,023,574 11.62%
4) |Promoters 6 5,506,902 62.53%
5) | Group Company(ies) (Promoters Group) 1 558,929 6.35%
6) [Mutual Fund, Banks, Fls 3 600 0.01%
7) |NRI 33 186,525 2.12%
8) [Resident Indian HUF 78 31,499 0.36%
9) |[Trust - - 0.00%
10) [Clearing Members 1 5 0.00%
11) |Others 4 1,484 0.02%
12) |IEPF 1 74,522 0.85%
TOTAL 3,642 8,807,300 100.00%

DISTRIBUTION OF EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL AS ON 31 MARCH, 2023
PAN CONSOLIDATION DATA

SHARE HOLDING NUMBER OF % TO TOTAL SHARE HOLDING AMOUNT % TO TOTAL
NOMINAL VALUE (RS.) [ SHAREHOLDERS NUMBERS (RS.) AMOUNT
() &) ®) 4) (5)
Up To 5,000 3,306 90.77% 3,581,040 4.07%
5001 To 10,000 134 3.68% 1,055,870 1.20%
10001 To 20,000 83 2.28% 1,215,200 1.38%
20001 To 30,000 27 0.74% 694,480 0.79%
30001 To 40,000 19 0.52% 675,980 0.77%
40001 To 50,000 16 0.44% 734,540 0.83%
50001 To 1,00,000 19 0.52% 1,473,680 1.67%
1,00,000 and Above 38 1.04% 78,642,210 89.29%
Total 3,642 100.00% 88,073,000 100.00%

INFORMATION IN RESPECT OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDENDS DUE FOR REMITTANCE INTO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND
PROTECTION FUND (IEPF)

No amount of unclaimed/unpaid dividend is available with the Company for transfer to Investor Education And Protection
Fund (IEPF) for the period under review.
PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING

In accordance with the requirements of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulation, 2015, as amended, the Company
has instituted a comprehensive Code of Conduct for prevention of insider trading, in the Company’s shares and code of
practice and procedure for fair disclosure of unpublished price sensitive information.

NODAL OFFICER

Shr i Go p al Sit ar amJiwar aj ka, Chair man &Man agn gbhr ect or oft heConp any has ben appoint elas

Company pursuant to IEPF rules.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

As at 315t March, 2023 there is no subsidiary of the Company and the Company has no joint venture / associate company as well.
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS POLICY

Alltransactions ent @ edwit hRdat edPar t ies dur ingt hefinancialy ear wa eon ar ns len ¢ hbas i

of business. Due approvals from Audit Committee were taken under the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act,
2013 and Rules made thereunder read with applicable Listing Regulations. As all the transactions with Related Parties
during the year under review were on arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business. During the year under
review, the Company has not entered into any transaction with related parties which could be considered ‘material’ in
accordance with Related Party Transaction Policy of the Company. Hence, no approval from Shareholders of the
Company required for any related party transaction during the year under review. The Company has put on its website i.e.
www.salora.com Policy on Related Party Transactions as approved by the Board of Directors of the Company.

A\ poeis
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DISCLOSURE OF COMPLIANCE OF REGULATION 17 TO 27 AND CLAUSE (B) TO (I) OF SUB-REGULATION (2) OF
REGULATION 46

TheConpany has conplied wit hall t hemandat ory r equir eent s speifiedin Regulations 17t o
Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Clause (b) to (i) of Sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of
SEBI (List in gObligagt ions &Dsclosur eRequir eent s )Reyi lat ion s, 2015du rtivagthh2d28. an cial y ear

INVESTORS COMMUNICATION

The Shareholders are requested to convert their holdings to demat / electronic form through any of Depository Participants

to avoid risk involved in physical shares. Members holding shares in physical form, in identical order of names, in more than

one folio, are requested to send to the Company or Skyline Financial Services Pvt. Ltd. (RTA) of the Company, the details
ofsuchfolios t og@ he wit ht hes har eca t ificat s for consolidat ingt hdr holdingin on efo
Shareholders are advised to write directly to RTA i.e. Skyline Financial Services Pvt. Ltd. by registered email to admin@
skylinerta.com or D-153A, 1%t Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase — |, New Delhi — 110 020 (Ph. No.:011-40450193 to 196) of

the Company for all enquiry relating to transfer, transmission, transposition, demat, remat, split, consolidation, nomination,

change of address and other relevant matters for their holdings in the Company.

NOMINATION FACILITY

TheShar ého Ide s can filet hdr nomnat ion aginst s har e hddin phy sical no deas wdl as dect r o
of nomination is not available to non-individual shareholders, such as societies, trusts, bodies corporate, karta of Hindu

Undivided Family and holders of power of attorney. The shareholders, who are holding shares in physical form and wish

t o avail t his facility, my sexdt hdr noninat ion in t hepr e cr ibed For mSH- 13 duly fille a
Shar eTr an s fa Agnt (SKM.INE)oft heConpany. TheSecur it ies an d Ex chan gBo ar do f | n dia (“SEBI ") ha:
submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market.

As required by SEBI, shareholders holding shares in dematerialized form are requested to intimate all changes pertaining
to their details such as bank account number, name of the bank and branch details, MICR Code and IFSC Code, mandates,
nominations, power of attorney, change of address, change of name, e-mail address, contact number, etc., to their
depository participant (DP).

GREEN INITIATIVE IN CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Pursuant to circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), Government of India, the companies are allowed

t o sendo fficialdocumnt s/ comunicat ion t ot hdr s har eholde s dect r onically as apar t ofif
Governance. Recognizing the spirit of the Circular/Act, the Company proposes to send the documents like the Notice

convening the General Meetings, Financial Statements, Directors’ Report, Auditors’ Report etc. to the e-mail address

provided by the shareholder with their depositories.

However, in case you wish to receive the above communication / documents in physical mode or have not registered
the e-mail address, you will be entitled to receive the above documents at free of cost by sending your request at
sect@salora.com and info@skylinerta.com quoting your DP ID / Client ID or Folio No. or by sending letter to the Company
or M/s. Skyline Financial Services Pvt. Ltd. (RTA).

ELECTRONIC CLEARING SERVICE

SEBI vide its Circular No. DCC/FITTCIR-3/2001 dated 15" October, 2001 had advised that all companies should mandatory

use ECS facility wherever available. In the absence of ECS facility, Company may use warrants for distributing the dividends

and vide its Circular No.D&CC/FUTTCUR-4/2001 dated 13* November, 2001, SEBI had advised companies to mandatory

print the Bank Account details furnished by the Depositories on the Dividend Warrants. This ensures that the dividend

warrants, even if lost or stolen, cannot be used for any purpose other than for depositing the money in the accounts
speifiedon t hedividemdwar rant andemsur e safea y for t heinvestors. Howe @, mbe s
in an account ot he t han t heones p ecifiedwhileopeningt hedpposit ory account, my not if
in their bank account details.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Salora International Ltd.

Sd/-

(Gopal Sitaram Jiwarajka)

Date :12.08.2023 Chairman & Managing Director
Place: New Delhi DIN: 00024325

'
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Annexure - VII

CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF CONDUCT

In terms of Regulation 26 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and as per

“affir mat ion of conpliance lea t & s r ecdv ed fr o mt hedir ect or s andt henmbe s of senior mn
t heCompany, | ha ey delar et hat nebbe s of Boar dof Dr eet or s andSemior Managent Pea s o
conp lian cewit ht heCodeofConduct ofBoar dofDr ect or s andSenior Managnant dur in gt hefin:

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Salora International Ltd.

Sd/-

(Gopal Sitaram Jiwarajka)

Date :12.08.2023 Chairman & Managing Director
Place: New Delhi DIN: 00024325

CMD [CEO] / CFO CERTIFICATE
[Regulation 17(8)]

To

The Board of Directors
Salora International Ltd.
New Delhi.

Wha ey ca t ify t hat wehav er e ievedt hefinancialst at eent s an dt heCas hFlow St at emnt for t
31t March, 2023 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief:

1. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements
that might be misleading.

2. These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing
Accounting Standards, applicable law and regulations.

3. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the aforesaid
period which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s Code of Conduct.

4. Waccept responsibility for et ablishingandmint ainingint @ nalcontrols for fin
hav eev alu at edt hedfect ivenes s oft heint a nalcontrolsystes oft heConpany pea t ai
an dwehav edisclos et o t heAudit or s andt heAu dit Commt t e deiciencies in t hedessiqn o1
internal control systems, if any, of which we are aware, and that we have taken the required steps to rectify these
defi cien cies .

5. We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee that:
a) The ehav eben no sigrificant changs ininte@nalcontrolove financialr @eorting
b) The ehav eben no sigrificant changs in account ingpolicie dur in gt hey er .

c) The ehav eben no inst ances ofsigrificant fr audo f whichwehav ebeco neawar ean dt he
t he én, ifany, oft heman agment or an eploy eehavingasiqiificant r olein t heCo np a
systenove financialr egorting

For Salora International Limited For Salora International Limited

Sd/- Sd/-

(Gopal Sitaram Jiwarajka) (Tarun Jiwarajka)

Date: 12.08.2023 Chairman & Managing Director Whole Time Director & CFO
Place: New Delhi DIN:00024325 DIN:00386240
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Annexure - VIII
PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY'’'S REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To,

The Members of

Salora International Limited
Regd. Office B 13/ 4,

Okhla Industrial Area, Phase I,
New Delhi- 1710020

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Salora International Limited for the year
ended 31 March, 2023 as referred in the Regulation 15(2) and other relevant provisions of Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

The compliance of conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was
limited to procedure and implementation thereof, adopted by the company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions
ofcorporatepveanance It is ndt he an audit nor an xpr e sion ofopinion on t hefin

In our opinion and to the best of our information, based on the records, documents, books, and other information furnished
and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the company has complied in general with the conditions of
corporate governance as stipulated in the above mentioned Listing Agreement / applicable guidelines.

Vefur t he st at et hat suchconplianceis nedt he an assur anceas t ot hefut ur eviability of
or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

Date : 05.09.2023 FOR SVR & Co.
Place : Noida Company Secretaries

CS Shivam Rastogi

M.NO: F10704

CP. NO: 14600

PRC No.: 1470/2021
UDIN:F010704E000944857
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Annexure - IX

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

INDUSTRY OUTLOOK

Currently Consumr Elet r onics Mar kd is g owingr apidly in t heAs ia- Pacificr eggon, acco |
than forty per cent (40%) of the total market share worldwide. The existence of multiple manufacturers, an expanding
population, and rising earnings available to consumers are the primary factors contributing to the region’s market growth.

Furthermore, the emergence of semiconductor technology due to technological advancement is the other major factor
driving the growth of the Consumer Electronics Market. Additionally, the increasing adoption of consumer goods like
automated home appliances, and the rising trend of Smartphones is projected to boost the Consumer Electronics Market
growth in the upcoming years.

The market is extremely competitive, with many different producers and brands vying for a part of the consumer base.

Apple, Samsung, LG, Sony, and Microsoft are among the major participants in this sector. Other major companies include

Xiom, Oppo, Vivo andOnePlus. Thesebusine se put asigrificant ammunt ofnmneg intor e
to produce new items and enhance their existing offerings. This helps businesses stay one step ahead of their rivals.

ECONOMY
GLOBAL ECONOMY OUTLOOK

Thebas dinefor ecast, whichassums t hat t her ecent financial set or str e se ar econt ain e
3.4 percent in 2022 to 2.8 percent in 2023, before settling at 3.0 percent in 2024. Advanced economies are expected to

see an especially pronounced growth slowdown, from 2.7 percent in 2022 to 1.3 percent in 2023. In a plausible alternative

scenar io wit hfurt he financialset or stress, dobalg owt hdecline t o about 2. 5p & cen
g owt hfallingbdow 1Tpea cent . Go bal headlineinflat ion in t hebas dineis sa& t o fall fr om8. 7p &
in 20230 n t hebackoflowea como dity prices but unde lyingcor inflat ion is likdy t o decli
return to target is unlikely before 2025 in most cases.

Thenat ur alr at eofint @ est is inpor tant for bot hmonea ary andfiscal policy as it is ar
of monetary policy and a key determinant of the sustainability of public debt. Public debt as a ratio to GDP soared across

the world during COVID-19 and is expected to remain elevated. Supply-chain disruptions and rising geopolitical tensions

hav ebr ou cht t her isks andpot entialbendit s andcost s ofgo- econonmcfr agent at iont o t |

Thewar in Ukr ainecouldint exsify andleadt o nor efoodandena g pricespikes, pus hingin fl at
turn out more persistent than anticipated, requiring even more monetary tightening to tame.

Bs pit et hefillips fr omowe foodandemea g prices andinpr ovelsupply- chain functioning
wit ht heincr esedunce t ainty fromt her cent financialset or t ur noil.

INDIAN ECONOMY OUTLOOK

India will need a strong rebound in investments to attain sustainable growth. Global uncertainties will weigh on growth

this year, but India is poised to grow by 6.5% in the medium term. The last two years have seen the global economy

struggling to deal with overlapping crises, the latest being the liquidity troubles after a series of global bank crises. While

t heinp act apper s t o haveben cont ainel, t hseuncea t aint ies cont inuet o unde nn et heco
and businesses to spend, therefore impacting economic growth.

While betting on consumption-driven growth is obvious given India’s large, young, and rising share of the upper middle-
income population (with a high propensity to spend), we believe that investment will play an important role over the next
two years. It is investments that will provide India with necessary momentum to take off on a path of sustained domestic
demand-led growth for decades to come.

Inflat ion has declinedas Cent r al Ban ks hav er aiselint @ est r at s andfoodandena g pr ice h
price pressures are proving sticky, with labor markets tight in a number of economies. Side effects from the fast rise in

policy rates are becoming apparent, as banking sector vulnerabilities have come into focus and fears of contagion have

risen acr oss t hebr oadea financialset or, includingnonbankfinancialinstitutions.

However, capital investment, especially in the private sector, has lagged so far. India is an attractive investment destination
is a point well emphasized. The question is, why has private investment not yet picked up sustainably, and what can
policymakers do to take advantage of this window of opportunity?
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CONSUMER ELECTRONICS

The rapidly increasing internet penetration across the globe is driving the growth of the Consumer Electronics Market. The
Consumer Electronics Sector of the global economy that is responsible for the production of electronic products that are intended
for individual use, such as mobile phones, computers, tablets, televisions, game consoles, and other household appliances.

The incessant desire for novel items that have enhanced features and capabilities is the primary force propelling the
growth of this market. Consumer Electronics include devices that can provide one or more functionalities like laptops,
computers, home applications, refrigerators, and smartphones, which are the requirements of day-to-day life thus fueling
the Consumer Electronics Market growth. In addition, the continuous investments by the prime members of the market in
research and development for the growth of the latest Consumer Electronics products along with the enhanced features
are projected to fuel the industry growth of Consumer Electronics in the years to come.

CONSUMER ELECTRONICS GROWTH DRIVERS
There are several drivers of growth in the consumer electronics industry, including:

. Technological Innovation: Advancements in technology drive the development of new and improved products,
leading to increased demand and sales.

. Increasing Connectivity: The proliferation of internet-connected devices has created new markets for consumer
electronics products, such as smart home devices and wearables.

. Changing Consumer Preferences: Consumers are increasingly looking for personalized, convenient, and accessible
products, leading to the development of new products and business models.

. Demographic Shifts: The growth of the middle class in emerging markets and the aging of the population in
developed markets are creating new demand for consumer electronics products.

. E-commerce: The growth of online shopping has made it easier for consumers to research and purchase electronic
products, leading to increased sales and market penetration.

CONSUMER ELECTRONICS MARKET TRENDS
The ear esev @ al significant t rends currently shapingt heconsumr det r onics nar ke :

. 5G technology: The rollout of 5G networks is set to revolutionize the consumer electronics industry by enabling
faster download and upload speeds, improved connectivity, and greater network capacity. This technology will
unlock new possibilities for devices such as smartphones, wearables, and Internet of Things (IoT) devices, and also
pave the way for the adoption of emerging technologies such as augmented reality (AR) and virtual reality (VR).

. Internet of Things: It refers to the interconnectivity of devices and systems, enabling them to communicate and
share data. This technology is transforming the consumer electronics industry by making it possible to connect and
control various devices, from smart homes to wearables, through a single app or interface.

. Artificial Intelligence: It is being increasingly integrated into consumer electronics, making them more intelligent,
pea sonalized anddficient . Bvices suchas smar t phone, smrt speke s, andho neap plianc
assistants, natural language processing, and machine learning to enable users to interact with them more intuitively.

. Sustainability: The increasing awareness and concern for the environment have led to a growing demand for
sustainable and eco-friendly electronics. Manufacturers are using recycled materials, reducing energy consumption,
and designing products that are more easily recyclable or reusable.

. Remote working and learning: The COVID-19 pandemic has accelerated the trend towards remote working and
learning, increasing demand for laptops, webcams, and other devices that enable people to work and learn from
home. This trend is likely to continue even after the pandemic has ended, as many people have found that remote
wor kingpr ovides g et @ flexibility andwor k- lifebalan ce

. Overall, these trends demonstrate that the consumer electronics market is rapidly evolving, with new technologies
and consumer preferences shaping the future of the industry.

COMPANY OVERVIEW

TheConpany's kg inpeg at iveovea t henediumt @ mwill bet o g owt her ¢ emuestr eans andsus
as we build a strategic framework and drive the businesses, leveraging macro trends and business opportunities. Over

three decades of enriched experience in electronics, company is serving its customers in diverse realms like Consumer

Electronics, Telecom, Information Technology and Lifestyle. Key success factors are predicated on the timely execution

of its plans and keeping pace with technological and market changes. Company’s focuses on continual expansion of its

products and customer base, while systematically strengthening its quality, innovation and cost competence.
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TheConp any has em gdas adive sifiedent ity wit hint @ ests insourcingandprocur eant,
distribution, marketing, retail and after-sales service. With the legacy of quality, trust and expertise in developing cutting

edge technology products and services — Company is on the edge to deliver need-of-the-hour solutions to its customers

in B2B and B2C space.

Best technology is playing a key role for businesses to work closer with the customer to create better products, services
and value proposition. Indian consumer electronics market is facing fresh challenges every day, Salora continue to meet
every challenge with new ideas and solutions.

HUMAN RESOURCES / INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

The Company recognizes that people are the prime assets of the organization and implements initiatives to train and
motivate them. The Company continues to focus on attracting and retaining right talent with right opportunities to its
employees. The selected candidates undergo a structured induction programme, which gives them a good exposure and
become a good contributor in growth of the Company. 39 employees were associated with Company as at 31t March,
2023. Leada s hip/ t eembuilding comunicat ion andneptiation, conflict nman agmen t ,
examples of behavioral training. It also provides a platform for employees of all levels to communicate and exchange
information and ideas, helping to improve the Company'’s overall workforce competencies. Industrial relations during the
year have been cordial and contributed to mutual development.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Ade ailednot eon t hefifnancial part has ben r ecor dedin t heDr ect or s Rgpor t t hehicdhlicht s oft
are given herein below:

and s

(Rs. in lacs except EPS)
Particulars 2022-23 2021-22
Net Worth 5848.77 6753.28
Revenue 11605.87 7007.01
Pr ofit befor et ax (1184.47) 2772.31
N Pr o fit (904.51) 2401.71
EBIDTA (1058.21) 3106.68
Gross Block 353.86 340.20
EPS (10.18) 27.30
Note: Thefi gt r es hav ebem r ey oup e/ r eclas s ifiedwha e# @ nees s ar y.
DISCLOSURE OF RATIO
RATIO AS AT 31s* MARCH 2023 | AS AT 31s*MARCH 2022 | % CHANGE
Current Ratio 1.45 1.94 -25.29%
Debt-equity Ratio 0.31 0.25 21.80%
Debt service coverage Ratio -0.09 0.36 -123.74%
Return on equity Ratio -14.23 43.31 -132.85%
Inventory turnover Ratio 4.25 1.73 145.81%
Trade receivables turnover Ratio 5.29 2.13 148.97%
Trade payables turnover Ratio 15.21 3.87 292.67%
Net capital turnover Ratio 6.66 5.54 20.32%
N profit Rat io -0.08 0.34 122.51%
Return on capital employed -0.19 0.47 141.39%

SEGMENT WISE / PRODUCT WISE PERFORMANCE

The Company has observed extreme growth in the Consumer Electronic Market as the Company has scaled up its

product portfolio. Fur t he as t heconsumr det r onics nmar kd¢ can dea ivese a al bendit s fr omst
improvement, cost reduction, product development and import substitution, the Company is committed to stay competitive,

enhance their offerings and address consumer demands effectively. Currently the Company is focusing on consumer

durable products like Smart LED TV, Washing Machine (Semi Automatic), Coolers, Audio accessories (Defunc), TWS Ear

Buds, Headphones, Smartwatches, Neckband Smart Watch, Chargers, Power Banks, Mobile Phones etc.

The Company has established an extensive distribution network. The Product Engineering and development is the core
of our product solutions vertical and through innovative hardware products we have been able to provide solutions to our
customers and retain market share.
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BUSINESS OPPORTUNITIES

Television is a useful device in the home consumer electronics segment. The kind of television sets available in the
market includes a wide variety of LEDs, plasma and so on, offering high resolution and sharp picture quality. Additionally,
a decreasing trend in the pricing of televisions is fuelling the penetration of such televisions in the market. Electronic
products have continuously impacted and shaped our lifestyles in the current digital era. The advent of technology has led
to seamless activities and accelerated the digital revolution to the next level. Consumer electronics covers the device that
contains an electric circuit board that is handy in everyday use by people for the purpose of recreation, entertainment and
communication. Prominent drivers for this market's expansion are easier access, rising awareness, changing lifestyles,
dropping unit price and increasing disposable income.

The Smartwatch industry is expansive and has been rapidly evolving in recent years. Smartwatches have moved beyond
being simple timekeeping devices and have become multifunctional gadgets that offer a wide range of features and
capabilities. The smartwatch industry’s scope is broad and dynamic with continuous advancements in technology,
health monitoring, connectivity, and design. As the industry evolves, we can expect even more exciting developments and
integrations that further enhance the role of Smartwatches in our daily lives. The potential of the Smartwatch market in
India is huge as India has become the biggest market for Smartwatches.

The True Wireless Stereo (TWS) market, which refers to wireless earbuds that come in pairs and provide a stereo audio
xpeaiemcewit hout any wir es, has sen explosiveg owt hinr eet year s. Thescopeoft hel
continues to expand due to technological advancements, changing consumer preferences, and the integration of various
features. As technology continues to evolve and consumer demand for wireless audio solutions remains strong, the TWS
market's scope is expected to further expand with new features, improved performance, and enhanced user experiences.

The mobile accessories market is vast and diverse, driven by the ever-evolving smartphone industry and consumers’
desire to enhance and personalize their mobile experiences. Mobile accessories encompass a wide range of products that
complement, protect, and extend the functionality of mobile devices. The mobile accessories market is highly adaptable
and constantly evolving to meet the demands of consumers seeking to enhance, personalize, and extend the capabilities
of their mobile devices. As smartphone technology continues to advance, the scope of mobile accessories is expected to
expand with innovative solutions catering to a wide range of user preferences and needs.

THREATS

. Increased competition and product option with multi-national participants entering the market, especially as the
industry flour ishes andmy leedt o pricingpr essur g

. The Consumer Electronics industry is dependent on multiple market factors especially the change in technology in
India and which may impact demand;

. Industry volatilities and rising prices remain a threat.

RISK & CONCERNS

The global electronic industry is currently going through a turbulent phase in the supply of various critical components. The
shortage of semi-conductors in particular, since 2020 -21, continues to remain a major stumbling block for the electronics
industry, restricting the supplies of electronics despite increasing consumer demands. The recent Ukraine-Russia war
has put further pressure on the global economy. Shortages and high oil prices, along with the Chinese zero-tolerance
policy towards COVID, may dampen business. The company depends on imports for its major raw materials, hence the
weakening of the Indian Rupee will also have a direct impact on the overall cost. The unwillingness of its customers to
agree to frequent price hikes is a matter of concern.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has put in place a robust internal control framework that addresses a range of governance, compliance, audit,

control, and reporting issues. These internal controls are essential for complying with numerous regulatory requirements,
avoidingfraud, protetingasseda s, andpr e a vingt heaccur acy offinancialr e@por ting The
t heint e nalcontrolsystes on ar eylar basis andr e@or t st hdr finding t ot heman agne
immediate corrective or mitigating action to keep the internal controls working well and correctly.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis, describing the Company’s growth prospects, are forward-looking
statements. The Company'’s results, plans, estimates, and expectations may vary, depending upon economic conditions,
raw-material prices, government policies, regulations, tax laws and other incidental factors.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report
To the Members of Salora International Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion
Wehav eau dit edt heacco np any in dfi n an cial s Salorataternationil Limited (“the Company”), which comprise
t heBalan ceShex as at Mar ch31, 2023, t heSt at eent ofProfit andLoss (includingOt he Conpr €
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and a summary of the
siqrificant accountingpolicies andot hg explanat ory infor mt ion (he énaft @ r da r et o

In our opinion andt ot hebest ofour infor mt ion andaccor dingt o t heex planat ions g\
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true

and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally

accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, the loss and total comprehensive income,

chan gs in eqquity andit s cas hflows for t hey ear e dedon t hat dat e

Basis for Opinion

Wconduct edlour audit oft heffnancialst at emnt s in accor dan cewit ht heSt an dar ds on Audit
143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities

for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with

the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) together with the independence
requireant s that ar er devant t o our audit oft hefifnancialst at eent s undeg t hepr ovisi
t he aande, andwehav efulfilledour ot he & hicalr s ponsibilitie in accor dancewit ht he e
Co deo f Et hics. Webdies et hat t heau dit e iden cewehav eo bt ain edis s u fficient andappr opr iat et
au dit opinion on t hefinancialst at eent s .

Emphasis of Matters
We draw attention to the following matters in the notes to the statements: -

1 Note no 50 which explains that, exceptional items recorded during the year include the following:

(a) Inventory written down by Rs.292.11 lacs during last quarter on liquidation of old inventories till date based
on actual realized value. This is in line with the company’s continuous effort to optimize its operational
dficiency andr esour ces, whea ey it has written down invent or ies agr ept ingt c
the year, due to obsolescence caused by change in technology, slow inventory movement and part of
discontinued product categories etc.

(b) Ex cess amunt ofRs. 144. 60lacs whichis r ecdvedas final consida at ion as pa Tr
Hold Rights against amount considered earlier towards sale of Noida Land in the previous year. Besides this,
a recovery of partial expenses amounting to Rs. 35.00 lacs towards expenses paid to Noida Authority in the
previous year.

(©) Reco it ion ofloss ammuntingt o Rs. 33. 23lacs basedon finalr ealizedanmount, in
realizable value for Assets Held for sale in the previous year.

2) Not eno 5Twhichst at es t hat , t heconmpany filedaSLPon mg it s wit ht heHon or ableSu pr ewC
for disposal. Howes @, on 16. 12. 2021, t heConpany filedawr it pe it ion in HichCour t «
to condone the delay due to Covid-19 and accept payment Rs.1210.99 lakhs as approved in the SVLDR scheme
against which pre deposit Rs 600 lakhs for settlement of the disputed Excise matters of Rs.2435.21 lakhs and penalty
t he eon Rs . 2435 21 lakhs dewan ded by Ex ciseaut hor it ie r dat edt o fi n an cThe Highr 1993- 94t
Court has issued notice to the concerned authorities which is pending for disposal. The Contingent Liability against
this matter Rs 4870.42 lakhs against this matter shall stand as it is, till either the High Court or the Supreme Court
decides on this matter. Further there has been no hearing and progress in the case, however recently two of similar
nature of cases has been decided in the favour of the appellant by the CESTAT and Honorable Supreme Court.

3) Note no 52 which state that, Contingent liabilities of Rs.1,242.26 lakhs (excluding Rs.4870.42 Lakhs as referred in
above (2) of EOM) related to Sales tax, Excise duty, Service tax, Goods and Service tax and Income tax etc. against
which amount deposited Rs 207.76 Lakhs which are contested by the company and pending before various forums.
However, management believes that based on legal advice, the outcome of these contingencies will be favorable
andt hat out lowofeononmcr esource is not pr obable

4) Note no 53 which state that, the Company has material statutory dues recoverable of Sales tax of Rs 365.65 lakhs
and Income tax Rs. 204.58 lakhs w hichhas bem conside edlgppod, pevdingfinalas se snmnt .
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5) Note no 54 which states that, Deferred tax assets Rs. 2108.33 lacs as at 31st March, 2023 is expected to be realized,
as the company strongly believes that it has reasonably certainty of realization. The company has enhanced its
product port folio andt henew busine s stratey ofdepa pendration, g eatea of
gnea ation of sufficiemt profits in t hefutur eas anticipat ed/ pr ojet edby t heman a
Moreover, there are no brought forward losses under the Income Tax Act, which are expiring in the next two years.

Our conclusionis not nodifiedinrepet oft hsemt t & s st at edabov e
Key Audit Matter

Key au dit mat t & is thosemt t e s that, inour professionaljudgent, wa eofmost siq if
stateemts oft hecurret paiod Thesemat t & s wea eaddr s seint hecont ext ofour audit
a whole, and in our opinion, there is no any such matter to be reported by us.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information

comprises the information included in the Board's Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Management Discussion

andAnaly sis, Busine s Rsponsibility Rport andReport on Corpor at eGov @ n an ceb
statements and our auditors’ report thereon. The above-referred information is expected to be made available to us after

the date of this audit report.

Our opiniononthefinancialst at eent s does not cove t heot hea infor mat ion andwedo no
conclusion thereon.

Inconnetion wit hour audit oft hefinancialst at emnt s, our re ponsibility istor ed
when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financialst at emnt s or our knowledgo bt ainedin t heaudit or ot he wiseappear s t o bemat &
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are required

to report that fact.

When we read the other information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to
communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take appropriate actions necessitated by the circumstances
and the applicable laws and regulations.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the
prearationofthesefinancial st at emnt s t hat gveat r ueandfair view oft hefinancial po-
totalconpr ehensiveincom changs in equity andcas hflows oft heConpany in accor dan cew|
accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting

records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and

detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments

andest imat es t hat ar er @es onableandpr udent ;janddes ign, inplemt at ion andmint en an ceo f ade
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant
totheprearationandpre et ation oft hefinancial st at eent s t hat gveat r ueandfair
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In prearingt hefinancial st at eent s, mnagnent is res ponsiblefor asse singt heConp an
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting

unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to

do so.

TheBo ar do fDr ect or s ar er s ponsiblefor ove seingt heConpany's financialr e@por tingpr o
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objetive ar et o obt ain r @esonableassur anceabout whe ha t hefinancial st at emnt
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable

assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always

detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in t heagr ept € t heg couldr eas on ably beex p ect edt o in fl u ex cet heeco n o mic deci
t hebasis oft hesefinancialst at emnt s .

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

'
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. Idnt ify andas se s t herisks of mat @ ial Mms st at eent oft hefifnancial st at emnt s, wh
dsigh andp e for maudit procedur es responsivet ot hoserisks, andobt ain audit e
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obt ain an unde st andingofint @ nalfinancialcontr ols r deeant t ot heaudit in or de
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whe he t heConpany has adegu at eint @ nal financialcontrols syst
effectiveness of such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
sigqrificant doubt on t heConpany'’s ability t ocontinueas agopingconca n. |Ifweconclu

exists, wear er qquir edt odrawattentioninour auditor’'sreorttother dat eddis
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence

obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to

cease to continue as a going concern.

. Ev alu at et heove allpr esent ation, structureandcont emt oft hefinancial st at emnt
whe hea t hefinancial st at eent s r @ r esent t heunde lyingtransactions ande ent s it
presentation.

Mat @ iality is t hemagnit udeof ms st at eent s in t hefinancial st at emnt s t hat, individu al
pr obablet hat t heecon o mcdecisions ofar eas onably kn owledgableus & oft hefinancial st at e®
We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the

results ofour wor kand(ii)t o ev alu at et hedfect ofany ident ifiedms st at emnt s in t hefin ar

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit andsiguificant audit finding, includingany siguificant ddiciencies in int @ nalcontr o

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
siquificancein t heaudit oft hefinancialst at eent s oft hecurr et pea iodan dar et ha €0 r et heke
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consegueces ofdoingso wouldr easonably beex pect edt o out wdadt hepublicint @ est ben €it

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure-A, a statement on the matters
speifiedin t hepar ag aph3and4oft heor de .

2 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

c. TheBalan ceShet , t heSt at emnt of Pr ofit andLoss (ncludingot he Conpr enensiv elr
of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
relevant books of account.

d. Inour opinion, t heafor esaidfinancialst at emnt s conply wit ht heln dASs p ecifi e
Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March 2023 taken on
reor dby t heBoar dof Dr eet or s, noneoft hedir e¢et or s is disqualifiedas on 31s
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.
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f. Wt hr s pet t ot headeguacy oft heint @ nalfinancialcontr ols wit hr &a e cet o fi
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B.”
Our report ex<presses anunnmdiffedopinion on t headequ acy ando p @ at in gefect i
intenalfinancialcontrols wit hr g encet o financialst at eent s .

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements
of Sec 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of
section 197 of the Act.

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

I . TheCo np any has disclos et heinpact ofperdinglitiggt ions on its financialpo
stateemts. REg Not eno. 43t ot heffnancialst at emnt s.

Il. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses, and

M. There were no amount which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

IV. (a)  The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief (as disclosed
in Note 55(h) to the Financial Statements), no funds (which are material either individually
or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds
or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend
or invest in ot he pasons or ent it ie idemt ifiedin any mannea what s
t heConpany (“Ut inat eBen i ciar ies "J)or provideany giar ant e seur ity c
oft heUlt imat eBen i ciar ies ;

b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, (as disclosed
in Note 55(h)to the Financial Statements), no funds (which are material either individually or
in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including
foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
pagsons or entitie idntifiedin any mnne what soe @ by or on beal!
(Ut imat eBen diciar ies”)or provideany giarant e seurity or t helike
Ut imt eBen diciar ies ;

c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above,
contain any material misstatement.

V) The Company has not declared any dividend during the year.

Vi) Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of account using
accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable to the
Company with effect from April 1, 2023, and accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies
(Auditand Au dit or s )Rules, 2014is not applicablefor t hefinancialy ear en ded Mar ct

For R Gopal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 000846C

Vikash Aggarwal

Partner

Place: New Delhi Membership No.: 519574
Date-: 25.05.2023 UDIN: 23519574BGXS0G1303
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report

TheAnnexur er g r edt o in Indpendant Audit or s'Rpoport tot hemmbe s oft heConpany on t
the year ended 31t March 2023, we report that:

(i)

ay

(iii)

In respect of the Company'’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:

(a)

(b)

(A)  The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of Property, Plant & Equipment and relevant details of right-of-use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible Assets.

Propeaty, Plant &Equipmnt ar ephy sically vea ifiedby t heman agsmen t accor din gt o
cover all the items over a period of three years, which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size

of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the programme, a portion of the Property, Plant &
Equipnmnnt hav eben phy sically ve ifiedby t heman agment dur in gt hey ear andno nat & i
hav eben not icedon suchv e ificat ion.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records
of the Company, the title deed of immovable property (other than property where the Company is the lessee
and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) are held in the name of the Company
except following: -

Description Gross Title deeds | Whether promoter, | Property Reason for not being
of item of | Carrying value | held in the director or their held since | held in the name of the
property (Rs in Lacs) name of | relative or employee | which date Company*
Leasehold 4.37 Electronics s Since 1980 (In the old name of
Land Consortium Company, due to some
Private procedural / technical
Limited issues the property is
still not transferred in the
name of the company.

The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including right of use assets) and
Intangible Assets during the year.

As per information and explanations given to us, no proceedings have been initiated during the year or are
pending against the Company as at March 31, 2023 for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder. (Refer note no 55 C)

Thelnvent ories oftheconpany, haveben physically vea ifiedby t hemn agment du
resonableint @ vals andin our opinion, t hecove agandpr ocedur eofsuchveaif
is appropriate having regard to the size of the company and nature of its inventory. The discrepancies
noticdon physicalveification ofinventorie wa enot mr et han 10%0 r
class of inventory and have been properly dealt with in the books of account.

nmr ei

Theconpany has not ben sanct ionedlwor kingcapit al limit s in excess of Rs fiv ecr
security of current assets, in aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of current assets. (Refer note no
55b)

In respect of Investment, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans,

seur edor

a)

b)

c)

d)

unseur e, tocomanie, firng, Limt elLiability Par t nea ships or any ot

The Company has not provided any loans or advances in the nature of loans or guarantee or provided security
to any other entity during the year hence reporting under clause 3(iii) (a) not applicable to the company.

The company has not made any Investment, provide guarantee, any security or granted any loans and
advances in the nature of loans during the year.

The company has not granted any loans and advances in the nature of loans during the year, hence reporting
under clause 3(c) of the Order is not applicable

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records
of the Company, there was an overdue amount of Rs 349.40 lakhs (Including interest Rs 94.40 lakhs) for
more than 90 days against which the company had made full provision against such doubtful loan in the
earlier year, which has been written off during the year.

A\ poeis
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) The ewea eno loans g ant edt o conpanie, fir ns, Limt edLiability Part nea s hips,
was fallen due during the year, that have been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the
overdue of existing loans given to the same parties.

f) Based on our audit procedures, according to the information and explanation made available to us, the
Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or
without specifying any terms or period of repayment during the year.

(iv)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not given loans,
guarantees and security and not done the investment during the year so clause (iv) is not applicable. The company
has not given any loan to its directors; hence section 185 is not applicable.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act,
2013 and rules framed there under.

(vi)  We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the company pursuant to the Rules made by the
Central Government of India, maintenance of cost records has been prescribed under sub section (1) of section 148
of the Companies Act, 2013 and are of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records are being
made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the same.

(vii)  (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, Company has generally been regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employee’s state insurance, income-tax, goods and

service tax, duty of custom, cess and other statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of
provident fund, employee’s state insurance, income-tax, goods and service tax, duty of custom, cess and
other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2023 for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable.

(b) Details of statutory dues referred to in sub -clause (a) above which have not been deposited as on March
31,2023 on accounts of dispute are given below:

_ ecesz /g

Nature of |Demand |Deposited |Amount Period to Forum where pending
Name of the |dues (Rsin under not which the
Statute Lakhs) | dispute Deposited | amount
(Rsin Lacs) | (Rs in Lacs | relates
Income Tax | Income Tax | 37.88 37.88 - 2002-2003 High Court
Act, 1961
Sales Tax | 42.21 16.18 26.03 2001-2004 Supreme Court
Sales Tax |0.34 0.15 0.19 2001-2002 High Court
Sales Tax |36.49 16.39 20.10 2006-2009 High Court
Sales Tax |87.64 29.00 58.64 2011-2013 Tribunal
Sales Tax |270.92 |- 270.92 2014-2015 High Court
t0 2015-16
Sales Tax |670.15 |68.95 601.20 2000-2014 | Sales Tax
Commissioner
Sales Tax Sales Tax |33.24 - 33.24 1999-2001 High Court
Law Sales Tax |2.05 2.05 2002-03 Sales Tax
Commissioner
Sales Tax |2.36 2.36 - 2011-2012 | Sales Tax
Commissioner
Sales Tax |1.40 0.62 0.78 2000-01 Tribunal
Sales Tax |2.20 2.20 - 2017-18 Sales Tax
Commissioner
Sales Tax |24.57 3.26 21.31 2014-15 Sales Tax
Commissioner
Goods & GST 1.45 1.45 2022-23 Commissioner
Service Tax
Act

(
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(xi)

(xii)

(xii)

Finance Act, | Service Tax | 1.97 - 1.97 2002-2003 Excise Commissioner
1994
Custom Custom 20.00* 20.00 - 1994-1995 Tribunal
Act.1962 Duty
Excise Duty | 2,435.21 | 600.00 1,835.21 1993-1994 to | Supreme Court
2003-2004
Penalty 2,435.22 1993-1994 to | Supreme Court
Central - 2/435.22  |2003-2004
E’“’;;::‘“' Excise Duty | 3.75 3.75 20002003 | Remand back to
As s es s in go ffice
Excise Duty | 1.86 1.86 2000-2003 | CESTAT
Excise Duty | 1.78 2.00 (0.22) 1995-1996 | Commissioner

* Amount not ascertained.

The amounts herein above do notinclude amount of interest or penalty amount whereof are not ascertainable.

As per information and explanation given to us, there were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income
that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax
Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). (Refer note no 55 (i)

(a)

(b)

(b)

(a)

(b)

(©)

According to the information and explanations given to us the company has not defaulted in repayment of
loans and borrowings including interest thereon to any lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report
t hat t heConpany has not ben declar edwilful dffault @ by any bankor financialinst i
any government authority. (Refer note no 55 d)

According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not obtained any term loan
during the year hence the clause (ix) (c ) not applicable to the company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us, and on

an ov g all e¢amnat ion oft hefinancial st at eent s oft heConpany, wer e@ort tt
raise any funds on short term basis during the year hence reporting under clause (ix) (d) of the order is not

applicable to the company.

The company does not have any subsidiary, associate, or joint venture hence clause (ix) (e) and (f) of the
order is not applicable.

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause (x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year and hence reporting under
clause (x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by / on the Company has been noticed
or reported during the year.

No report unde sub setion (12ofsetion 1430ft heConp anie Act has ben file
prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during
the year and upto the date of this report.

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the company
during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a nidhi Company.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the

Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where

ap plicablean dde ails of suchtr ansact ions hav eben discloseain t hefinancial st at emn
applicable Indian Accounting Standards.

A\ P
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(xiv) (@ TheCompany has appoint edafir mofchar t @ edaccount ant s tocarry out t heint &
In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has an adequate
internal audit system commensurate with the size and the nature of its business.

(b) We have considered, during the course of our audit the reports of the internal auditors for the period under
audit issued to the company during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our
audit procedures in accordance with the guidance provided in SA 610- “Using the work of Internal Auditors”.

(xv)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with
him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

(xvi) (a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), of the Order is not applicable.

(b)  The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without obtaining
av alidCea t ificat eofRejst r at ion (CoR)fr omt heRes @ v eBan ko flndiaas pea t heRes @
1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(b), of the Order is not applicable.

() TheConpany is not aCorelnvetmt Conpany as ddineain t her eulat ions nadeby
India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) In our opinion, t hag eis no coreinvestmnt conpany wit hin t heG oup (as déi
Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order
is not applicable.

(x viiJheConpany has incurrelcashlosse ofRs 207. 00 Lakhs dur in gt hefinancial y ear andi
pr edingfinancialy ear ofRs 871. 42Lakhs .

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

(x ix)On t hebas is oft hefinancialr at ios (r €& not eno 55()), agngan dex p ect eddat es o fr aliz a
andpaynmnt offinancial liabilit ies, ot ha infor mt ion acconpany in gt hefinancial st at
of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as
on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date
of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however,
state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as
and when they fall due.

(xx)  Second proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Companies Act of Corporate Social Responsible is not
applicable to the company, so the clause (xx) (a) & (b) is not applicable.

For R Gopal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 000846C

Vikash Aggarwal

Partner

Place: New Delhi Membership No.: 519574
Date-: 25.05.2023 UDIN: 23519574BGXS0G1303
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Report on the Internal financial controls with reference to financial statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

Wehav eau dit edt heint @ nalfinancialcontr ols wit hr €ea en ceSabor Intermnatiehal Limiteshdities o f
Company”) as of 31t Mar ch 2023in conjunct ion wit hour audit oft hefinancial st at eent s oft he
ended on that date.

Management'’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

TheConpany's managmwnt is r esponsiblefor et ablishingandmint ainingint @ nal financial
intenalcontrolove financialr e@or tingcrit @ iaet ablishedby t heConpany conside i
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance
ofadegquat eint @ nalfinancialcontrols t hat wea eop a at ingdfect ivdy for eesur ingt heor
business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection

of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financialinfor mt ion, as r equir edunde t heAct .

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibilityistoepresanopinionontheConpany’'sint e nalfinancialcontr o
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
ovea FinancialRpor t in gt he'Guidan ceNot €)an dt heSt an dar ds on Audit ingas s pecifiedundea s ¢
tothext ent applicablet o an audit ofint @ nalfinancialcontr ols, bot happlicablet o an @
and both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
int eanal financialcontrols wit hr € encet o financial st at eent s was e t ablis hed an d main
operated effectively in all material respects. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
adeguacy oft heint @ nalfinancialcontr ols wit hr € encet o financial st at eent s andt hdr
audit ofint @ nalfinancialcontrols wit hr € encet o financial st at emnt s includedo bt ain
financialcontr ols wit hr € encet o financial st at eent s, asse singt her iskt hat amt & i
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
sdet eddgpp endon t heaudit or s judgent , includingt heasse smnt oft her is ks ofmat & ial ms
stat emmts, whea he duet o fraudor e r or . Wbdies et hat t heau dit e iden cewehav eo bt ain eis
toprovideabasis for our audit opinionontheConpany’sint @ nalfinancialcontrols w

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

Acompany’'s int @ nal financialcontrolove financialr e@ortingis aproces dsigqrat o
r egpr din gt her diability of financial rpor tingandt hepr epar at ion of financial st at emn
accor dan cewit hgn e ally accept edaccount ingprinciples. Aconpany’s int @ nal financial con
includes those policies and procedures that: -

1) Pg t ain t ot hemint enanceofr ecor ds t hat, in r ees on abledd ail, accur at dy an dfair ly
dispositions of the assets of the company;

2) Pr ovider esonableassur ancet hat t r ansact ions ar er ecor dedas nees sary to pear
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company;
and

3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
dispositionoft hecconpany’'s assd& s t hat couldhav eamat & ial fect on t hefinancial st

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

Becau s eo ft heinha et limt at ions ofint e nal financial controls wit hr g encet o fin ar
possibility of collusion or improper management, override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may

occur andnot bedd et ed Aso, projetions ofany e aluat ion oft heint @ nalfinancial cc
stateent stofuturepeaiods ar esubjet t ot heriskt hat t heint @ nalfinancialcontr oly
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures

may deteriorate.
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Opinion

Inour opinion, t heConpany has, in all mat a ialr espet s, an adegu at eint @ nal financial c
stat emnt s andsuchint @ nalfinancialcontr ols wit hr €@ encet o financialst at emnt s we
Mar ch, 2023, basedon t heint @ nalcontrolove financialr @or tingcr it @ iaet ablis hel by
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial

Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, which needs to be strengthened.

For R Gopal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 000846C

Vikash Aggarwal

Partner
Place: New Delhi Membership No.: 519574
Date-: 25.05.2023 UDIN: 23519574BGXS0G1303
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31T MARCH, 2023 ® in lakhs)
Particulars Note No. | As at 31st March 2023 | As at 31st March 2022
ASSETS
1.Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3 117.46 123.64
(b) Intangible Assets 5 5.08 5.08
(c) Right of use - Assets 4 2.43 2.48
(d) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 6 0.02 0.02
(i) Trade Receivables 7 1,389.25 1,417.69
(iii) Loans 8 - -
(iv) Other Financial Assets 9 19.91 33.52
(e) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 10 2,108.33 1,818.25
(f) Non-current Tax Assets (Net) 1 204.58 131.30
(g) Other Non-Current Assets 12 1,173.40 1,170.96
Total Non-current assets 5,020.46 4,702.94
2.Current assets
(a) Inventories 13 2,155.72 3,307.76
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Trade Receivables 14 834.34 743.07
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 15 2.11 143.69
(iii) Bank Balances other than (ii) above 16 32.05 34.29
(iv) Loans 17 1.51 4.26
(v) Other Financial Assets 18 32.58 683.64
(c) Other Current Assets 19 169.57 74.65
(d) Assets Held for Disposal 20 - 118.85
Total current assets 3,227.88 5,110.21
TOTAL ASSETS 8,248.34 9,813.15
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share capital 21 881.45 881.45
(b) Other Equity 22 4,967.32 5,871.83
Total Equity 5848.77 6,753.28
Liabilities
1. Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 23 153.96 404.43
(i) Other Financial Liabilities 24 16.13 18.32
(iiii) Lease liabilities 25 - -
(b) Provisions 26 5.87 7.24
Total non-current liabilities 175.96 429.99
Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 27 1,660.08 1,315.12
(i) Trade payables 28
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 10.27 35.06
Others 387.73 1,032.61
(i) Other Financial Liabilities 29 98.20 154.22
(b) Other current liabilities 30 44.73 81.04
(c) Provisions 31 22.60 11.83
Total Current liabilities 2,223.61 2,629.88
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 8,248.34 9,813.15
Singnificant Accounting Policies 2

Theacconp aningnot e (1- 56)for man int ey alpart oft hefinancialst at emnt s .

As per our seperate report of even date annexed.
For R Gopal & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg No. 000846C

Vikash Aggarwal
Partner
M.No: 519574

Place :New Delhi
Date: 25th May 2023

For and on behalf of the Board

Tarun Jiwarajka
Whole Time Director & CFO
DIN No. 00386240

Anubhav Nigam
Company Secretary

Gopal Sitaram Jiwarajka

Chairman & Managing Director

DIN: 00024325
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31T MARCH, 2023 ® in lakhs)
) Note For the year For the year
Particulars No. ended ended
31st March 2023 | 31st March 2022
I. |Revenue from Operations 32 11,605.87 7,007.01
Il. |Other Income 33 22.87 257.46
lll. |Total Income (I+I) 11,628.74 7,264.47
IV. |EXPENSES
Cost of materials consumed 129.91 534.89
Purchases of Stock-in-trade 11,045.42 5,966.78
Changs inInvent ories offinishadgpods, st ¢cBRdin-tr addaazl 632.15
work in progress
Employ eeben it s ex pen s es 35 235.20 340.93
Finance costs 36 106.37 311.97
Depreciation and amortization expense 37 19.89 43.66
Other expenses 38 385.53 644.19
Total expenses (V) 12,046.63 8,474.57
V. | Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items and tax -417.89 -1,210.10
VI. |Exceptional Items 39 766.58 -3,982.41
VII. | Profit/(loss) before tax -1,184.47 2,772.31
VIIl. [ Tax expense:
(1) Current tax - -
(2) Deferred tax expense/(Income) 40 -287.53 367.67
IX. |Profit/(loss) for the year -896.94 2,404.64
X | Other Comprehensive Income
(i)t e t hat willnot ber eclassifiedsubseuenftly tfo profit o loss
Re mas ur eent @ins (osse)on dinelben it plans -10.12 -3.92
Income Tax effect (Deferred Tax) 2.55 0.99
Total Other Comprehensive Income -7.57 -2.93
Xl |Total Comprehensive Income -904.51 2,401.71
Xll | Earnings Per Equity Share of Face Value of Rs. 10 each 41
Basic & diluted earning per share before exceptional items (3.58) (8.99)
Basic & diluted earning per share after exceptional items (10.18) 27.30
Significant accounting policies 2

Theacconmp aningnot e (1- 56)for man int ey alpart oft hefinancialst at eent s.

As per our seperate report of even date annexed.
For R Gopal & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg No. 000846C

For and on behalf of the Board

Vikash Aggarwal Tarun Jiwarajka Gopal Sitaram Jiwarajka
Partner Whole Time Director & CFO Chairman & Managing Director
M.No: 519574 DIN No. 00386240 DIN: 00024325

Place :New Delhi
Date: 25th May 2023

Anubhav Nigam
Company Secretary
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2023

A. Equity share capital (Refer note 21)

X in lakhs)

Particulars Balance as at c(;hiatl;?:lsj:lt:ql:il:{ sl:;: d Changes in equity share Balance as at
April 1,2021 P err0|l')s P capital during the period| March 31, 2022

Equity share capital 881.45 - - 881.45

( in lakhs)
Particulars Balance as at cgh;';?zﬁ;nt:ql:;z s::ir: d Changes in equity share Balance as at

April 1,2022 P o P capital during the period | March 31,2023
Equity share capital 881.45 - - 881.45
B. Other equity (Refer note 22)
( in lakhs)
Other
Reserves & surplus comprehensive
income
Particulars Securities Remeasurement Total
premium General Retained earnings R A AR
reserves | Reserves benefit liability /
asset

Balance as of April 1,2021 3,247.29| 4,045.58 -3,814.97 -7.78| 3,470.12
Changes in equity for the year ended March
31,2022
Profit dur ingt hey er - - 2,404.64 2,404.64
Other comprehensive income for the year - - -2.93 -2.93
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 2,404.64 -2.93| 2,401.71
Transactions with owners in their capacity as
owners :
Balance as of March 31, 2022 3,247.29| 4,045.58 -1,410.33 -10.71 5,871.83
Balance as of April 1,2022 3,247.29| 4,045.58 -1,410.33 -10.71 5,871.83
Changes in equity for the year ended March
31, 2023
Pr ofit dur in gt hey er - -896.94 - -896.94
Other comprehensive income for the year - - -7.57 -7.57
Total comprehensive income for the year - -896.94 -7.57 -904.51
Transactions with owners in their capacity as
owners :
Balance as of March 31, 2023 3,247.29| 4,045.58 -2,307.27 -18.28( 4,967.32

Nature and purpose of reserves :

(A) Securities premium reserves
Securities premium is used to record the premium received on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised only for
limited purposes in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

(B) General Reserves
This repr esent s appropriationofprofit aft @ t ax by t heconpany.
(C) Retained earnings
Re ainedear ning ar et heprofits t hat t heconpany has er nedt ill dat ¢ less any tr ans:

dividends or other distributions paid to shareholders.
Theacconp aningnot e (1- 56)for man int eg alpart oft hefinancialst at eent s.

As per our seperate report of even date annexed. For and on behalf of the Board
For R Gopal & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg No. 000846C

Vikash Aggarwal Tarun Jiwarajka Gopal Sitaram Jiwarajka
Partner Whole Time Director & CFO Chairman & Managing Director
M.No: 519574 DIN No. 00386240 DIN: 00024325
Place :New Delhi Anubhav Nigam
Date: 25th May 2023 Company Secretary
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH ,2023

( in lakhs)

Particulars

Year Ended 31.03.2023

Year Ended 31.03.2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :
Profit/(Loss) before tax

Adjustment for :

Depreciation and amortization expense

Interest Paid

Interest Income

Allowance for doubtful receivables

Irrecoverable Claims / Advances w/off including provision
Provision for Irrecoverable Loans & Advances

Bad Debts

Loss/ (Profit)on saleofPropeaty,
Profit on saleoflongta mnvetnmnt
Liability no longer required written back

Gain on no dificat ion on leas e
Exceptional Items

Operating Profit before Working Capital changes
Adjustment for :

(Increase) /Decrease in Inventories
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade and other receivables
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade and other payables
Cash Generated from/ (used in ) Operating Activities
Adjustment for :

Direct taxes (paid ) / Refund Received (net)

Net cash from/ (used in ) Operating Activities

Plant an

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :
Expenditure on Property, Plant & Equipment
Sale proceeds, Plant & Equipment

Margin Money (given)/realised

Proceeds from sale of Investment

Proceeds from sale of Land ( net of charges )
Lease Rent Paid

Loan received back/(given) to employees
Interest received

Net cash from / (used in ) Investing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :
Proceeds of long term Borrowings

Repayments of long term Borrowings
Proceeds/(Repayments) of short term Borrowings (Net)
Interest Paid

Net cash from/(used in) Financing Activities

Net Increase/ (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents :
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

-1,184.47

19.89
106.37
-1.82
37.20
361.56
-359.93
6.03
dEquip mn t -
-33.45
766.58
-282.05

239.08
-182.19
-731.47
-956.63

-73.28
-1,029.91

-13.66
85.62
3.60

821.42

2.1
1.11
900.21

-302.39
445.46
-154.96
-11.88

-141.58
143.69
2.11

2,772.31

43.66
290.71
-2.07
-1,005.51
514.76
-491.93
1,303.49
-2.78
-0.02
-45.21
-2.55
-3,982.41
-607.54

705.24
1,421.69
-1,063.23
456.15

-16.84
439.31

-57.12
26.52
-7.23
4.35
5,629.84
-418.00
-0.34
3.71
5,181.74

31.63
-1,906.12
-3,339.54

-269.41
-5,483.44

137.61
6.08
143.69
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The accompaning notes (1-56) form an integral part of the financial statements.

Note:

1. The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set out in IND AS-7 notified
under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013.

2. Components of Cash and Cash equivalents (% in lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

2022-23 2021-22

Balances with banks
Current accounts 4.59
Cash in hand 2.11 1.60
Cheque In hand - 137.50
Total ( refer Note-15) 2.11 143.69

3. Change in liabilities arising from financial activities (% in lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

2022-23 2021-22

Opening 1,719.55 6,904.88
Additions during the year 445.46 31.63
Re-payments during the year -302.39 -5,245.66
Other adjustments -48.59 28.70
Closing Balance 1,814.04 1,719.55

4. Figures in minus indicate cash outflows.

As per our seperate report of even date annexed.
For R Gopal & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg No. 000846C

Vikash Aggarwal
Partner
M.No: 519574

Place :New Delhi
Date: 25th May 2023

For and on behalf of the Board

Tarun Jiwarajka
Whole Time Director & CFO
DIN No. 00386240

Anubhav Nigam
Company Secretary

Gopal Sitaram Jiwarajka
Chairman & Managing Director

DIN: 00024325
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
1 Corporate information

Salora International Limited is a public limited company incorporated and domiciled in India, listed at Bombey

St o ckEx chan @(BSELt d. ). It s rest a edandcor por at eo fficeis locat edat B 13/ 40khlal n ¢
New Delhi 110020. The principal activity of the Company is Manufacturing / Distribution / Marketing of smart TVs,

Home Theatres, Speakers, Mobile Phones, smart watch, neckband, smart charger and also distribution of large

variety of Telecom / Audio and Lifestyle Products.

2 Significant accounting policies
A  Statement of Compliance

Thes efinancial st at eent s hav eben pr e ar edin accor dan cewit ht hel ndian Account ing
(referred to as “Ind AS”) prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as amended from time to time.

B Basis of preparation

Thes efinancial st at eent s ar epr epar edunde t hehist or icalcost conventionont|
certain assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value / amortised cost / transaction price as stated

in respective accounting policies / notes.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly-issued accounting standard is

initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy

hitherto in use.

Functional and presentation currency
Thes efinancial st at eent s ar epr es et edin Indian Rupes (INRor ‘Rs. )whichis als
functional currency. All amounts are rounded-off to the nearest lakhs, unless indicated otherwise

The Financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 25th May,2023
C  Use of estimates and judgements

Thepr epar at ion of t hefinancial st at eent s, reuire mnaget t o nmkee t inat e
assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies

and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the

dat eoft hefinancial st at eent s andr @ orteamunts ofreeeues ande pers e di
results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management

beco mes awar eo fchan gs in circunst ances surroundingt heest imt es. Changs in et i
inthefinancial st at eent s in t hey ear in whichchan gs ar enadean d, if mat @ ial, t hdr €f
inthenot e tothefinancialst at emnt s.

Areas involving critical estimates and Judgements are:

- Estimation of useful lives of property, plant and equipment (Refer note no. D below)

- Inmpairmnt offinancialandnon financialassa s (R€e not eno. Jbdow))
- Estimation of current tax expenses (Refer note no. O below)

- Estimt ion ofeploy eeddinedben fit oblicat ions REa not eno. Nbdow)
- Estimation of provisions and contingent liabilities (Refer note no. P below)

D Property plant and equipment (PPE):

Property, plant and Equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
if any. Cost comprises the purchase net of input of taxes price and any attributable cost of bringing the
asset to its working condition for its intended use. Borrowing costs relating to acquisition of Property, Plant
and Equipment which takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are also included to
the extent they relate to the period till such assets are ready for use.The useful lives for these assets is in
compliance with the useful lives as indicated under Part C of Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013.

Property, plant and Equipment assets not ready for the intended use on the date of the Balance Sheet are
disclosed as “capital work-in-progress”.

Depreciation

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment is provided as per Straight Line Method on the basis of useful
life of assets as indicated under Part C of Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013.

Category Useful Life

Building (ncludingr oads) 30- 60¥ar s
Plant &Equ ip mn t 15¥ar s

M uld&De 8 ¥ar s

Furniture & Fixture 10 years

OfficeEq u ip man t 5¥ar s

Vehi cl es 8- 10¥ar s
Comput & 3¥ar s

__ eceez /g '
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Assets costing up to Rs. .05 lacs each are depreciated fully in the year of purchase.

Depreciation on assets added/sold/disposed or discarded during the year is being provided on pro-rata basis
up to the date on which such assets are added/sold or discarded. Leasehold Land is amortized over the
period of lease.

The management believes that the useful life as given above the best represent the period over which the
management expects to use these assets. The Company reviews the useful lives and residual value at each
reporting date.

E Intangible assets

Int an gbleas s & s ar er ecoqnis edwhen it is pr obablet hat t hefut ur eecon o nmcbhen it s
t heassa s willflowt ot heemt @ priseandt hecost oft heassé& s can beneas ur elr dic

Intangible assets are stated at original cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any.
Intangible assets are amortised over the useful life of such assets.
F Leases-(Right of use)

The Company enters into hiring/service arrangements for various assets. The Company evaluates whether
acontract cont ains aleaseor not, in accor dancewit ht hepr inciples oflndAS116
judgmnt s includingbut not limt edlt o, whe ha assd& is inplicit ly idemt ified, s ubs
available with the supplier, decision making rights with respect to how the underlying asset will be used,

economic substance of the arrangement, etc.

As a lessee the Company has measured lease liability at the present value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application. After the commencement
date / transition date, The Company measures the right-of-use asset applying a cost model, whereas the
Company measures the right-of-use asset at cost:

(a) less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses; and
(b) adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability

TheCompany r ecoqnis e t hefinancechar gs on leas eex pen s eon r eucin gbalan ceo f leas €
Lease asset is depreciated over the lease term on straight line basis.

The Company applies the above policy to all leases except:
(@) leas es for whicht heleas et @ mas dein ein I n dAS116)en ds wit hin 12no nt hs o ft heacq
(b) leas es for whicht heunde lyingassea is oflowvalue(es ehavingmnt hly r et all

As alessor t heConmpany ident ifies leases as opea at ingandfinanceleas e Aleas eis clas
lease if the Company transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying
asset.

At t hecomnman cemnt dat € t heConpany r ecoqnise assa s hddunda afinancelasein it ¢
and present them as a receivable at an amount equal to the net investment in the lease. After the initial
recoquition t heConmpany recoquise financeinconeov e t helaaset @ m baselon ap:
constant periodic rate of return on the lessor’s net investment in the lease.

For Operating leases as a lessor the Company recognises lease payments from operating leases as income
straight-line basis.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have
ben clas s ifiedin financingact ivit ies in cas hflows .

G Borrowing cost
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part
of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that the company incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

H Current versus non-current

An asset is current when it is:
+ Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;
+ Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
+ Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or
+ Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
t wdvemnt hs aft @ t her @ or tingpea iod Alot he asséd& s ar eclassifiedas non -

A liability is current when:

+ Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;
« Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading;
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+ Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or
+ There is no unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period.
All ot heg liabilit ies ar eclas sifiedas non-curret. Curret liabilit ie includecu
financial liabilit ies .

| Financial instruments
(i) Initial recognition

Thecompany reoqize financial asséa s andfinancial liabilit ies when it beo nes
contractualprovisions oft heinstrumnt. Alfinancialasséd& s andliabilit i
on initial recognition, except for trade receivables which are initially measured at transaction price.
Tr ansact ion costs t hat ar edir ect ly at t r ibut ablet o t heacquisition or i:
financial liabilit ies t hat ar enot at fair valuet rouciprofit or loss, ar eadj
financialasse& s / financial liabilit ies on initialr eeoqition.

(ii) Subsequent measurement
a) Financial assets carried at amortized cost

Afinancial asséd is subseuetly masur edat amor t izedcost ifit is hddwitt
who s eo bj ect iveis t o holdt heas s & inor de t o collet cont r act ualcas hflows,
oft hefinancialas s & gveriseon speifieddat et o cas hflows t hat ar esoldy pay 1
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

b) Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss

Afinancial assa& whichis not classifiedin any oft heabov ecat epr ies is s ubs e
throucdprofit or loss.

¢) Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method. For

trade and other payables maturing within one year from the Balance sheet date, the carrying amount
approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

d) Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognized at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

(iii) Derecognition of financial instruments

Thecompany dea ecoquize afinancial ass e when t hecontract ualricht s t o t heca
financialassd e pireor it transfa st heffnancialasséd& andt het r ans fe qu al
IndAS109. Afinancial liability (or apart offinancial liability)is da ecoqiz e f
Balan ceShes when t heo bliggt ion s pecifiedin t hecont r act is dis char gdor can cdledc

(iv) Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly

transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is

based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

- In the principal market for the asset or liability or

- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

Afair valuemas ur eent ofanon-financialassé t akes int o account amar k& p:
gnea at economcbenedits by usingt heassea in its hidest andbest useor by s
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which

s u fficient dat aar eav ailablet o mas ur efair value mx imzingt heuseofr devant
and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All as s e s andliabilit ies for whichfair valueis nasur edor disclosein t hefin ar
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
sigqrificant t o t hefair valuemmas ur emnt as awho le

Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Lev d 2: Valuat ion t eehniques for whicht helowest leed input t hat is siqiific
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Lev d 3: Valuat ion t eehnique for whicht helowest levd input t hat is siqiific
measurement is unobservable

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets & liabilities
on the basis of the nature, characteristics and the risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair
value hierarchy as explained above.

PAGE| 64 l
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J Impairment:
Financial assets

Thecompany r ecoqnizes loss allowances usingt heex p ect eder eit los s (ECL)no dd for t
whichar enot fair valuelt roucdiprofit or loss. Loss allowancefor t r ader ece
financingconponent s is masur edat an ampunt equalt olifea ineECL. For allot hea fin
mas ur edat an amunt equalt ot hel2- nont hECL, unle s t ha ehas ben asiqrificant ir
from initial recognition in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of ECLs (or reversal)

that is required to adjust loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognized
isreoqizelas an inpair mnt @in or loss inprofit or loss.

Theconpany consida s financial ass & s as cr eit inpair eewhichar eout st andin gfor
case of undisputed trade receivables.

Non-financial assets

Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or

changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of

impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and value-in-use)

is d& @ mnedon an individual assé& basis unles s t heassé& does not gnea at ecas hf
independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash

Generating Unit to which the asset belongs.

Ifsuchassda s ar econsida edt o beinp air ed, t heinp air mnt t o ber econiz edin t heSt a
Loss is measured by the amount by which the carrying value of the assets exceeds the estimated recoverable

ammunt oft heassea . An inpairmnt loss isreasaintheSt at emnt of Pr ofit anc
a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. The carrying amount of the asset is

increased to its revised recoverable amount, provided that this amount does not exceed the carrying amount

that would have been determined (net of any accumulated amortization or depreciation) had no impairment

loss been recognized for the asset in prior years.

K Inventories

a) Inventories are valued at cost or net realisable value whichever is lower.

b) Cost ofmnufact ur efinishadgpods andwor kin proges includes cost of
manufacturing overheads.

c) Costis calculated on FIFO basis in respect of mainily trading goods and on weighted average basis in
respect of manufatured goods.

L Revenue from contacts with customers

The Company recognizes revenue, whenever control over distinct goods or services is transferred to the

customer; i.e. when the customer is able to direct the use of the transferred goods or services and obtains
substantially all of t her eminingben dit s, providedacontract wit hexfor ceabl
exists and amongst others collectability of consideration is probable taking into account customer’s
creditworthiness.

Revenue is the transaction price the Company expects to be entitled to. In determining the transaction price,

t heConmpany consida s dfect s ofv ar iableconsida at ion, t heexist enceofsigiifican!/
cash consideration and consideration payable to the customer, if any. The Company considers whether there

are other promises in the contract that are separate performance obligations to which the transaction price

needs to be allocated (e.g. warranties etc.).

Variable consideration

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the company estimates the amount of

consideration to which it will be entitled to in exchange for transferring goods to the customer. The variable

considag at ion is est imt edat contr act inception andconstrainaduntilit is hig
reversal of revenue will not occur once associated uncertainties are resolved. Some contracts with the

customers provide them with a right to return and volume rebates. The right to return and volume rebates

gives rise to variable consideration.

The amount of variable consideration is calculated by either using the expected value or the most likely amount

depending on which is expected to better predict the amount of variable consideration. Consideration is also

adjusted for the time value of money if the period between the transfer of goods or services and the receipt
ofpaymnt excedds t wdvemont hs andt he eis asigrificant financingben it dt ha t o
Company. If a contract contains more than one distinct good or service, the transaction price is allocated to

each performance obligation based on relative stand-alone selling prices. If stand-alone selling prices are not

observable, the Company reasonably estimates those.

Revenue is recognized for each performance obligation either at a point in time or over time.
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Sale of products

The Company recognizes revenues on the sale of products, net of returns and trade discounts, when control

is transferred to the customers. Sales of goods is net of taxes.

Other operating revenue

Other operational revenue represents income earned from activities incidental to the business and is

recognised when right to receive the income is established.

Other Income

Int & st incomfr omafinancialassé& is reoqizelusingt hedfect iveint @ est r at e

Other income is recognized on accrual basis.

M  Foreign exchange transactions

Functional currency

Thefunct ionalcurrecy oft heConpany is t helndian Rup e Thes efinancial st at emn

Indian rupees.

Transactions and translations

Foreign-currency-denominated monetary assets and liabilities are translated into the relevant functional

currency at exchange rates in effect at the Balance Sheet date. The gains or losses resulting from such

translations ar eincludedin neg profit/loss in t heSt at emnt of Profit andLo ¢

non-monetary liabilities denominated in foreign currency and measured at historical cost are translated at the

exchange rate prevalent at the date of the transaction.

Transaction gain or losses realized upon settlement of foreign currency transactions are included in

d¢ @ miningneg profit/loss for t hepeg iodin whicht het r ansact ion is sa t lda.

flow it e denonmnat edin for dgn curr ency ar et ranslat edint ot her dev ant funct i

exchange rate in effect on the date of the transaction.

N  Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits :

Al ep loy eeben it s duewholly wit hin t wdvemnt hs ofr eéde ingofs g vice ar eclas

eploy eben ffit s. Bav it s likes alar ies, wags, levesalary, contributiontoProy

Insurance contributions etc. paid or payable during the reporting period and the expected bonus expense are

recognised as an expense on an undiscounted basis in the period in which the employee renders the related

service.

Long term employee benefits :

Compensated absesnce:

The liability for leave encashment and other compensated absences is recognized on the basis of actuarial

valuation made at the end of the year.

Post -employment benefits

a) Defined contribution plan
RfinedContributionPlans for Providnt Fund, Famly Pe@sion bendit s ar er eo
speifiedr at eor pa cent aggon salar y. No act uar ialassunptions ar er qquir et
or expenses and there is no possibility of any actuarial gain or loss. Moreover the obligations are
measured on an undiscounted basis. The contribution paid /payable under the schemes is recognised
during the period in which employee renders the related service.

b)  Defined benefit plan
TheConpany'’'s G at uity is BfineaBen it Re ir eent Plan. TheConpany ‘s liabilit y t
determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method which recognises each period of service as giving
risetoadditionalunit ofeployebavdit ext it lemnt .
Theliabilit y is providedbaselon act uarial valuation ca tifiedby consulting
recoqnizes t hend obligagtion of addinedlben it plan in it s balan ces het as an
Remeasurements comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling (excluding
ammunts includedin ned int e et onthenda ddinelben it liability)andt her €
(xcludingammunts includedin nd int @ est on t hena ddineben it liability)r
ben it plans ar er coqnis edin Ot he Conpr ehen sivelncomwhichar enot r eclas s ifi
in subsequent periods.
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(0} Income taxes

The accounting treatment followed for taxes on income is to provide for Current Income Tax and Deferred
IncomTax . Incomet ax experseis recoqizeinthenda profit int heSt at emnt of Pi
to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is recognized in other
comprehensive income. Current income tax for current and prior period is the aggregate amount of income

tax determined as payable in respect of taxable income for the period, using the tax rates and tax laws

that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the Balance Sheet date. Deferred Income Tax asset and

liability are recognized for all temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and

t hér carryingamount s int hefinancialst at emnt s except when t hedde r edin co net ax
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither
accountingnor t axablepr ofit or loss at t het ineoft het r ansact ion. Bfea r el nc
at echr @ or t ingdat eandar er educedt o t heext ent t hat it is no long pr obablet ha
will be realized.

Deferred tax is recognised based on the balance sheet approach, on temporary differences arising between

t het ax bas es ofassd s andliabilit ies andt hdr carr yingvalue in t hefinancial st at
assé s arerecoqniselonly t ot heext ent t hat it is pr obablet hat fut ur et ax ablepr
which the temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates that have been

enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date and are expected to apply when the related deferred

income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

P Provisions and contingencies

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive

obliggt ion t hat can beest imat edr diably, andit is pr obablet hat an out flow o f eo
reuiretosdatlet heobliggtion. Provisions for ong@ ous contr act s ar er eco g
to be derived by the Company from a contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting the future

obligations under the contract.

A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that

my pr obably not reguirean out flowofreource or an obligt ion for whicht h
ascertained with reasonable certainty. When there is a possible or a present obligation where the likelihood

ofout flowofresource isremte noprovisionor disclosur e

Q  Earnings per share (EPS)

Bas icEPSar econput edby dividingt hend profit or loss for t hepa iodat t r ibut abl
the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earning

pe equity shar ear econput edby dividingt hena profit attribut ablet o t heequit
by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per equity share

and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all

dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable

had the equity shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. the average market value of the outstanding

equity shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period,

unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each period

presented.

R Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and cheque in hand, bank balances, demand deposits with banks
and other short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash & which
ar esubjet toaninsiguificant r iskofchangs in valuewhea eorignalmt ur ity is t |

S Exceptional Items
Wen an it emofincomor expexsewit hin St at eent ofpr ofit or loss fromany act ivi
or incidence that their disclosure is relevant to explain the performance of the Company for the year, the
nature and amount of such items is disclosed as exceptional items.
T Statement of Cash flows
Cas hflows ar er @gor t edlusingt heindir ect & hodwhe eby t hepr ofit bdor et ax is ad
the transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past and future operating cash receipts
or paymnts andit e ofincomor expexse associat elwit hinvetingor financir
flows fromope ating invetingandfinancingact ivitie oft heconpany ar es e ant
U Operating segment
In accor dan cewit hIndAS108, t heopea at ingsegent s usedt o pres et semt infor
on the basis of internal reports used by the Company’s Management to allocate resources to the segments
and assess their performance. The Board of Directors is collectively the Company’s ‘Chief Operating Decision
Maker’ or ‘CODM’ within the meaning of Ind AS 108.
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V  Assets held for sale /disposal

Assets held for sale are carried on balance sheet at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less cost to
sell and no depreciation is charged on them as per Ind AS 105.

W  Standards issued but not yet effective

TheMnistry ofCor por at eAffair s has not iffedConpanies (I ndian Account in gSt an d:
2023v iden ot ificat ion no. G S. R242(E)dat ed31st Mir ch2023. Gv ex bdo w ar et heanen dnen
AST, IndAS8 I ndAS12in br idgandt hdr pos sibleinpact on t heffnancial st at emnt s c
oft heamh dntnt s ar econsequentialin nat ur eandhaveno mat & ialinpact on t hefinan

Ind AS 1 — Presentation of Financial Statements:

Disclosure of Accounting Policies, amended paragraphs 7, 10, 114, 117 and 122, added paragraphs

117A-117E and deleted paragraphs 118,119 and 121. The amendments to Ind AS 1 are applicable for annual
reortingpea iods bggnningon or aft @ 1TApr il 2023. Theanen dnment s eks t o r g laces i¢
policies with material accounting policy information and provides guidance on material accounting policy

information. The amendments require complete review of existing disclosure of accounting policies and may

involve redrafting, removing some of the accounting policies now being disclosed or adding new accounting

policy disclosures. The company is reviewing its accounting policy disclosure to change the same as per the

amendments.

Ind AS 8 — Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors:

Rfinit ion of Account ingEst imt es anen dedp ar ag ap hs 5 32, 34, 38an d48 an daddel p ¢
32B and 34A. These amendments are applicable for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April

2023. Theamen dren't r e laces t heddinit ion ofchangs in account inget inmt e wit han e
accountingestimt es andpr ovides giidanceon t hat ddinit ion, what ar er egpr dedas
estimates and how to apply changes in accounting estimates. The amendments shall be applied to changes

in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies that occur on or after 1 April 2023. Therefore, the

amtn dnen't s haveno inpact on t hefinancialposition, financialpe for nman ceor t heca
in the current and previous year.

Ind AS 12— Income Tax:

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction, amended paragraphs 15, 22

an d24an daddedp ar ag ap h22A. Theanen dnen t clar ifies t hat in cas e whe eat t het ineofinit |
equal amount of taxable and deductible temporary differences arise, the initial recognition exemption does

not apply and the company shall recognise deferred tax liability and deferred tax asset on gross basis on that

date of initial recognition depending on the applicable tax law. This happens typically when a lease liability

and right-of-use asset is recognised initially or when decommissioning obligations are initially recognised

and the same is added to the cost of the item of property, plant and equipment. If the application of this

requirement results in unequal amount of deferred tax asset and deferred tax liability, the difference shall be
recoquisein profit or loss. Theseanandnent s ar et o beapp liedfor annualr e@or t
or after 1 April 2023 to transactions that occur on or after the beginning of 1 April 2022. The amendment also

requires deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities to be recognised on 1 April 2022 based on the carrying

amounts of the lease liability and right-of-use asset as on 1 April 2022 and recognise any difference in opening

balance of retained earnings or another component of equity, where appropriate, if the company has applied

the initial recognition exemption requirements earlier or had recognised deferred tax assets and deferred tax

liabilities on net basis. The same is also required for decommissioning obligations recognised initially and

added to the cost of the item of property, plant and equipment. As the company has recognised deferred tax

assets and deferred tax liabilities on gross basis on lease liability and right-of use assets, the amendment has

no inpact oft hefinancialst at eent s. Furt hea, t her quir emnt s r dat in gt o deco nm
not applicable to the company.

'
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3 Property, Plant and Equipment ( in lakhs)
Furniture .
. . Plant & Dies & . Office Total
Particulars Building & X Vehicles X
. Machinery | Moulds Equipment | Assets
Fixtures

Gross Carrying Amount*

Balance as at 1st April, 2021 594.73 462.92| 2,423.44| 530.31 68.43 58.87| 4,138.70
Additions 1.13 55.28 0.70 57.11
Deductions/ Adjustment 557.85 419.31| 225197 525.17 43.62 57.69| 3,855.61
Balance as at 31st March, 2022 36.88 43.61 172.60 5.14 80.09 1.88| 340.20

Accumulated Depreciation

Balance as at 1st April, 2021 374.65 433.77| 2,248.67| 494.28 39.65 53.66| 3,644.68
For the year 14.40 1.96 9.84 4.50 8.73 0.45 39.88
Deduction/ Adjustment 363.94 399.62| 2,125.00| 495.24 31.12 53.08| 3,468.00
Balance as at 31st March, 25.11 36.11 133.51 3.54 17.26 1.03| 216.56
2022

Net carrying amount as at 31st 11.77 7.50 39.09 1.60 62.83 0.85| 123.64
March, 2022

Net carrying amount as at 31st 220.08 29.15 174.77 36.03 28.78 5.21| 494.02
March, 2021

Gross Carrying Amount*

Balance as at 1st April, 2022 36.88 43.61 172.60 5.14 80.09 1.88| 340.20
Additions 1.33 8.92 3.41 13.66
Disposal/Deduction/ -
Adjustment

Balance as at 31st March, 2023 36.88 44.94 181.52 5.14 80.09 5.29| 353.86
Accumulated Depreciation

Balance as at 1st April, 2022 25.11 36.11 133.51 3.54 17.26 1.03| 216.56
For the year 0.58 2.23 6.10 0.54 9.51 0.88 19.84
Deduction/ Adjustment -
Balance as at 31st March, 2023 25.69 38.34 139.61 4.08 26.77 1.91| 236.40
Net carrying amount as at 31th 11.19 6.60 41.91 1.06 53.32 3.38| 117.46
March, 2023

Net carrying amount as at 31st 11.77 7.50 39.09 1.60 62.83 0.85| 123.64
March, 2022

* On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its property, plant and
equipment recognised as at 1 April, 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the
cost/deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment.

Note :

i) For assets provided as security refer note no. 23 and 27.
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4 Right of use assets-Lease

Land (% in lakhs)
Particulars

Opening gross carrying value as at April 1, 2021 346.06
Addition -
Deductions/ Adjustment 341.69
Closing gross carrying value as at March 31, 2022 4.37
Opening gross carrying value as at April 1, 2022 4.37
Additions -
Deletions during the year -
Closing gross carrying value as at March 31, 2023 4.37
Opening accumulated amortisation as at April 1, 2021 54.92
Amortisation for the year 3.78
Accumulated amortisation on deletions 56.80
Closing accumulated amortisation as at March 31, 2022 1.90
Opening accumulated amortisation as at April 1, 2022 1.90
Amortisation for the year 0.04

Accumulated amortisation on deletions -

Closing accumulated amortisation as at March 31, 2023 1.94
Carrying value as at March 31, 2022 2.48
Carrying value as at March 31, 2023 2.43
Note:

i)  Leasehold Land of Delhi is under lease for 99 years

ii)  Lease hold land Gross block Rs.4.37 lakhs having carrying value as at 31.03.2023 Rs.2.43 lakhs at D-13/4,
Okhla Industrial Area,Phase-ll is in the company’s old name i.e. Electronics Consortium Private Limited.

iii) The Company measured that lease liability at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted
using incremantel borrowing rate of 10.75% p.a.
iv) For assets provided as security refer note no. 23 and 27.

5 Intangible Assets

Trade Mark (% in lakhs)
Gross Carrying Amount*
Balance as at 1st April, 2021 106.21
Additions -
Deductions/ Adjustment -
Balance as at 31st March, 2022 106.21

Accumulated Depreciation
Balance as at 1st April, 2021 101.13
For the year -

Disposal/Deduction/ Adjustment -

Balance as at 31st March, 2022 101.13
Net carrying amount as at 31st March, 2022 5.08
Net carrying amount as at 31st March, 2021 5.08
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Gross Carrying Amount*
Balance as at 1st April, 2022
Additions

Disposal/Deduction/ Adjustment
Balance as at 31st March, 2023
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance as at 1st April, 2022

For the year

Deduction/ Adjustment

Balance as at 31st March, 2023

Net carrying amount as at 31th March, 2023
Net carrying amount as at 31th March, 2022

101.13

5.08
5.08

*0n transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of its Intangible Assets
recognised as at 1 April, 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the cost/

deemed cost of the Intangible Assets.

Non-Current Investments (X in lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March 2023 | March 2022
Investments in Unquoted Bond (Fully paid)
Investments carried at amortized cost
2(P. Y 2)Uns ecur ed RedesrableMo n g Milt iplie BondofICICl Lt fofRs. 0D - each 0.02
Total 0.02 0.02
Aggregate amount of Unquoted Investments: 0.02 0.02
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments: - -
Trade Receivables-Non current (Unsecured) (X in lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March 2023 | March 2022
(at amortised cost)
Considered good - -
Significant incr es ein cr it risk 1,971.51 2,000.12
Credit impaired 1,121.51 1,095.90
Less : Provision for impairment -1,703.77 -1,678.33
Total 1,389.25 1,417.69

(Includes amunt dueRs. NIl P Y Rs. Nil/-)ofRdat edPar t y on whichAllo wan cefor ECLR
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Trade receivables ageing schedule as on March 31, 2023 ( in lakhs)

Outstanding for following periods from due date of
payment / transaction

Particulars Less 6 More Total
Not | yan6 |months | 172 | 2-3 [ than3
Due years | years
months | - 1 year years

Undisputed Trade receivables - considered - - - - - - -
good
Undisputed Trade receivables - which have - - -| 31.80| 60.16 - 91.96
siguificant incr es ein cr dit r|is k
Undisputed Trade receivables - considered - - - - -1 1,121.51 | 1,121.51
credit impaired
Disputed Trade receivables - considered - - - - - - -
good
Disputed Trade receivables - which have - 31.39 28.24 | 44.47| 28.74| 1,746.71| 1,879.55
siqrificant incr eas ein cr dit r|is k
Disputed Trade receivables - considered - - - - - - -
credit impaired

-1 31.39 28.24 | 76.27 | 88.90 | 2,868.22 | 3,093.02
Less: Provision for impairment 1,703.77

1,389.25

Trade receivables ageing schedule as on March 31, 2022 (% in lakhs)

Outstanding for following periods from due date of
payment / transaction

Particulars Less 6 More Total
Not | an6 |months | 172 | 273 | thans
Due years | years
months | - 1 year years

Undisputed Trade receivables - considered - - - - - - -

good

Undisputed Trade receivables - which have - - -| 38.06 | 119.56 - 157.62
sigrificant incr eas ein cr dit r|is k

Undisputed Trade receivables - considered - - - 1,095.90 | 1,095.90
credit impaired

Disputed Trade receivables - considered - - - - - - -
good

Disputed Trade receivables - which have -| 2258 13.79| 27.85| 53.02| 1,725.26 | 1,842.50

siguificant incr esein cr dit r|is k

Disputed Trade receivables - considered - - - - - - -
credit impaired

- 22.58 13.79| 65.91 | 172.58 | 2,821.16 | 3,096.02
Less: Provision for impairment 1,678.33
1,417.69

'
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Loans- Non current (% in lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March 2023 | March 2022
(Unsecured, Considered Doubtful)
(at amortised cost)
Inter Corporate Loan Given
- Considered Good - -
- Credit impaired - 255.00
Less: Impairment for doubtful loan - -255.00
Interest Receivable-Credit impaired - 94.40
Less: Impairment for Interest receivable - -94.40
Total - -
Other Financial Assets-Non Current (% in lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March 2023 | March 2022
(Unsecured, considered good)
(at amortised cost)
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received
- Considered Good - -
- Credit impaired 911.43 909.80
Less: : Impairment for Advances recoverable -911.43 -909.80
Security Deposits (considered good) 19.91 33.52
Total 19.91 33.52
Deferred tax Assets (Net) (% in lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March 2023 | March 2022
On account of depreciation on PPE and Intangible assets 45.97 52.79
On account of timing differences in recognition of expenditure 11.48 8.99
On account of unabsorbed business losses under the Income Tax Act, 1961 1,090.84 727.46
On account of unabsorbed depreciation under the Income Tax Act, 1961 293.33 281.49
On account of ECL & Impairment losses 666.70 747.52
Total 2,108.33 1,818.25
Deferred tax assets (net) 2,108.33 1,818.25
Non Current Tax Assets (Net) (% in lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March 2023 | March 2022
(at amortised cost)
Income Tax Refund Receivable 204.58 131.30
Total 204.58 131.30
Other Non-Current Assets (% in lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March 2023 | March 2022
(Unsecured, Considered good)
(at amortised cost)
Deposits with Statutory Authorities against disputed demands 807.75 806.64
Refunds due from Government Authorities 365.65 364.32
Total 1,173.40 1,170.96
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Inventories (% in lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March 2023 | March 2022
(At cost or net realizable value whichever is lower)
(As certified by the Management)
Raw materials 294.99 458.17
Work in progress 27.94 83.14
Finished goods 293.56 402.85
Stock in Trade 1,539.23 2,276.01
Goods in transit, Bond, and under clearance:
Raw materials - 87.59
Total 2,155.72 3,307.76
Trade Receivables (Unsecured ) (% in lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March 2023 | March 2022
- Considered good 868.15 765.12
- Credit impaired
Less : Provision for impairment -33.81 -22.05
Total 834.34 743.07

Includes amunt dueRs. 1. 58lacs (P YRs .

16. 90lacs Jo f Rdat edPar t y on whichAllo wan cefor EC

Trade receivables ageing schedule as on March 31, 2023 ( in lakhs)
Outstanding for following periods from due date of
Particulars payment / transaction Total
Not | Lessthan |6 months| 1-2 | 2-3 | More than
Due | 6 months | - 1year | years |years| 3years

Undisputed Trade receivables - considered| 191.95 614.96 61.24 - - -1 868.15
good
Undisputed Trade receivables - which have - - - - - - -
sigrificant incr eas ein cr dit rlis k
Undisputed Trade receivables - considered - - - - - - -
credit impaired
Disputed Trade receivables - considered - - - - - - -
good
Disputed Trade receivables - which have - - - - - - -
sigrificant incr eas ein cr dit rflis k
Disputed Trade receivables - considered - - - - - - -
credit impaired

191.95 614.96 61.24 - - -| 868.15
Less: Provision for impairment - - - - - -l 33.81

- - - - - -| 834.34
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Trade receivables ageing schedule as on March 31, 2022 (X in lakhs)
Outstanding for following periods from due date of
) payment / transaction
Particulars Total
Not | Lessthan |6 months| 1-2 | 2-3 | More than
Due | 6 months | - 1year | years |years| 3years
Undisputed Trade receivables - considered | 324.16 85.19| 355.77 - - -| 765.12
good
Undisputed Trade receivables - which have - - - - - - -
siqguificant incr es ein cr dit r|isk
Undisputed Trade receivables - considered - - - - - - -
credit impaired
Disputed Trade receivables - considered - - - - - - -
good
Disputed Trade receivables - which have - - - - - - -
sigrificant incr es ein cr dit rlis k
Disputed Trade receivables - considered - - - - - - -
credit impaired
324.16 85.19| 355.77 - - -| 765.12
Less: Provision for impairment - - - - - -l 22.05
- - - - - -| 743.07
Cash and Cash Equivalents ( in lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March 2023 | March 2022
(at amortised cost)
Cash balance in hand 2.11 1.60
Balances with banks
- in current accounts - 4.59
Cheque In hand - 137.50
Total 2.11 143.69
Bank Balances other than above (% in lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March 2023 | March 2022
(at amortised cost)
Fixed Deposits - Margin Money with Banks 30.35 30.01
In current accounts (seized by Sales Tax Department) - 3.94
Interest accrued but not due 1.70 0.34
Total 32.05 34.29
Loans- Non current ( in lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March 2023 | March 2022
(Unsecured, Considered good)
(at amortised cost)
Loan to employees 1.20 3.31
Interest accrued but not due 0.31 0.95
Total 1.51 4.26
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Other Financial Assets (% in lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March 2023 | March 2022
(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
(at amortised cost)
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received*
-Considered Good 10.45 8.95
-Credit impaired - 10.53
Less: : Impairment for Advances recoverable - -10.53
Incentive receivable 12.28 12.28
Receivable from related party 9.85 20.59
Receivable against Sale of Land - 641.82
Total 32.58 683.64
Other Current Assets ( in lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March 2023 | March 2022
(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
(at amortised cost)
Advance to Suppliers 6.67 9.86
Balances with government authorities 156.30 59.63
Prepaid expenses 6.60 5.16
Total 169.57 74.65
Assets held for disposal (X in lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March 2023 | March 2022
Property, Plant and Equipment - 118.85
Total - 118.85
0.21 (% in lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March, 2023 | As at 31st March, 2022
Number Rs. Number Rs.
Equity Share Capital:
Authorised:
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 /- each 2,00,00,000| 2,000.00| 2,00,00,000 2,000.00
Issued and Subscribed :
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 88,20,000 882.00( 88,20,000 882.00
Issued, Subscribed and Paid--up :
Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 88,07,300 880.73 88,07,300 880.73
Share Capital forfeited Equity Shares @ 5.65/- each 12,700 0.72 12,700 0.72
Total 881.45 881.45

(b)

Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:

(% in lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March, 2023 | As at 31st March, 2022
Number Rs. Number Rs.
Equity shar s out st andin gat t hebejr n BB @300 |he¥@80.73| 88,07,300 880.73
Add: Issued during the year - - - -
Less: Shares bought back - - - -
Equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 88,07,300 880.73 88,07,300 880.73
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Therights, preferences and restrictions attached to each class of shares including restrictions on the distribution
of dividends and the repayment of Capital are as under:
The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity
share is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of company, the holders of equity shares will be
entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amount. The distribution

will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Particulars of equity share holders holding more than 5% of the total number of equity share capital:

Name of shareholders: As at 31st March, 2023 As at 31st March, 2022
No.of Shares % of holding | No.of Shares % of holding
Gopal Kumar Jiwarajka 23,39,011 26.56 23,39,011 26.56
Gopal Kumar Jiwarajka HUF 14,98,988 17.02 14,98,988 17.02
Neetu Jiwarajka 7,31,410 8.30 7,31,410 8.30
Manori Properties Pvt Ltd. 5,58,929 6.35 5,58,929 6.35
Alert Consultants & Credit Private Ltd 5,65,136 6.42 7,43,283 8.44
Shareholding of Promoters As at March 31, 2023
Name of Promoters Number of shares % of Holding Change in %
Gopal Kumar Jiwarajka 23,39,011 26.56 -
Gopal Kumar Jiwarajka HUF 14,98,988 17.02 -
Neetu Jiwarajka 7,31,410 8.30 -
Manori Properties Pvt Ltd. 5,58,929 6.35 -
Tarun Jiwarajka 3,72,741 4.23 -
Ayush Jiwarajka 3,75,087 4.26 -
Sukriti Jiwarajka 1,89,665 2.15 2.15
Shareholding of Promoters As at March 31, 2022
Name of Promoters Number of shares % of Holding Change in %
Gopal Kumar Jiwarajka 23,39,011 26.56 -
Gopal Kumar Jiwarajka HUF 14,98,988 17.02 -
Neetu Jiwarajka 7,31,410 8.30 -
Manori Properties Pvt Ltd. 5,58,929 6.35 -
Tarun Jiwarajka 3,72,741 4.23 -
Ayush Jiwarajka 3,75,087 4.26 -
Other Equity
Securities Premium Reserve (% in lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March 2023 | March 2022
At t hebeggn nin gan den do ft he¥ar
Share Premium Account 3,244.42 3,244.42
Share Premium Forfeited 2.87 2.87
Sub Total 3,247.29 3,247.29
General Reserve (% in lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March 2023 | March 2022
At t hebggnninganden do ft he¥ar 4,045.58 4,045.58
Sub Total 4,045.58 4,045.58
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Retained earnings (% in lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March 2023 | March 2022
At t hebeggn nin go ft he¥ar -1,410.33 -3,814.97
Add:Pr ofit / (Loss)Tr ans fa r edfr omSt at eent ofPr ofif &L0-896.94 2,404.64
Sub Total -2,307.27 -1,410.33
Other Comprehensive Income/ (loss) (% in lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March 2023 | March 2022
Re-measurements of Defined Employee Benefits plans
At t hebeggn nin go ft he¥ar -10.71 -7.78
Addition during the year: (Net of Tax) -7.57 -2.93
At t heexdo ft he¥ar -18.28 -10.71
Sub Total -18.28 -10.71
Total 4,967.32 5,871.83
Borrowings- Non Current ( in lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March 2023 | March 2022
(at amortised cost)
(a) Secured
Term Loan:
Working capital loans from Banks 381.37 676.07
(Under Guaranteed Emergency Credit Line (GECL)
Less : Current maturities of working capital loans 245.33 297.96
Sub Total 136.04 378.11
Vehicle loans from Banks 26.32 34.00
Less : Current maturities of vehicle loans(Refer Note No. 27) 8.40 7.68
Sub Total 17.92 26.32
Total 153.96 404.43

Additional Information:

Working capital term loans are secured by hypothecation of inventories, receivables and other moveable/

immovable assets.
Working capital term loans from Banks repayable on monthly instalment basis.

Various term loans against GECL have been availed with a tenure ranging from 2 to 5 year and bearing interest

@9.25% p.a.

Vehicle loans are secured against hypothecation of cars and bearing interest ranging from 9.50% to 10.00% p.a.

Vehicle loans from Banks, repayment on monthly instalment basis.

Repayment terms of borrowings (Working capital loans)-(Under Guaranteed Emergency Credit Line (GECL)

(% in lakhs)
Due in next As at March | As at March
31,2023 31, 2022
One year 245.33 297.96
Second year 136.04 245.33
Thir dt o fi ft hy ar - 132.78
Total 381.37 676.07
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Repayment terms of borrowings (Vehicle loans) ® in lakhs)
Due in next As at March | As at March
31,2023 31, 2022
One year 8.40 7.68
Second year 6.98 8.40
Thir dt o fift hy ear 10.94 17.92
Total 26.32 34.00
Other Financial Liabilities-Non Current (% in lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March 2023 | March 2022
Trade Deposit 16.13 18.32
Total 16.13 18.32
Lease laibilities (% in lakhs)
Particulars As at March | As at March
31,2023 31, 2022
Opening Balance 62.43
Addition during the year
Finance Charges on lease -
Repayment/reversal during the year -62.43
Closing Balance - -
Provisions-Non Current (% in lakhs)
Particulars As at March | As at March
31,2023 31, 2022
Employ ess ben it s
Provision for Leave 5.87 7.24
Total 5.87 7.24
Borrowings-Current  in lakhs)
Particulars As at March | As at March
31,2023 31, 2022
Secured Loans:
Working capital From Banks 288.39 1.71
Sub Total 288.39 1.71
Unsecured Loans:
Loans from related parties 963.81 930.03
Loan from Other 125.00 -
Interest accrued 28.02 70.33
Sub Total 1,116.83 1,000.36
Current maturities of long term borrowing
Current maturities of long term debt : working capital term loan 245.33 297.96
Current maturities of long term debt : vehicle loans 8.40 7.68
Interest accrued 1.13 7.41
Total 254.86 313.05
Total 1,660.08 1,315.12
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Working capital term loans are secured by hypothecation of inventories, receivables and other moveable/

immovable assets.

Working capital term loans from Banks repayable on monthly instalment basis.
Various term loans against GECL have been availed with a tenure ranging from 2 to 5 year and bearing interest

@ 9.25% p.a.

Vehicle loans are secured against hypothecation of cars and bearing interest ranging from 9.50% to 10.00% p.a.
Vehicle loans from Banks, repayment on monthly instalment basis.

Disclosure as per Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Section 186(4) of the Companies Act, 2013

Loans from related parties for the year ended :

Amount in Rs.

Maximum balance outstanding

Name of the Party Interest rate (X in lakhs) during the year ( in lakhs)
Mr. Gopal Sitaram Jiwarajka ( 2022-23) 5.75% 963.81 963.80
Mr. Gopal Sitaram Jiwarajka (2021-22) 5.75% 841.28 1,118.59
Devi Electronics Pvt Ltd ( 2022-23) - 88.75
Devi Electronics Pvt Ltd (2021-22) 8.15% 88.75 89.00
28 Trade Payables (% in lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March 2023 | March 2022
Dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises* 10.27 35.06
Others 387.73 1,032.61
Total 398.00 1,067.67

Additional Information:

*TheCo np any has declar edt hedues t o Mcr o,

received from parties (Refer note no. 48).

Small an d MdiumEnt @ prise on t

Ageing schedule as at March 31, 2023 (% in lakhs)

Particulars Not | Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment/ transaction Total
due | Lessthan1year | 1-2years | 2-3years | More than 3 years

MSME 1.10 0.05 5.56 3.56 10.27

Others 64.39 172.19 7.07 9.96 66.28| 319.89

Disputed dues - MSME -

Disputed dues - Others -

64.39 173.29 7.12 15.52 69.84| 330.16

Accrued expenses 67.84

398.00

Ageing schedule as at March 31, 2022 (% in lakhs)

. Not | Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment / transaction

R due |Lessthan1year| 1-2years | 2-3years | More than 3 years Total

MSME 1.75 1.63 9.87 21.81 - 35.06

Others 417.26 396.09 22.11 43.07 46.54| 925.07

Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - -

Disputed dues - Others - - - - - -

419.01 397.72 31.98 64.88 46.54| 960.13

Accrued expenses 107.54

1,067.67

hebas is o
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29 Other Financial liabilities- Current (% in lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March 2023 | March 2022
Payable to Employees 98.20 154.22
Total 98.20 154.22
30 Other Current liabilities (% in lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March 2023 | March 2022
Statutory Liabilities 13.91 23.37
Advance from customers 21.03 48.63
Others 9.79 9.04
Total 44.73 81.04
31 Provisions-Current (% in lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March 2023 | March 2022
Enploy ess ben it s :
Provision for Leave 6.78 8.93
Provision for Gratuity 15.82 2.90
Total 22.60 11.83
32 Revenue from Operations: (R in lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March 2023 | March 2022
Sales of Goods
Domestic 11,572.42 6,963.75
Total 11,572.42 6,963.75
Other Operating Income
Liability no Longer required written back 33.45 42.66
Other Income - 0.60
33.45 43.26
Total Revenue from Operations 11,605.87 7,007.01
33 Other Income: (% in lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March 2023 | March 2022
Interest 1.82 2.07
Rent received 5.38 15.45
Liability no Longer required written back(lease liability) 2.56
Commision received - 232.38
Misc income 0.96 -
Sundry balances w/back 14.71 -
Profit on saleoflongt e mnvetnmnt - 0.02
Provision for Diminution in Value of Investment - 2.20
Profit on saleofPrope ty, Plant andEquip mnt - 2.78
Total 22.87 257.46
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Changes in Inventories of finished goods, Stock-in-trade and work in progress (X in lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March 2023 | March 2022
Stock at the end of the year
Work in progress 27.94 83.15
Stock in trade: 2,316.20 2,876.01
Finished goods 293.56 477.85
Sub Total : 2,637.70 3,437.01
Less : Stock at the beginning of the year
Work in progress 83.15 83.36
Finished goods and Stock in trade 2,276.01 3,375.62
Finished goods 402.85 610.18
Sub Total : 2,762.01 4,069.16
(Increase) / Decrease in Stock : 124.31 632.15
*refer note no. 39
Employee benefits expenses: (R in lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March 2023 | March 2022
Salaries and wages 212.66 312.56
Contribution to provident and other funds 16.97 26.32
St aff Wdfar e& Ot ha Ber it s 5.57 2.05
Total 235.20 340.93
Finance Costs: (% in lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March 2023 | March 2022
Interest 106.37 290.71
Other Borrowing costs - 21.26
Total 106.37 311.97
Depreciation and amortization: (% in lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March 2023 | March 2022
Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment 19.85 39.88
Amortization of Land (ROU) 0.04 3.78
Total 19.89 43.66
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Other expenses: (% in lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March 2023 | March 2022

Assembly Charges 0.08 4.25
Stores & Spares Consumed 0.24 0.09
Power and fuel 12.93 21.17
Rent 1.02 0.51
Repair & Maintenance :-

Plant & Machinery 0.33 0.90
Others 30.03 8.76
Insurance 6.05 8.46
Rates and taxes 2.73 8.79
Legal and professional fees 67.31 63.64
Payment to Auditors -
Statutory Audit Fees (including Limited review) 7.84 7.84
Tax Audit Fees 1.05 1.05
Ceg t ificat ion 0.05 0.12
Expenses reimbursed 0.70 0.70
In Other capacity 1.05 1.05
Travelling & Conveyance 18.42 22.09
Freight and Forwarding 32.14 32.08
Bank charges 1.18 2.84
Discount, Commission & Incentives 63.15 68.36
Advertisement & Publicity 10.49 1.78
After Sale Service Charges 12.74 4.45
Sales Tax/GST/Excise/Service Tax etc. (net) 13.22 8.41
Bad Debts 6.03 1,303.49
Allowance for doubtful receivables 37.20 -1,005.51
Irrecoverable Claims / Advances w/off 359.93 514.76
Provision for Irrecoverable Claims & Advances w/back -359.93 -491.93
Provision for Irrecoverable Claims & Advances 1.62 -
Short / (Excess) Claims -3.36 -5.79
Miscellaneous expenses 37.45 35.83
Security services 15.41 20.17
Net (gain)/loss on foreign currency transaction 8.43 5.83
Total 385.53 644.19
Exceptional Items* (% in lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st

March 2023 | March 2022

Lease Rent -35.00 418.00
Loss on Assets Discarded 33.23 245.02
Profit on Saleo fland - -6,046.65
Excess consideration received against sale of land -144.60 -
Writedown of Inventory ( FG) 776.97 675.00
Writedown of Obsolute Inventory (RM ) 135.98 112.52
Allowance for doubtful receivables - 613.70
Total 766.58 -3,982.41

* (refer note no.50)
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Income tax recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss (% in lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Current tax expense
Current year - -
Total - -
Deferred tax expense/(Income) -287.53 367.67
Total income tax expense -287.53 367.67
Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income (% in lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Net actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans
Before tax -10.12 -3.92
Tax x pens & (ber dit) 2.55 0.99
Net of tax -7.57 -2.93

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate

(% in lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31st March 2023 31st March 2022

Pr ofit bedor et ax -1,184.47 2,772.31
Tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate of -298.11 697.73
25.168% (previous year 25.168% )
Tax effect of:
Broudt for war dCap it al Los s e adjfust edfr ompr-fofit -188.17
during the year
Rate difference between business loss & capital gain - -21.74
Others 10.58 -120.15
Income Tax Expenses/ (Income) recognised in the -287.53 367.67
statement of profit and loss account

Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income Rs. 2.55 lacs (In PY Rs.0.99 lacs)

The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year ended March 31, 2023:

(% in lakhs)
Credit/ Credit/ As at
As at 1st | (charge) in | As at 31st | (charge) in 31st
Deferred tax assets/ ( liabilities ) April, statement March, | statement March
2021 of Profit and 2022 of Profit !
2023
Loss and Loss
On account of Depreciation -34.00 34.00 - - -
On account of amount allowable on 15.79 -6.80 8.99 2.49 11.48
payment basis & others
On account of brought forwarded 734.52 -7.06 727.46 363.78| 1,090.84
business losses
On account of brought forwarded 281.89 -0.39 281.50 12.23 293.33
Unabsorbed depreciation
On account of ECL & Impairment losses 969.94 -222.42 747.52 -80.82 666.70
On account of depreciation on property, - 52.79 52.79 -6.82 45.97
plant & equipment, Intangible assets
and ROU
On account of Capital losses 216.80 -216.80 - - -
Total 2,184.94 -366.68| 1,818.26 290.87| 2,108.33
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Earnings per Share (% in lakhs)
Particulars For the Year ended | For the Year ended
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
a) Na profit/ (loss)as pea St at eent ofPr ofift andLos s at t|fr ibut able
to Equity Shareholders
— Before Exceptional Item -314.93 -791.60
— After Exceptional ltem -896.94 2,404.64
b) Number of weighted average equity shares outstanding during 88,07,300 88,07,300
the year for the purpose of calculation of earnings per share
¢) Nominal value of equity share (in Rs.) 10.00 10.00
d) Basic & diluted earning per share before exceptional items -3.58 -8.99
e) Basic & diluted earning per share after exceptional items -10.18 27.30

42 Employee benefits
A. Defined benefit plan
Gratuity
TheCompany provides t ot hedigbleepw loy ess, ddineben it plans int hefor mofg a
plan provides for a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death while in employment or
on termination of employment of an amount equivalent to 15 days’ salary payable for each completed
year ofsa vice Vstingoccur s uponconpleg ionoffivecontinuous yars of:
Thefo llowin gt ables & s out t hedd ails oft heddinelben it r & ir emnt plans an dt hec
int hefinancial st at eent s baselon act uar ialvaluat ionreort:

i) Change in Present Benefit Obligation (% in lakhs)
2022-2023 2021-2022
Present value of obligations at the beginning of the period 100.86 103.36
Current Service Cost 2.64 4.45
Interest Cost 5.85 6.20
Re-measurement(or actuarial)(gain)/loss arising from:
a) change in demographic assumptions - 473
b)chan gin financialassunmptions -2.23 -1.56
¢) experience variance(i.e actual experience vs assumptions) 9.98 1.72
Past Service Cost - -
Ben it s Paid -61.84 -18.03
Present value of obligations at the end of the period 55.26 100.87
i) Change in fair value of plan assets (% in lakhs)
2022-2023 2021-2022
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the period 97.97 91.51
Investment Income 5.68 5.49
Ben it s Paid -61.84 -
Return on plan assets ,excluding amount recognised in -2.37 0.97
net interest expense
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the period 39.44 97.97
iii) Expenses recognised in Income statement (% in lakhs)
2022-2023 2021-2022
Current Service Cost 2.64 4.45
Past Service Cost - -
Nt Inteaest Cost/ (ncomon t heNe| Bfi ned BaOdi7t 0.71
Liability/(Asset)
Expevser coqiseain St at eent ofPr ofit andLo 2.81 5.16
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iv) Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) (% in lakhs)
2022-2023 2021-2022
Acturial Gain/Losses
a) Change in Demographic assumptions - 473
b)Change in Financial Assumptions -2.23 -1.56
c) Experience Variance(i.e Actual experience Vs 9.98 1.72
Assumptions)
Return on Plan Assets,excluding amount recognized in 2.37 -0.97
net Interest expense
Comonent s ofRinedBanédit costsreoqizeihd2|hea 3.92

Comprehensive Income

V) Sensitivity Analysis of the defined benefit obligation (% in lakhs)
2022-2023 2021-2022
a) | Impact of the change in discount rate
Impact due to increase of 1% -53.92 -99.04
Impact due to decrease of 1% 56.71 102.81
b) [ Impact of the change in salary increase
Impact due to increase of 1% 56.55 102.66
Impact due to decrease of 1% -54.03 -99.15
c) | Impact of change in Attrition Rate
Impact due to increase of 0.5% 56.21 102.05
Impact due to decrease of 0.5 % -53.66 -98.41
d) | Impact of change in Mortality Rate
Impact due to increase of 10 % 55.27 100.87
Impact due to decrease of 10 % -55.25 -100.86
vi) Expected maturity analysis of the undiscounted gratuity benefits is as follows (% in lakhs)
2022-2023 2021-2022
1 year 34.72 79.59
2 to 5years 18.49 21.44
6 1to 10 years 5.61 6.56
More than 10 years 9.08 7.41

Ex pect edcontributionstopost-aploynmnt bendit plans for t hey ear &
Rs . 18. 38lacs (PYRs . 5. 60lacs ).

Theweddht edav @ aggdur at ion oft heddinelben it plan oblicat ion at t heen do f 1
period is 3 years.

vii) The assumptions used in accounting for the defined benefit plan are set out below:

(% in lakhs)

Particulars GOES GOED
31st March 2023 | 31st March 2022
Discount Rate 7.30% 5.80%
Future Salary Increase 3.00% 3.00%
Retirement Age 58 years 58 years
Mortality rates 100% 100%
(IALM 2012-14) (IALM 2012-14)
Withdrawl rate 10% 10%

B. Long term employee benefit plans

Compensated Absense

The liability for leave encashment is recognized on the basis of actuarial valuation made at the end of the

year. A provision of Rs. 4.93 lacs (31 March 2022: Rs. -4.62 lacs) for the year have been made on the basis

ofact uar ialvaluat ion at t hey ear en dan ddebit edt o t heSt at emnt of Pr ofit an dLo

'
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The company'’s contribution to provident fund, pension fund and ESI scheme recognised as expense for

the year are as under:

(% in lakhs)

2022-2023 2021-2022

- Contribution to Provident fund 12.64 17.72
- Contribution to ESI 0.65 2.16
Contingent Liabilities not provided for in respect of : (% in lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March 2023 | As at 31st March 2022
Letter of credit pending for shipment - -
Bank Guarantees (net of margin) 28.66 28.66
Custom Duty demand Not Ascertainable Not Ascertainable
Income Tax Matters 37.88 37.88
Sales Tax Matters 1,173.58 1,145.02
Goods & Service Tax Matters 1.45 -
Service Tax Matters 1.97 1.97
Excise Matters 4,877.81 4,877.81

Bank Guarantees issued by Bankers Rs. 30.50 lacs (Previous year Rs. 30.50 lacs) including for
30. 50 lacs (Pr e¢ious Yar Rs. 30. 50lacs

Advance Licence utilised for Import of CPT worth Rs. 87.50 lacs during the period from January,
1995 to May 1995, DGFT issued Show Cause Notice to pay duty and penalty thereof on all
above imports and included the company’s name in the defaulters list. Company challenged the
said Notice in Delhi High Court and after admitting the petition and taking into consideration
all the facts, the Delhi High Court directed the Company to deposit a sum of Rs. 20.00 lacs (in

) aqin st

PY20lacs )wit ht heColleet or ofCustons andor da edlFTt o r e v eConp any 's

the defaulters list. Accordingly Company has deposited the sum of Rs.20.00 lacs (Rs. 20 lacs in

The demand amounting to Rs.1113.78 lacs (previous year Rs. 1113.78 lacs) and penalty Rs.
1113.78 lacs (previous year Rs.1113.78 lacs) for the period April 2002 to April 2003 and demand
of Rs.28.99 lacs (previous year Rs.28.99 lacs ) and penalty of Rs.28.99 lacs (previous year
Rs.28.99 lacs) for the period July 1993 to February 1994 are on the basis of differential duty on
Chassis, Sub assembly parts of T.V.considered as T.V. The Honorable Supreme Court has decided

Dty andperalty ammunt

is no

on t heclas sificat ion issuefor t hepa iod1989- 90an dt hefact s o ft hes ecas es

the case decided by the Supreme Court. The company had gone in appeal before CESTAT. The
appeal before CESTAT were remanded back to the Commissioner Adjudication to decide a fresh
while considering the differential facts of the case. The Commissioner has decided the cases
against the company without considering the differential facts as per directions given by the

The demand for Rs.1292.44 lacs (previous year Rs. 1292.44 lacs) and penalty Rs.1292.44 lacs
(previous year Rs. 1292.44 lacs ) for the period June 1998 to March 2002 raised on the same
basis by the department is time barred and case had been decided in favour of the company.
The department had gone in appeal before CESTAT. The CESTAT had remanded this matter to
Commissioner Adjudication who has decided the case against the company without considering

Theco np any has agin filedap p eal agginst Conmms sion
Theco np an y has

dir ect ion / diffe ent ial fact s oft heCESTAT. Theco np any has agin filedap p al c

SLP aginst the order of CESTAT before the Supreme Court. Therefore considering directions /
differential facts given by CESTAT in remand order not considered in Commissioner’s orders, the
company has good case on merits. Demand deposited amounting to Rs.600.00 lacs( previous

Note:
D)
Sales Tax an dEx cis edevan dRs .
kept by bank Rs. 1.84 lacs ( Previous year Rs. 1.84 lacs).
ii)
PY)wit hin t het imlest ipulat edby t heCour t .
st ag Pd it ion has ben r filedagginst appealor do o f OBFT
i) (a)
CESTATin r emndor de .
befo r et heCESTAT. CSETAThas decidedt hecas eagain st t heconpany .
the SLP aginst the order of CESTAT before the Supreme Court. (refer note no. 51)
(b)
befo r eCESTAT. CSETAThas decidedt he cas eaggin st t heconpany .
year Rs. 600.00 lacs). (refer note no.51)
©

Miscellaneous Excise duty demand amounting to Rs.7.39 lacs( previous year Rs. 7.39 lacs)
against amount deposited Rs.2.00 lacs ( previous year Rs.2.00 lacs) and Service Tax demand
Rs.1.97 lacs(previous year Rs. 1.97 lacs) has been raised by the department against which
conpany has filedap p eals .

Theco np an y has fi
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iv) The Central Sales Tax and VAT/ State Sales Tax Authorities has raised demand of Rs. 1173.58 lacs
(Pr evious Yar Rs. 1145. 02lacs )pr imar ily pea tains t o e<partieor dg and/
related issues, which is under appeal and an amount of Rs. 146.42 lacs (previous year Rs.146.80
lacs) deposited under protest, which has been disputed by the company. However in most of the
cases, reuiredocunnt s ar ebdn gfiled. TheConpany's ap p eal aggin st t hes ai
pending before various appellate authorities forums. ( Refer Note no 52)

V) TheGo ods &Se viceTax Bpart nnt has raiselde@ndof Rs. 1. 45 lacs (Pr e¢ious ¥
primrily pagtanstoe way billnot filedby transporte, whichis unde a
1.45 lacs (previous year Rs.Nil) deposited under protest, which has been disputed by the company.

Vi) IncomTax Asses smnts oft heConpany hav eben conmpld edupt o Asse smnt
19 (in previous year upto 2016-17). Demand has been raised of Rs.37.88 lacs (previous year Rs.
37. 88lacs )for er lig asse smnt year 2002- 03aginst whichconpany has fild
appleate authorities and amount Rs. 37.88 lacs (previous year Rs.37.88 lacs) has been deposited
against demands.

vii) AppealoflncomTax dgpar t mnt aginst t hel TATor dg@ for t heAsses smt ¥
lying pending before Hon’ble Supreme Court against refund of Rs.1151.57 lacs (previous year Rs.
1151. 57lacs )r ecév edby t heConp any in t heFin an cial Yar 2002- 2003. The eis fin
ofRs. 382 99lacs on Rs. 1764lacs dir ect bendit t o s har eholde s is only in
relieved depreciation part of Rs. 3248 lacs.
The amounts herein above do not include amount of interest or penalty whereof are not acertain
Pending completion of the legal process the impact of liability, if any, cannot be ascertained at
this stage, however, management believes that, based on legal advice, the outcome of these
contingncie will befavor ableandt hat out flowofeononicr esour ce is n

B. Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account & not provided for (net of
advances) is Rs. Nil (previous year Rs. Nil.).

44 Capital Management
The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to :
- safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern, and
- maintain an appropriate capital structure of debt and equity.

The Company monitors capital using gearing ratio which debts to total equity. (% in lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March 2023 | As at 31st March 2022
Total borrowings 1,814.04 1,719.55
Less : Cash and cash equivalents 2.11 143.69
Net debt 1,811.93 1,575.86
Total equity 5,848.77 6,753.28
Net debt to equity ratio 0.31 0.23
45 Financial Risk Management

Thepr incipal financialasséa s oft heConmpany includeloans, tr adeandot ha r edv abl
balan ces t hat de iv edir ect ly fr omit s opea at ions. Thepr incipal financial liabilit ie o
andborrowing, tr adeandot hg pay ables andt hemain pur poseoft he efinancial liabil
to day operations of the company.
The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management oversees
t heman agment oft heser isks andadvise on financial risks andt heappr opr iat efina
framework for the Company.
The risks which the company is exposed to and policies and framework adopted by the company to manage
these risks are explained as under:
A Market Risk
Mar ke r is kis t her is kt hat t hefair valueoffut ur ecas hffows ofafinancialinst r u
of changes in market prices. Company is exposed to interest rate risk as its Market risk.
B Interest Rate Risk
Int @ est rat eriskis t heriskt hat t hefair valueor fut ur ecashflows ofafinancialins
of changes in market interest rates. The Company'’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates
primrily totheConpany's dbt obliggt ions wit hfloat ingint @ st r at e .
As t heConpany has no siquificant int @ est - bear ingassea s, t heinconeando p & at in gcas
independent of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rat e rdat s primarily totheConpany’s ddbt obliggt ions wit hfloat ingint & est r at e,
bear ingloans andborrowing in t hesefinancial st at eent s. Theconpany's fix er at ebor
amortised cost. They are therefore not subject to interest rate risk, since neither the carrying amount nor the future
cas hflows will fluct uat ebecau s eo fachan gin nmar ke int @ est r at e .
At t her @oortingdat et heint @ est rat eprofileoft heConpany's int @ est bear in gfinancial

'
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Carring Amount (3 in lakhs)

Particulars As at 31st March 2023 |As at 31 March 2022
Fixed rate instruments

Long term borrowings 153.96 404.43
Current maturities of long term debt 254.86 313.05
Unsecured loans 1,116.83 1,000.36
Variable rate instruments

Short term borrowings 288.39 1.71

Achan o f 50bp s in int @ est r at ewou

Idhav efo llo win ginp

act on pr @mfakhs)dlos s :

Particulars 2022-2023 2021-2022
Increase in 50 basis point 1.44 0.01
Decrease in 50 basis point -1.44 -0.01

Liquidity Risk

Thefin an cial liabilit ies oft hecompany includeloans andbor rowing,
principalsour ce ofliquidity ar ecas handcas hequiv alent s an dt hecas hflow t hat is ¢

t r adeandot ha p

(% in lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March 2023 | As at 31st March 2022
Borrowings:
0-1 year 1,660.08 1,315.12
More than 1 year 153.96 404.43
Trade Payables:
0-1 year 398.00 1,067.87
More than 1 year
Other Financial liabilities:
0-1 year 98.20 154.22
More than 1 year 16.13 18.32

D Credit Risk
Cr eit riskrda s totheriskofddault on it s obliggtion by t hecount e party re
exposure to the credit risk at the reporting date is primarily from trade receivables which are typically unsecured
andot he financialassda s. Mjority oft heconpany’'s tr ansact ions ar esar nain ca
The company assesses the creditworthiness of the customers internally to whom services are rendered on
cr dit t @ ns inthenor mlcour seofbusines. Thecr edit limt ofechcust onmer is ddin
this assessment. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored.
Theconmpany recoqize loss allowances usingt heex pect edcr edit loss (ECL)no dd for t |
whichar enot fair valuelt roucprofit or loss. Loss allowancefor t r ader ecdv ables
conmonelt is masur edat an amunt eualto lifea inlkECL. For all ot he financial as s
losse aremasur edat an amunt equalt ot hel2 nmnt hECL, unle s t ha ehas ben asic
credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL.

(i) Exposure to Credit Risk
Thecar r yingamunt offinancialassda s rereseatst hemax inmnunmer edit expos

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was: (% in lakhs)

Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March 2023 | March 2022

Financial assets for which loss allowance is measured using:

-Lifetime expected credit losses

Trade receivables 2,223.59 2,160.76

-12 months expected credit losses

Investments 0.02 0.02

Cash and cash equivalent 2.11 143.69

Other bank balances 32.05 34.29

Loans 1.51 4.26

Ot he financial as s & s 52.49 717.16

Total 2,311.77 3,060.18
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(i) Provision for expected credit losses
Financial assets for which loss allowance is measured using life time expected credit losses
The Company uses a provision matrix to determine expected loss on portfolio of its trade
receivable which is measured using lifetime expected credit loss model. The provision matrix is
based on its historically observed default data over the expected life of the trade receivable and is
adjusted for forward- looking estimates.
Thelo s s allowan cehas ben mas ur edusinglifa imECLexcept for financial as s €
t he ehas ben no sigrificant incr es ein cr @it risksinceinitialr eoqitio
dat € t heConpany asse se wha ha financialassd s car r iedat amor t is edcos
Afinancial as s & is cr ait - inpair elwhen oneor mor eevent s t hat hav eade r i
t heest imt edfut ur ecashflows oft hefinancial assd& haveoccurr aesincein
sinplififedappr oachhas ben considea edfor masur ingex p et ecr dit loss e
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. The ECLs on trade receivables are calculated
based on actual historic credit loss experience over the preceding three years on the total
balance of undisputed trade receivables and in case of disputed trade receiavbles on the basis
ofrecovay pattan. TheCompany nonitors allt her ecédv ables, loans and
continuously basis the factors considered while dealing. If there are any indicators of impairment
on nmnagent asse snmnt oft heser ecdv ables, loans andot he financial as
provided for. The Company uses the ECL method for impairment.
The following table summarises the change in the loss allowances measured using life time
expected credit loss model (ECL):
(% in lakhs)

Particulars 2022-23 2021-22
At the beginning of the Year 1,700.38 2,092.18
Provided/(Reversal) during the year (Refer note no. 38 & 39) 37.20 -391.80
As at March 31, 2023 1,737.58 1,700.38
Financial assets for which loss allowance is measured using 12 month expected credit losses
Theconpany has asséd& s wha et hecount @ - partie havesufficient cap aci
obligations and where the risk of default is very low. Accordingly, loss allowance for impairment
on ca tain financialassé& s has bem r coqniselas disclosea in t his Not eun
of impairment loss provisions’.
Reconciliation of impairment loss provisions (% in lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st As at 31+

March 2023 | March 2022
Opening Provision 1,269.73 1,792.84
Add: Provided during the year (refer note no. 38) 1.63 -
Less: Reversal of loss allowance (refer note no. 38) -359.93 -523.11
Closing Provision 911.43 1,269.73

E Foreign Currency Risk

Fordgcurrecy riskist her is kt hat t hefair valueor fut ur ecas hffows ofan e p
of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company operates internationally has foreign currency trade

payables and receivables and is therefore, exposed to foreign exchange risk.

The carrying amounts of the company'’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary

liabilities at the end of the reporting period as follows:

Foreign currency exposure Currency |As at 31st March 2023 | As at 31st March 2022

Trade Receivables UsD - -
Trade payables UsD 1.92 3.01
Net Exposure to foreign currency risk uUsD -1.92 -3.01

Foreign Curency Risk Sensitivity
Achan gin 1%in for dqn cur r ency wouldhav efollowin ginp act o n fJimldklis)befo r et ax

. 2022-2023 2021-2022
Particulars — T Y T
1% Appreciation | 1% Depreciation | 1% Appreciation | 1% Depreciation
Incr eas & (Bcr eas in|Profit -1.58 1.58 -2.28 2.28

or Loss (inRs.)
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The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as of 31st March , 2023

(% in lakhs)
Particulars FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Cost Carrying Cost
Financial Assets:
Non current Investment-others 0.02 0.02
Trade Receivables 2,223.59 2,223.59
Other Financial Assets-Non Current 19.91 19.91
Cash and Cash Equivalents 2.11 2.11
Other Bank Balances 32.05 32.05
Ot he financialassé& - Cufr et 32.58 32.58
Financial Liabilities:
Non - Current Borrowings 153.96 153.96
Trade Deposits 16.13 16.13
Current Borrowings 1,660.08 1,660.08
Trade Payables 398.00 398.00
Other Financial liabilities 98.20 98.20

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as of 31st March, 2022

(% in lakhs)
Particulars FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Cost Carrying Cost
Financial Assets:
Non current Investment-others 2,000.00 2,000.00
Loan - -
Trade Receivables 2,160.76 2,160.76
Other Financial Assets-Non Current 33.52 33.52
Cash and Cash Equivalents 143.69 143.69
Other Bank Balances 34.29 34.29
Ot he financialassé& - Cufr et 683.64 683.64
Financial Liabilities:
Non - Current Borrowings 404.43 404.43
Trade Deposits 18.32 18.32
Current Borrowings 1,315.12 1,315.12
Trade Payables 1,067.67 1,067.67
Other Financial liabilities 154.22 154.22

Fair valueoft hecorr espondingfinancialassé& s andliabilit ies is appr ox imat dy

46 RELATED PARTIES DISCLOSURES :
1. Relationship :
(a) Other related parties in which key Salora Components Ltd

managerial Personnel are able to  Manori Properties Private Limited

& @ cisesigificant infl B&) Bectronics Private Limited
Quick Load 24X7 Private Limited
Tiss Technologies LLP
PJTJ Technologies Private Limited

(b) Key Managerial Personnel: Mr. Gopal Sitaram Jiwarajka(Chairman & Managing Director)
Mr. Tarun Jiwarajka(Whole Time Director & CFO)
Mrs. Neetu Jiwarajka (Director)
Mr. Anubhav Nigam ( Company Secretary, w.e.f. 07.06.2021 )
(c) Close family member of KMP Mr. Ayush Jiwarajka
(d) Key Managerial Personnel: Mr. K.S. Mehta

(Independent Director) Mr. Sanjeev Kaul Duggal

Mr. Paramartha Saika
Note: Related party relationship is as identified by the Company and relied upon by the Auditors.

A\ poeio
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2. Transactions carried out with related parties as above, in ordinary course of business: (% in lakhs)
Related Parties

Referred in 1 (b) & (¢)
above

31.03.2023 | 31.03.2022 | 31.03.2023 | 31.03.2022 | 31.03.2023 | 31.03.2022

Nature of

Transactions Referred in 1 (a) above

Referred in 1 (d) above

Sales
Goods and Materials 301.08 230.88
Expenses
Interest 0.64 7.25 26.74 58.24
Directors 33.42 37.19
Remuneration &
Perquisite

Director Sitting Fee 1.80 2.30
Salary of Others 17.21 9.42
Income

Rental & Other 2.73 12.51
Incomes

Finance
Loans received -l 10,911.91 7,863.10
Loans repaid 88.75 0.25( 10,779.17 8,354.76
Others

Security deposit 0.11 - -
received

Advance Capitalized - 9.00
to Vehicle

Expenses/Payment on 2.36 1.50
their behalf

Outstandings
Payables - 2.52 2.87 3.92 2.30
Receivables 11.44 16.90 -
Loan Payable - 88.75 963.80 841.28
Interest Payable 0.57 2.88 24.03 54.55

As the liabilities for gratuity and compensated absences are provided on actuarial basis for the Company
as a whole, the amounts pertaining to individual Key Management Personnel are not separately available.

47 Segment reporting :

Ind AS 108 establishes standards for the way that public business enterprises report information about operating

segments and related disclosures about products and services, geographic areas, and major customers.es. Based

on t he'nan agemen t ap pr o ach”"as ddinelin I ndAS108, t heChief Op @ at in gkcis ion Mika (COD)e
the Company'’s performance and allocates resources based on analysis of various performance indicators by

business segments and geographic segments. Accordingly, information has been presented both along industry

classes and geographic segmentation of customers, industry being the primary segment. Secondary segmental

reporting is performed on the basis of the geographical location of customers. The accounting principles used

in t hepr ggar at ion oft hefinancial st at emnt s ar econsistently appliedt o r ecor d
individual segent s, andar eas sd out inthenoteon sigrificant account ingpolicies

a. Business Segment

The Company failling in one segment only so the company has only one reportable segment i.e “
Consumer Electronic Division”

b. Geographical Segment

The Company operates in one Geographical Segment namely “within India” and hence no separate
information for geographic segment wise disclosure is required.

_ ecez /g '
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48

49

50

51

Disclosure under The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

TheConmpany has sent let @ stovendorstoconfirmwhd ha t hgg ar ecove edunde m
ent @ prisedes dopnmnt act 2006 as wdl as t hgg havefiledr equir edngo r an du mwit hpr e
Based on and to the extent of the information received by the Company from the suppliers regarding their status

under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) and relied upon by the

auditors, the relevant particulars as at the year end are furnished below:

(% in lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31,2023 | As at March 31, 2022

The Principal amount remaining unpaid at the year end 10.27 35.06

The Interest amount remaining unpaid at the year end 6.78 16.77

The amount of interest paid by the buyer under MSMED Act, - -
2006 along with the amount of the payment made to the
supplier beyond the appointed day during the year

The amount of interest due and payable for the year(where - -
the principal has been paid but interest under the MSMED Act,
2006 not paid)

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the 6.78 16.77
year end

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable 6.78 16.77
even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest
dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the
purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under
section 23 of MSMED Act, 2006

In the opinion of the board, any of the assets other than property ,plant and equipment and non current investments
have a value on realisation in the ordinary course of the business at least equal to the amount at which they are
stated.

The exceptional items recorded during the year include the following:

©) Inventory written down by Rs.292.11 lacs during this quarter on liquidation of old inventories till date
based on actual realized value. This is in line with the company’s continuous effort to optimize its
opea at ional dficiedcy andr esour ces, whea éy it has wr itt ex down inventor ies
lacs during the year, due to obsolescence caused by change in technology, slow inventory movement and
part of discontinued product categories etc

(b) Ex css amunt ofRs. 144. 60lacs whichis r ecdvedas finalconsida at ion as pea Tr .
Hold Rights against amount considered earlier towards sale of Noida Land in the previous year. Besides
this, a recovery of partial expenses amounting to Rs. 35.00 lacs towards expenses paid to Noida Authority
in the previous year

(c) Reco nit ion ofloss ammuntingt o Rs. 33. 23lacs basedon finalr ealizedamunt, il
estimated realizable value for Assets Held for sale in the previous year

Theconpany filedaSLPon ner it s wit ht heHonor ableSupr eeCour t whichis peidingfor «
on 16. 12. 2021, t heConpany filedawr it pd ition in HicdCour t ofRhit o dir ect t hede
delay due to Covid-19 and accept payment Rs.1210.99 lakhs as approved in the SVLDR scheme against which

pre deposit Rs 600 lakhs for settlement of the disputed Excise matters of Rs.2435.21 lakhs and penalty thereon

Rs . 2435. 21lakhs devan dedby Ex cis eaut hor it ies r dat edt o financial y ear 1993- 94t o 2003-
has issued notice to the concerned authorities which is pending for disposal. The Contingent Liability against

this matter Rs 4870.42 lakhs against this matter shall stand as it is, till either the High Court or the Supreme

Court decides on this matter. Further there has been no hearing and progress in the case, however recently two

of similar nature of cases has been decided in the favour of the appellant by the CESTAT and Honorable Supreme

Court
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52 Contingent liabilities of Rs.1,242.26 lakhs (excluding Rs.4870.42 Lakhs as referred in above (note no.51) related
to Sales tax, Excise duty, Service tax, Goods and Service tax and Income tax etc. against which amount deposited
Rs 207.76 Lakhs which are contested by the company and pending before various forums. However, management
bdies es t hat bas edon lepl advice t heout comoft hesecont ingncie will befav or ablean
economic resources is not probable.

53 The Company has material statutory dues recoverable of Sales tax of Rs 365.65 lakhs and Income tax Rs. 204.58
lakhs whichhas ben consida edlgpod, pexdingfinalasse smnt.

54 Deferred tax assets Rs.2108.33 lacs as at 31st March, 2023 is expected to be realized, as the company strongly
believes that it has reasonably certainty of realization. The company has enhanced its product portfolio and the
nevbusines stratey ofdepea pendration, g aeat e ope at ional dficiency resulti
profits inthefutureas ant icipat e/ projet aby t hemanagmint on apr udet basi
brought forward losses under the Income Tax Act, which are expiring in the next two years.

(Non-Ind AS Information)

55 Additional regulatory information

a) Additional regulatory information/disclosures as required by general instructions to Division-Il of Schedule
Il to the Companies Act, 2013 are furnished to the extent applicable to the Company.

b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limit in excess of Rs 5 crores on the basis of
seur ity ofcurrent assea s, in agf ept € at any point oft imedur in gt hey er
institutions.

c) The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending
against the Company for holding any Benami property.

d) TheConpany has not ben declar edas wilful dfault @ by any bankor financial in st
lenders.

e) The title deeds of immovable property (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the

leas eag ement s ar eduly ex ecut edin favour oft heles s edisclos edin t hefinancial st
in the name of the Company subject to below :

Relevant line items in the Balance Sheet Right of use assets.

Description of item of property Lease hold land

Gross Carrying value (Rs in Lacs) 4.37

Title deeds held in the name of Electronics Consortium Private Limited

Whether title deed holder is a promoter, director or relative | ¥es
of promoter / director or employee of promoter / director

Property held since which date Since 1980

Reason for not being held in the name of the Company* In the old name of the company, due to some
procedural /technical issues the property is
still not transferred in the existing name of
the company.

f) During the year, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipments including intangible
assets.

g) TheConp any havenot tr adedor invetain Cryptocurrecy or VirtualCurr en

h) No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or
any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity (ies), including
foreign entities (“Intermediaries”) with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
t hat t helnt @ nediar y shall lenedor invest in party idntifiedby or on beialfof
Ben diciar ies). TheConpany has not redvelany fundfromany party(s)Fundir
understanding that the Company shall whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entitie idntifiedby or on bealfoft heConpany (“‘Ut inat eBen i ciar ies ")or pr o\
seur ity or t helikeon behalfo ft heUt imat eBen i ciar ies .

'
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i) The Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax
Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

i) The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies
Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956
k) Disclosure of Ratio
Measurement As at 31 | As at 31
Ratio* unit Numerator Denominator March | March | % Change Reason
2023 2022
Current Times Current Current liabilities 1.45 1.94 -25.29% | Current assets
Ratio assets reduced more
in proportion to
reduction in current
liabilities.
Debt-equity | Times Total debt Shareholder 0.31 0.25 21.80%
Ratio Equity
Debt Times Net Pr o fi t|Interest expense -0.09 0.36 | -123.74% | Loss incurred
service before taxes | (including during the year
coverage + Non-cash | capitalised) in comparison to
Ratio operating + principal substantial profit
expenses & repayment in previous year
Finance cost | (including after considering
prepayments) exceptional items
in both the years
Returnon | Percentage Pr o fit aft|Average -14.23 | 43.31 | -132.85% [Loss incurred
equity Ratio tax Shareholder during the year
Equity in comparison to
substantial profit
in previous year
after considering
exceptional items
in both the years
Inventory Times Revenue from | Average 4.25 1.73 145.81% | Revenue from
turnover operations inventories operations
Ratio increased and
Average Inventory
decreased in
comparison to
previous year
Trade Times Revenue from | Average trade 5.29 2.13 148.97% | Revenue from
receivables operations receivables operations
turnover increased and
Ratio Average Debtors
decreased in
comparison to
previous year
Trade Times Net Credit Average trade 15.21 3.87 292.67% | Net Credit
payables Purchase payables Purchase increased
turnover and Average trade
Ratio payable decreased
in comparison to
previous year
Net capital | Times Revenue from | Average working 6.66 5.54 20.32%
turnover operations capital
Ratio
Neg p r o f| Percentage Pr o fi t aft|Revenue from -7.72% | 34.32% | 122.51% |Loss incurred
Ratio tax operations during the year
in comparison to
substantial profit
in previous year
after considering
exceptional items
in both the years

A\ poeios
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Returnon | Percentage Earnings Capital employed | -19.41% | 46.90% | 141.39% |Loss incurred
capital before during the year
employed interest and in comparison to
tax substantial profit

in previous year
after considering
exceptional items
in both the years

56 Bbt or s, creitors, loans andadvances ar esubjet t oconfir mt ions excet r edv e
Theacconp aningnot e (1- 56)for man int ey alpart oft hefinancialst at eent s.

As per our seperate report of even date annexed. For and on behalf of the Board
For R Gopal & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg No. 000846C

Vikash Aggarwal Tarun Jiwarajka Gopal Sitaram Jiwarajka
Partner Whole Time Director & CFO Chairman & Managing Director
M.No: 519574 DIN No. 00386240 DIN: 00024325
Place : New Delhi Anubhav Nigam
Date: 25th May 2023 Company Secretary
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